
UMC Governing Board
Wednesday, January 29, 2025 2:00 p.m.

Delta Point Building - Emerald Conference Room - 1st Floor

Page 1 of 220 



1  

 
This meeting has been properly noticed and posted online at University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com and at Nevada Public Notice at https://notice.nv.gov/, and 
University Medical Center 1800 W. Charleston Blvd. Las Vegas, NV (Principal Office) 

 
• The main agenda is available on University Medical Center of Southern Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com, For 

copies of agenda items and supporting back-up materials, please contact Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary, 
at (702) 765-7949. The Governing Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration. 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Governing Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item at any time. 
• Consent Agenda - All matters in this sub-category are considered by the Governing Board to be routine and may be acted 

upon in one motion. Most agenda items are phrased for a positive action. However, the Governing Board may take other 
actions such as hold, table, amend, etc. 

• Consent Agenda items are routine and can be taken in one motion unless a Governing Board member requests that an item 
be taken separately. For all items left on the Consent Agenda, the action taken will be staff's recommendation as indicated 
on the item. 

• Items taken separately from the Consent Agenda by Governing Board members at the meeting will be heard in order. 

 AGENDA 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
GOVERNING BOARD 

January 29, 2025  2:00 p.m. 
901 Rancho Lane, Las Vegas, Nevada 

Delta Point Building, Emerald Conference Room (1st Floor) 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the UMC Governing Board has been called and will be 
held on Wednesday, January 29, 2025, commencing at 2:00 p.m. at the location listed above to 
consider the following: 

 

 

 
SECTION 1. OPENING CEREMONIES 

CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

INVOCATION 

1. Public Comment. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT. This is a period devoted to comments by the general public about 
items on this agenda. If you wish to speak to the Board about items within its 
jurisdiction but not appearing on this agenda, you must wait until the “Comments by the 
General Public” period listed at the end of this agenda. Comments will be limited to 
three minutes. Please step up to the speaker's podium, clearly state your name and 
address, and please spell your last name for the record. If any member of the Board 
wishes to extend the length of a presentation, this will be done by the Chair or the Board 
by majority vote. 

 
2. Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on December 11, 

2024. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative Office) (For possible 
action) 

 
3. Approval of Agenda. (For possible action) 

Page 2 of 220 

http://www.umcsn.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.umcsn.com/


2  

SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS 
 
4. Approve the December 2024 and January 2025 Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing 

Activities for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by the 
Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on December 24, 2024 and January 28, 2025; and 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
5. Ratify the Amendment to the Hospital Services Agreement with Aetna Health, Inc. 

for managed care services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 
6. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Amendment to the 

Hospital Services Agreement with Health Direct Partners for Managed Care 
Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
7. Ratify the Provider Services Agreement with Hometown Health Plan, Inc. and 

Hometown Health Providers Insurance Company, Inc. for Managed Care Services; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
8. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Dialysis Products 

Purchase Agreement with Vantive US Healthcare, LLC, for the purchase of dialysis 
products; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
9. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Purchaser-Specific 

Agreement and Addendum with CyraCom, LLC for Interpretation and Translation 
Services; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to exercise any renewal options; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
10. Award the Bid No. 2024-16, UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Blvd Remodel Project PWP# CL-

2025-183, to Monument Construction the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, 
contingent upon submission of the required bonds and insurance; authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute change orders within his delegation of authority; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
11. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Order Form with 

CarePort Health, LLC for CarePort Transition implementation and subscription 
services; execute the extension options and future amendments within his yearly 
delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
12. Approve and recommend for approval by the Board of County Commissioners, also 

sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada, the settlement in the matter of District Court Case No. A-24-899947-C, entitled 
Frazier v. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al.; and authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute any necessary settlement documents.  (For possible action) 

 
13. Approve and recommend for approval by the Board of County Commissioners, also 

sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada, the settlement in the matter of District Court Case No. A-20-809620-C, entitled 
David Monk as Special Administrator of the Estate of Sharon Monk v. University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada, et al; and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute 
any necessary settlement documents.  (For possible action) 

 
14. Approve and recommend for approval by the Board of County Commissioners, also 

sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada, the settlement in the matter of District Court Case No. A-23-875382-C, entitled 

Page 3 of 220 



3  

Gordon v. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al.; and authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute any necessary settlement documents.  (For possible action) 

 
SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS 

 
15. Receive an update from Shana Tello, UMC Academic and External Affairs 

Administrator, regarding the 2025 Legislative Session; and direct staff accordingly. 
(For possible action) 
 

16. Receive an update from Patty Scott, UMC Quality Patient Safety and Regulatory 
Officer, regarding the new DNV Healthcare Management Certification and 
Accreditation Program; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 

 
17. Review and discuss the potential topics to include on the Governing Board 2025   

Action Plan calendar; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
18. Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee; and take any 

action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
19. Receive the monthly financial report for November and December FY25; and take any 

action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
20. Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV; 

and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
21. Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed appropriate. 

(For possible action) 
 
22. Review and determine the committee assignments for the calendar year 2025; and 

direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 
SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES 

 
23. Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future meetings; 

and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 
SECTION 5: CLOSED SESSION 

 
24. Go into closed session, NRS 241.015(4)(c), to receive information from the General 

Counsel regarding potential or existing litigation involving matters over which the Board 
had supervision, control, jurisdiction or advisory power, and to deliberate toward a 
decision on the matters; and direct staff accordingly. 
 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
A period devoted to comments by the general public about matters relevant to the Board’s 
jurisdiction will be held. No action may be taken on a matter not listed on the posted agenda. 
Comments will be limited to three minutes. Please step up to the speaker’s podium, clearly 
state your name, and address and please spell your last name for the record. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 220 



4  

UMCSN ADMINISTRATION KEEPS THE OFFICIAL RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS OF UMCSN GOVERNING 
BOARD. IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN A COMPLETE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS, ANY 
PHOTOGRAPH, MAP, CHART, OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT USED IN ANY PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD 
SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION. IF MATERIALS ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO THE 
BOARD, PLEASE PROVIDE SUFFICIENT COPIES FOR DISTRIBUTION TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION. 

All comments by speakers should be relevant to the Board’s action and jurisdiction. 
 
 

 

THE BOARD MEETING ROOM IS ACCESSIBLE TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. WITH TWENTY-FOUR (24) 
HOUR ADVANCE REQUEST, A SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER MAY BE MADE AVAILABLE (PHONE: 702-765- 
7949). 

Page 5 of 220 



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Governing Board Meeting 
December 11, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Emerald Conference Room (1st Floor) 
Delta Point Building 
901 Rancho Lane 
Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada 
Wednesday, December 11, 2024 
2:00 PM. 
 
The University Medical Center Governing Board met in regular session, at the location and date 
above, at the hour of 2:00 PM.  The meeting was called to order at the hour of 2:02 PM by Chair 
O’Reilly. The following members were present, which constituted a quorum of the members 
thereof: 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Board Members: 
 

Present: 
John O’Reilly, Chair 
Donald Mackay, M.D., Vice-Chair  

 Laura Lopez-Hobbs  
Mary Lynn Palenik 
Robyn Caspersen 
Harry Hagerty 
Renee Franklin  
Chris Haase 
Jeff Ellis (WebEx) 
 

Ex-Officio Members: 
 
 Present: 

Bill Noonan, Ex-Officio  
Steve Weitman, Ex-Officio (WebEx) 
Dr. Meena Vohra, Chief of Staff  
 
 
Absent:  
Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of Kirk Kerkorian SOM at UNLV 
 

 Others Present: 
Tony Marinello, Chief Operating Officer 
Jennifer Wakem, Chief Financial Officer 
Debra Fox, Chief Nursing Officer 
Shana Tello, Administrative and External Affairs Administrator 
Patrick Burrus, Grand Canyon Project Manager 
Michelle McGrorey, R.N.  
Debbie McKinney, R.N. 
Susan Pitz, General Counsel 
James Conway, Assistant General Counsel 
Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary 

Page 6 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 2 of 14 
 
 
SECTION 1.  OPENING CEREMONIES 
 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 INVOCATION 
 

At this time, Shana Tello led the group in singing Jingle Bells for the holiday 
season. 

 
ITEM NO. 1 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Chair O’Reilly asked if there were any persons present in the audience wishing to 
be heard on any item on this agenda. 

 
 Speakers: None 
 
ITEM NO. 2 Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on 

November 13, 2024. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative 
Office) (For possible action)  

 
FINAL ACTION: 
 
A motion was made by Member Mackay that the minutes be approved as 
presented.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
ITEM NO. 3 Approval of Agenda (For possible action) 
 

FINAL ACTION:  
 
A motion was made by Member Franklin that the minutes be approved as 
recommended.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS 
 
ITEM NO. 4 Approve the November 2024  Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities 

for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by the 
Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on November 26, 2024; and take action 
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Credentialing Activities 
 

ITEM NO. 5 Approve the various HR Policies and Procedures regarding references to 
Compensation Plans, authority to change various economic and non-
economic benefits and practices to non-union represented classifications, 

Page 7 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 3 of 14 
 

time card exception form submission timelines; and take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action)  

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- HR Policies and Procedures 

ITEM NO. 6  Approve the revisions of the Physician & Non-Physician Provider Traditional 
Productivity Compensation and Benefits Plan, which includes modest 
changes; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
  DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- Physician and Non Physician Provider Traditional Comp Plan 
- Physician_Non-Phys Comp Plan - Redlined 

 
ITEM NO. 7  Approve the revisions of the Physician & Non-Physician Provider (wRVU) 

Productivity Compensation and Benefits Plan, which includes modest 
changes; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

  
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Productivity wRVU Physician Provider Comp Plan 
- w(RVU) Physician_Non-Phys Comp Plan - Redlined 

 
ITEM NO. 8 Approve the Sixth Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement; and 

make a recommendation for approval by the UMC Governing Board; and 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- CEO Employment Agreement – 6th Amendment 

 
ITEM NO. 9 Approve the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee’s 

recommendation for approval of the UMC Policy and Procedures 
Committee’s activities from its meetings held on October 2 and November 
6, 2024; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

   DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- October and November 2024 Policies and Procedures 
 
ITEM NO. 10 Ratify the First Amendment to the Consulting Provider Agreement with 

Health Plan of Nevada for Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Consulting Agreement – Amendment One 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 11 Ratify the Second Amendment to Medicaid / Nevada Check-up Consulting 

Provider Agreement with Health Plan of Nevada, Inc. for Managed Care 
Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

Page 8 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 4 of 14 
 

- Consulting Provider Agreement - Amendment Two 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 12 Ratify the Third Amendment to Hospital Services Agreement with Health 

Plan of Nevada, Inc., Sierra Health and Life Insurance Company, Inc. and 
Sierra Healthcare Options, Inc. for Managed Care Services; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Hospital Services Agreement – Amendment Three 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 13 Ratify the Second Amendment to Individual / Group Provider Service 

Agreement with Sierra Health and Life Insurance Company, Inc. and Sierra 
Healthcare Options, Inc., for Managed Care Services; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Service Agreement – Amendment Two 
- Disclosure of Ownership 
-  

ITEM NO. 14 Ratify the National Transplant Services Agreement with Kaiser Foundation  
    Hospitals for Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed   
    appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Transplant Services Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 15 Approve the Agreement with Optiv Security Inc. for Exabeam Security  
    Incident and Event Monitoring Platform; execute future Order Forms within  
    his delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For  
    possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Master Purchase Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 16 Award the Bid No. 2024-10, UMC Main Lobby Level 1 Remodel Project 

PWP#  CL-2025-083, to JMB Construction, Inc., the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder, contingent upon submission of the required bonds and 
insurance; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute change orders 
within his delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- ITB 2024-10 - UMC Main Lobby Level 1 Remodel Project Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 17 Award the RFP No. 2024-09 for Out-of-State Medicaid Billing and Collections 

to Firm Revenue Cycle Management Services, LLC; and authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to sign the Service Agreement, and execute any extension 

Page 9 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 5 of 14 
 

options and future amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this 
Agreement; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- RFP 2024-09 Out-of-State Medicaid Billing & Collections Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 
-  

ITEM NO. 18 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the RQI Program 
Renewal Change Order No. 2 with RQI Partners, LLC for CPR training 
services; execute future amendments within his delegation of authority; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Change Order 

 
ITEM NO. 19 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Memorandum 
  of Understanding with SCAN Health Plan Nevada for Managed Care Services; 
  or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Memorandum of Understanding 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 20  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement  
  with Tegria Services Group – US, Inc. for Epic Forms Conversion; authorize 
  the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or take 
  action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Statement of Work 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
A motion was made by Member Haase that Consent Items 4-20 be approved as 
presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 

SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
ITEM NO. 21   Receive refresher education regarding the Nevada Public Records Act and 

the Nevada Open Meeting Law from James Conway, UMC Assistant 
General Counsel; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)  

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- PowerPoint Presentation 

 
DISCUSSION:  

 
James Conway, Assistant General Counsel at UMC, presented refresher training 
on the Nevada Public Records Act and the Nevada Open Meeting Law.  
 

Page 10 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 6 of 14 
 

Public Records Act – NRS Chapter 239:  
 
NRS Chapter 239 states unless declared by law to be confidential, all books and 
records of a state or local governmental entity must be made available for the 
public to inspect, copy, or to receive a copy. Charges are limited to the actual 
costs of producing the record and additional fees for extraordinary use of 
personnel or resources is no longer allowed. Records must be provided in an 
electronic medium unless otherwise requested. The government entity must 
assist the requestor so that the records are provided as expeditiously as 
possible.  
 
A requester may file a petition with the district for an order (1) permitting 
inspection or a copy of the public record, (2) requiring the public entity to provide 
a copy of the public record, or (3) providing relief regarding the fee charged for 
providing a copy of the public record. The district court must give the requester’s 
application priority over all other civil matters that do not enjoy statutory priority. 
If the requester prevails in district court, the requester is entitled to recover from 
the public entity his or her costs and reasonable attorney’s fees.  
 
Mr. Conway reviewed the statutory revisions made in 2019, which imposed new 
penalties and requirements on government entities regarding public records 
requests. A governmental entity that willfully fails to comply with the Public 
Records Act is subject to civil monetary fines. 
 
A discussion continued regarding whether an entity may petition for judicial relief 
in advance of requests for records.   
 
Open Meeting Law – NRS Chapter 241: 
 
Mr. Conway highlighted the revisions made to NRS Chapter 241 through the 
passage of 2 Assembly Bills during the 2023 legislative session. The intent of 
Nevada’s Open Meeting Law (OML) is that the actions and deliberations of a 
public body be taken and conducted openly. The definition of a public meeting 
was clearly defined and it also clarified that non-voting members are not counted 
for the purpose of determining a quorum.  
 
A public body, consisting of elected officials, may hold a public meeting with the 
use of remote technology, as long as a physical location is designated for 
members of the public to attend and participate. If the meeting consist of non-
elected officials, a physical location is not required as long as the remote 
technology requirements are met. Pre-recorded public comments may be 
permitted by the public body, but it is not required. 
 
The discussion continued with a description of instances when subcommittees 
must comply with the OML, as well as consequences when there violations of an 
open meeting. 
 
Lastly, Mr. Conway reviewed NRS Chapter 450, which is the statutory authority 
that created county hospitals such as UMC.  NRS Chapter 450 provides a county 
hospital’s board of hospital trustees or its governing board with four (4) statutory 

Page 11 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 7 of 14 
 

exemptions from the Open Meeting Law, thereby authorizing a closed session. 
The matters whereby the Board may hold a closed session were reviewed and 
examples were provided.  
 
FINAL ACTION:  

 
  None 
 
ITEM NO. 22 Review and discuss the Governing Board 2024 Action Plan, and discuss 

the Governing Board 2024 Action Plan, to include an informational update 
from regarding the UMC ReVITALize Project; and direct staff accordingly. 
(For possible action)  

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- PowerPoint Presentation 
 
DISCUSSION:  

 
Shana Tello, Academics and External Affairs Administrator and Patrick Burrus, 
Project Manager with Grand Canyon, provided a brief update on the status of the 
ReVITALize Project. She thanked many of the departments and individuals that 
have been helpful in completing the project to date. 
 
A project plan overview highlighting areas of completion and areas in progress 
was shown, and the phasing plan was discussed. As of November, the project 
capital expenditures were reviewed. The project is currently on time and on 
budget.  
 
Mr. Burrus highlighted before and after images of the hospital main entrance, the 
2040 Building, the Trauma Building, time capsule and the healing gardens. A 
video showcasing the exterior lighting was shown.  
 
There was continued discussion regarding the completion of the project. A 
ribbon-cutting ceremony is being planned.  

 
FINAL ACTION:  

 
  None 
 
ITEM NO. 23 Receive a presentation regarding Tranquility at UMC: An Overview of 

Integrative Therapies, from Michelle McGrorey, R.N. and Debbie McKinney, 
R.N.; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- PowerPoint Presentation  
 
DISCUSSION:  

Deb Fox, Chief Nursing Officer, introduced Michelle McGrorey, R.N. and Debbie 
McKinney, R.N., who presented an overview of the Integrative Therapies 
program at UMC.  

Page 12 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 8 of 14 
 

 
Tranquility at UMC is Nevada’s first, full-time, hospital-based, integrative                                                          
therapies program for patients and staff. The program is entirely nurse-driven. 
Tranquility RNs are specialized in the provision of researched, evidence-based, 
holistic/integrative treatment modalities. The program provides comfort for many 
emotional needs and Tranquility RNs visit all patient units and staff working in all 
UMC departments. A list of some of the integrative therapies was provided. 

In 2023, tranquility encounters have been provided to over 2,400 patients and 
2,700 staff members. This therapy included aromatherapy, healing touch, hugs, 
and psychological support. Images of the Tranquility Rooms available at the 
hospital were shown. 

The team provides presentations, classes and community outreach and received 
international recognitions and accreditation as an Exemplar Tranquility Program. 
Future program opportunities were discussed. 
 
Lastly, the Board participated in a relaxing breathing exercise. A discussion 
ensued regarding the benefits of these techniques and possible growth and 
outreach opportunities. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

ITEM NO. 24  Receive a report from the Governing Board Human Resources and 
Executive Compensation Committee; and take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action)  
 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None 

 
Member Ellis provided a report on the special meeting which was held on 
Monday, November 11, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. There was a quorum in attendance. 
There was no public comment and minutes and the agenda were both approved 
unanimously.   

 
The Committee received a report on hires and turnovers activity at UMC during 
the first quarter of FY25. There were 270 terminations and 432 new hires. 
 
Next the CHRO report highlighted the status of the organizational goals to date. 
A review of a new contract with a performance management system vendor is 
partially completed. The CBA contract has been approved and the Union has the 
final draft for to review and COLA increases have been received. The next 
employee survey date is scheduled for May 2025. HR celebrated the retirement 
of a 34 year employee. 

The Committee next reviewed and approved various HR policies and 
procedures, physician compensation plans, and an amendment to the CEO 

Page 13 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 9 of 14 
 

employment agreement, all of which were approved as a part of today’s consent 
agenda.  

There were no emerging issues, no public comment, and the meeting adjourned. 
 

FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

ITEM NO. 25  Receive a report from the Governing Board Clinical Quality and 
Professional Affairs Committee; and take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action)  

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None 

 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Mackay provided a report on the meeting which was held on Monday, 
December 2, 2024 at 2:04 pm. There was a quorum in attendance. There was no 
public comment and minutes and the agenda were both approved unanimously.   
 
The Committee received an update on the Patient Safety Structure measure from 
Patty Scott, which is a new CMS Patient Safety measure and centers around 5 
domains of patient safety. The measure will be publicly reported beginning in 
2025. 
 
Next, the Committee received an update on the Quality Safety and Regulatory 
program. UMC received a C grade Leapfrog score, and continues to have a 2 
star rating with CMS. A comparison with other hospitals was shown. The 
Committee also reviewed the FY25 Organizational Performance Goals. 
 
The Committee reviewed and approved the UMC Policies and Procedures 
activities, which are a part of today’s consent agenda. 
 
There were no emerging issues and no public comment and the meeting 
adjourned at 2:56 PM. 
 
FINAL ACTION: 
None  
 

ITEM NO. 26 Receive a report from the Governing Board Strategic Planning Committee; 
and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None 

 
DISCUSSION:  

Page 14 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 10 of 14 
 

Member Hagerty provided a report on the meeting which was held on Thursday, 
December 5, 2024 at 9:00 am. There was a quorum in attendance. There was no 
public comment and minutes and the agenda were both approved unanimously.   
 
The Committee first received an update on service line performance, including 
general surgery, orthopedics, cardiac services, women’s and children’s services 
and ambulatory, comparing Q1 of FY25, as compared to Q1 of FY24. Overall, 
results showed year over year increases. Opportunities for improvement were 
discussed. It was noted that 8 OR suites are scheduled for updates during this 
fiscal year. 
 
Next, the Committee reviewed market share data. There was an overall modest 
increase to 8.6% in Q4. UMC remains in 4th place behind Sunrise, Mountain View 
and Summerlin. The Committee also reviewed the fair share analysis in the 
market in occupied beds. 
 
A review of the competitive landscape, including ambulatory was discussed.  
 
A summary of progress to date for the performance objectives was reviewed. 
There have been satisfactory results to date.  
 
There were no emerging issues and there was no public comment. The 
committee went into closed session and adjourned at 11:25 a.m. 
 
FINAL ACTION: 
None  
 
At this time, the Board had a brief discussion regarding the number of deliveries 
at UMC. There is capacity for improvement at UMC. 
 

ITEM NO. 27 Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee; 
and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None 
 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Caspersen provided a report on the meeting which was held on 
Wednesday, December 4, 2024 at 2:00 pm. There was a quorum in attendance. 
There was no public comment and minutes and the agenda were both approved 
unanimously.   
 
The Committee received a report from the CFO on the monthly financial results 
and fiscal year-end financials for October 2024. The financial statements for 
November were not available.  
 
The business items were reviewed and approved or ratified by the Committee 
during the meeting. All of the contracts that were approved during the meeting 
are a part of today’s consent agenda.  
 

Page 15 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 11 of 14 
 

There was no public comment and the meeting adjourned. 

FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

ITEM NO. 28  Receive the monthly financial report for October FY25; and take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- October FY25 Financial Report 
 
DISCUSSION:  

Ms. Wakem provided a summary of the monthly financial reports for September 
FY25. 
 
The key indicators for October showed admissions below budget 3%. The AADC 
was 591. Average length of stay was at 6.08 days. Overall hospital acuity was 
1.99 and Medicare CMI was 2.01. Inpatient surgeries were 4.42% above budget. 
Outpatient surgeries were 22% above budget. There were 15 transplant cases, 
which was a record high. ER visits were down 4%.  Approximately 21.65% of ED 
patients are being admitted. Quick cares were down slightly and primary care 
visits were up significantly. There were 410 telehealth visits, 2,354 ortho clinic 
visits and 99 deliveries. There was brief discussion regarding the decrease in 
telehealth visits. 

The income statement for the month showed operating revenue above budget 
$7.3 million. Total operating expenses above budget $14.4 million. Total income 
from ops was $3.9 million on a budget of $3 million. She noted this is the first 
month showing a loss. The October year to date income statement was next 
reviewed. 
 
Salaries, wages and benefits were reviewed. Salaries were over budget due to 
the retroactive out of period COLA expense of $3.2 million. There was also an 
unbudgeted overage of $1.9 million in physician salaries. All other expenses 
were $6.3 million above budget and the key driver was supplies, related to 
purchased services increased surgical cases and 340B revenue.  

The team is working on initiatives and plans have been implemented to improve 
performance. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 

ITEM NO. 29 Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine 
at UNLV; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- None 
 

Page 16 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 12 of 14 
 

The Dean was not present at the meeting. This item was tabled.   
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 

ITEM NO. 30 Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
 

  CEO Update  
 
DISCUSSION:  

Tony Marinello, UMC COO provided the following updates: 

• Pathways to Excellence Re-designation received. 
• Exemplar recognition  

• Southern Highlands Primary Care Expansion planned opening on December 
16th. Orthopedic Clinic refresh will be completed soon.  

• DNV Accreditation will begin the first quarter of 2025. 
• Comprehensive Stroke Accreditation is on target to be completed by the end 

of the fiscal year. 
• Successful 2024 Employee Holiday Par-TEE at Pop Stroke. 
• The general Medical Staff Meeting has been scheduled December 12th  
• UMC received Best of Las Vegas Gold, Silver and Bronze in the following 

categories:   
• Gold: Best Hospital, Best Cardiology, Best Urgent Care/Walk in Clinic, 

Best Medical Practice, Best Pediatrician and Best Place to Have  
Baby 

• Silver: Best Orthopedic Surgeon 
• Bronze: Best Surgery Center 

An event to celebrate this accomplishment will take place on December 19th. The 
community event brochure was provided as informational. 

 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

ITEM NO. 31 Determine future meeting dates and times through calendar year 2025; and 
take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
 
- 2025 Meeting Calendar 
 
DISCUSSION:  

  The Board reviewed and accepted the dates as presented.  
 

FINAL ACTION:  

Page 17 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 13 of 14 
 

 
A motion was made by Member Mackay to approve the meeting dates as 
published. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 

ITEM NO. 32 Review and determine the committee assignments for the calendar year 
2025; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
 
- Committee Assignments  
 
DISCUSSION:  

The Board reviewed the current committee assignments for the 2025 calendar 
year. They will consider final appointments at the annual meeting in January.  

 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES 
 
ITEM NO. 33 Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future 

meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

DISCUSSION:  
 
Governing Board surveys are due at the end of December. The Board Secretary 
will send reminders to the Board Members. The survey is confidential. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

SECTION 5:  CLOSED SESSION 

ITEM NO. 34 Go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241.015(4)(c), to receive information 
  from UMC’s Office of General Counsel regarding potential or existing 
  litigation involving a matter over which the Board has supervision, control,  
  jurisdiction or advisory power, and to deliberate toward a decision on the  
  matter; and direct staff accordingly.   
 

DISCUSSION:  
 
The closed session was tabled for the month. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
None 
 

Page 18 of 220 



UMC Governing Board 
December 11, 2024  Page 14 of 14 
 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
 
Comments from the general public were called. No such comments were heard. 
 
FINAL ACTION TAKEN:  
 
None 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, at the 
hour of 3:35 PM.  Chair O’Reilly adjourned the meeting.   
 

 
APPROVED:  
Minutes Prepared by: Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary 
 

Page 19 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board approve the December 2024 and January 2025 Medical 
and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities for University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada (UMC) as authorized by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on 
December 24, 2024 and January 28, 2025; and take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 
As per Medical Staff Bylaws, Credentialing actions will be approved by the Medical Executive Committee 
(MEC) and submitted to the Governing Board monthly.  
 
This action grants practitioners and Advanced Practice Professionals the authority to render care within UMC.  
At the December 19, 2024 meeting and the January 16, 2025 meeting, these activities were reviewed by the 
Credentials Committee and recommended for approval by the MEC.  
 
The MEC reviewed and approved these credentialing activities at the December 24, 2024 and the January 28, 
2025 meetings.

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2024 
 
      Agenda Item # 

Page 20 of 220 



     4 

Page 21 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 1 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

Date:   January 29, 2025 
To:   Governing Board  
From:   Credentials Committee  
Subject:   December 19, 2024 Credentialing Activities 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS  
 

II. CREDENTIALS 

III. INITIAL FPPE FOR MEMBERSHIP AND PRIVILEGES 

 

1 Alinea Ana APRN 

12/24/2024 - 

06/30/2026 Surgery/General Surgery 

UMC Center for 

Transplantation 1 

2 Azarcon Fernando MD 

12/24/2024 - 

01/31/2026 Radiology UMC Radiology 1 

3 Bacani Anne APRN 

12/24/2024 - 

06/30/2026 Ambulatory/Quick Care 

UMC Enterprise 

Quick Care 1 

4 Barratt Harriet MD 
12/24/2024 - 
09/30/2026 Trauma Surgery UNLV 1 

5 Bruce Willie DO 

12/24/2024 - 

11/30/2026 

Ambulatory Care/Quick 

Care 

UMC Nellis Quick 

Care 1 

6 Buendia Stephanie APRN 

12/24/2024 - 

07/31/2026 Medicine/Hem/Onc 

Integrative Cancer 

Center of NV 1 

7 De Luna Michelle APRN 

12/24/2024 - 

06/30/2026 

Medicine / Internal 

Medicine UMC Hospitalist 1 

8 Faulkner Sarah MD 

12/24/2024 - 

04/30/2026 

Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 

Mike O'Callaghan 

Military Hospital 1 

9 Higginson Jonathan APRN 

12/24/2024 - 

04/30/2026 Surgery/Urology Las Vegas Urology 1 

10 Love Stephanie APRN 

12/24/2024 - 

08/31/2026 

Ambulatory Care/Primary 

Care 

UMC-Southern 

Highlands 1 

11 Mangrum Ashleigh PAC 

12/24/2024 - 

11/30/2026 

Orthopaedic 

Surgery/Hand Surgery 

Hand Center of 

Nevada 1 

12 Michelson Andrew MD 

12/24/2024 - 

09/30/2026 

Emergency 

Medicine/Adult 

UMC Emergency 

Medicine 1 

13 Michelson Shannon MD 

12/24/2024 - 

12/31/2026 Pediatrics UMC Pediatrics 1 

14 Miller David MD 

12/24/2024 - 

02/28/2026 Surgery/Urology Las Vegas Urology 1 

15 Obi Chrystal MD 

12/24/2024 - 

06/30/2026 Radiology UMC Radiology 1 

16 Okundaye Amanda DDS 

12/24/2024 - 

12/31/2026 

Anesthesiology/Dental 

Anesthesiology UNLV Health 1 

17 Phan Sydney DO 

12/24/2024 - 

07/31/2026 Family Medicine UNLV Health 1 

Page 22 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 2 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

18 Saade Jessica APRN 

12/24/2024 - 

09/30/2026 Surgery/Urology Las Vegas Urology 1 

19 Singh Anurag MD 

12/24/2024 - 

03/31/2026 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine Reliant 1 

20 Taylor Ryan PAC 

12/24/2024 – 

08/31/2026 Medicine/Pulmonary 

Mike O'Callaghan 

Military Hospital 1 

21 Torres Mario MD 

12/24/2024 - 

09/30/2026 Medicine/Nephrology 

Kidney Specialists 

of Southern NV 1 

22 Vitug Bennett DO 

12/24/2024 - 

02/28/2026 

Family Medicine/Hospice 

& Palliative 

Platinum 

Hospitalists 1 

 
 

IV. REAPPOINTMENTS TO STAFF 

1 Abdulla Farooq MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Pediatrics/Neonatology 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges UMC 

2 Adlaon Ronald APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Ambulatory Care/General 

Surgery/Burn Care 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC-

Centennial 

Quick Care 

3 Aftab Amir MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Community 

Medicine Inc. 

4 Akbar Tanveer MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Platinum 

Hospitalists 

5 Al-Khazaali Marwah MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Kidney 

Specialists of 

Southern 

Nevada 

6 Avelar Taurino MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Kidney 

Specialists of 

Southern 

Nevada 

7 Burton Christopher DO 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 Ambulatory Care 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC-Aliante 

Quick Care 

Page 23 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 3 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

8 Campbell Eleanor APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Hematology/O

ncology 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

OptumCare 

Cancer Care 

9 Carlson Brian MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Gastroenterolo

gy 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Digestive 

Associates 

10 Cook Albert MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 Radiology 

Affiliate Initial 

FPPE Membership 

and Privileges 

UMC 

Radiology 

11 Curry James MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Surgery/General Surgery 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Desert West 

Surgery 

12 Damasco Ty Edeson MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Intermountain 

Healthcare NV 

13 Doubrava Mark MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Surgery/Ophthalmology 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Eye Care for 

Nevada 

14 Falk Jesse DMD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Surgery/Oral/Maxillofacia

l Surgery 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Canyon Oral & 

Facial Surgery 

15 Flores Carmen MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Department of Surgery/                          

General / Trauma Critical 

Care / Trauma Surgery / 

Trauma Surgery 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC General 

Surgery 

16 Garcia Olga MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Surgery/General Surgery 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UNLV 

Medicine 

17 Hunter Gregory DMD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Surgery/Oral/Maxillofacia

l Surgery 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Nevada Oral & 

Facial Surgery 

Page 24 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 4 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

18 Hwang Alexander MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 

Emergency 

Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Office of 

Military 

Medicine 

19 Jeffries Justin MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 

Medicine(/Pulmonary 

Medicine/Respiratory 

Care) 

Affiliate Initial 

FPPE Membership 

and Privileges UNLV Health 

20 Jones Jedediah MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Orthopaedic Surgery                                 

Hand Surgery 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Hand Surgery 

Specialists of 

Nevada 

21 Jourdan Manal APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC Online 

Care 

22 Kato Lynne PAC 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Emergency 

Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine 

APP Dependent 

Privileges 

UMC 

Emergency 

Medicine 

23 Keeley Katherine 

DDS, 

MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Surgery/Oral/Maxillofacia

l Surgery 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Katherine A. 

Keeley, MD, 

DDS 

24 Kenneally David MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 

Anesthesiology,                                       

Trauma Anesthesia 

Affiliate Initial 

FPPE Membership 

and Privileges 

UMC 

Anesthesia 

25 Macaspac Khelsey APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Kidney 

Specialists of 

Southern 

Nevada 

26 

Matsunaga-

Kirgan Marsha MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UNLV 

Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 

27 Mayes Annette MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges to 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges UNLV Health 

Page 25 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 5 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

28 McGill Faith APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 Ambulatory Care 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC-Peccole 

Ranch Quick 

Care 

29 Mull Robert MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC Online 

Care 

30 Navarro Cybill DO 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC Online 

Care 

31 Netski Alison MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Medicine/Psychiatry 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges UNLV Health 

32 Nguyen Daniel DO 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Anesthesia 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Mike 

O'Callaghan 

Military 

Medical 

Center 

33 Nguyen Khoa MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Radiology 

Affiliate Initial 

FPPE Membership 

and Privileges 

Medicus 

Healthcare 

Solutions 

34 Nguyen Tuan MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC-

Summerlin 

Quick Care 

35 Otuwa Samson MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Anesthesia & Trauma 

Anesthesia 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC 

Anesthesia 

36 Pacumbaba Mariz APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Ambulatory Care 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC-Aliante 

Quick Care 

37 Patterson Joshua MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 

Pediatrics/Pediatric 

Critical Care 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Office of 

Military 

Medicine 

Page 26 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 6 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

38 Pinto-Florez Damaris APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 Ambulatory Care 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC Primary 

Care at the 

Medical 

District 

39 Raroque Sabrina MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Platinum 

Hospitalists 

40 Ratkiewicz Donnene APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 Medicine/Nephrology 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Kidney 

Specialists of 

Southern 

Nevada 

41 Singh Raj MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

HEALOR - 

Primary Care 

42 Teng Angelie PAC 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 Surgery/Plastic Surgery 

APP Dependent 

Privileges UNLV Health 

43 Thorson Tague MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Pulmonary 

Medicine/Respiratory 

Care 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges UNLV Health 

44 Tian Sisi MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2026 Surgery/Otolaryngology 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges UNLV Health 

45 Urban Amy MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Emergency 

Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine & 

Trauma Emergency 

Medicine 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC 

Emergency 

Medicine 

46 Vera Angelina MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Orthopaedic Surgery 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC 

Orthopedic & 

Spine Institute 

47 Wang Robert MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Obstetrics and 

Gynecology 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges UNLV Health 

Page 27 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 7 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

48 White Kathleen APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Orthopaedic Surgery 

APP Independent 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Desert 

Orthopaedic 

Center 

49 Wong Waylan MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 Anesthesiology 

Affiliate 

Membership and 

Privileges 

UMC 

Anesthesia 

50 Wu Xinyun APRN 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

APP Dependent 

Privileges 

Pioneer Health 

Care 

51 Young Colby MD 

02/01/2025 - 

01/31/2027 

Orthopaedic Surgery & 

Orthopaedic Hand 

Surgery 

Active 

Membership and 

Privileges 

Hand Surgery 

Specialists of 

Nevada 

  

C.      MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES AT REAPPOINTMENT 

1 Abdulla Farooq M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2027 Pediatrics/Neonatology 

Withdraw: Moderate and Deep sedation 
from CORE  

2 Al-Khazaali Marwah M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

Withdraw: Total Parenteral Nutrition 
TPN (never received criteria) 

3 Cook Albert M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2026 Radiology New privilege:  Moderate sedation  

4 Curry James M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2027 Surgery/General Surgery 

New Privilege: Amputation        
Withdraw: Laparoscopic Adjustable 
Gastric Band Surgery.  

5 Flores Carmen M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2027 

Department of Surgery/                          
General / Trauma 

Critical Care / Trauma 
Surgery  

New Privilege:  Amputations (on General 
Surgery DOP) 

6 Hwang Alexander M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2026 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine 
Withdraw: Refer and Follow, and 
Ambulatory.  

7 Jeffries Justin M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2026 

Medicine(/Pulmonary 
Medicine/Respiratory 

Care) 
New Privilege: Internal Medicine                            
Withdraw: Refer and Follow. 

Page 28 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 8 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

8 Jones Jedediah M.D. 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2027 

 

Orthopaedic Surgery                                 
Hand Surgery New Privilege = Telemedicine  

9 Kato Lynne PAC 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine 
Withdraw: Pediatric Patients,  Focused 
/Emergency Ultrasound 

10 Macaspac Khelsey APRN 
 02/01/2025 - 
01/31/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

New Privilege: Pediatric Patients, Initiate 
a treatment plan                                      
Withdraw:  Cleanse and Debride 
wounds.   

11 Nguyen Khoa MD 
02/01/2025-
01/31/2027 Radiology/Telerad 

Withdraw: Routine Plain Film and 
Fluoroscopy Interpretation, Ultrasound 
Interpretations and Ultrasound Guided 
Procedures, Computed Tomography and 
CT Guided Procedures, Magnetic 
Resonance Imaging, Nuclear Medicine 
Interpretation and Procedures 

12 Pacumbaba Mariz APRN 
02/01/2025-
01/31/2027 UMC Ambulatory Withdraw: Perform venipuncture 

13 Thorson Tague MD 
02/01/2025-
01/31/2027 Critical Care Pulmonary New Privilege: Internal Medicine 

14 Vera Angelina MD 
02/01/2025-
01/31/2027 UMC Ortho New Privilege: Tumor Surgery 

15 Wang Robert MD 
02/01/2025-
01/31/2027 OB/GYN 

New Privilege: Abdominal; Colpocscopies 
and LEEP Excisions; Hysteroscopic 
Endometrial Ablation; Hysteroscopy 
Operative; Laparoscopy with or without 
biopsy..; Laparoscopic Diagnostic; 
Hysterscopic Diagnosis  

16 Young Colby MD 
02/01/2025-
01/31/2027 

Hand Surgery Specialists 
of Nevada 

New Privilege: Replantation of upper 
extremity and digits 

 

D.       MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES 

1 Kuruvilla Kevin MD 

Surgery/General Surgery  
Trauma/Surgery Critical 

Care 
Modification of Privileges: New privilege: Deep Sedation (Per 
Hospital Policy) 

2 Nguyen Khoa MD Radiology/Telerad 

Modification of Privileges: Withdraw - Routine Plain Fillm and 
Fluoroscopy Interpretation, Ultrasound Interpretations and 
Ultrasound Guided Procesdures, Computed Tomography and CT 

Page 29 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 9 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

Guided Procedures, Computed Tomography and CT Guided 
Procedures, Magnetic Resonance Imaging, Nuclear Medicine 
Interpretation and Procedures 

3 Orevillo Joel MD Medicine/ Pulmonary 
Modification of Privileges: Withdraw Internal Medicine due to 
failure to complete FPPE 

4 Umberger Jamie DO Surgery/General Surgery 
Modification of Privilege: New Department - Trauma Critical 
Care 

 

E.      EXTENSION OF INITIAL PPE  

1 Charles Paul CRNA Anesthesiology 
Extend FPPE – Extend FPPE for Arterial Line // Pediatric > 10 years old 
until June 2025 

2 Powers Jenifer MD Orthopedic Surgery Extend FPPE - Extend FPPE for Arthroscopic Surgery // Tumor Surgery 

3 Shah Ami MD 

Emergency 
Medicine/ Pediatric 

Emergency 
Medicine Extend FPPE – Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation until June 2025 

4 Tanner Adriana MD Medicine/Neurology Extend Initial FPPE through June 2025 due to not able to provide cases 

5 Torgerson Erica CRNA Anesthesiology Extend FPPE – Extend FPPE for Central Line 

 

F.      CHANGE IN STAFF STATUS / COMPLETION OF INITIAL FPPE 

1 Empey Lonnie DO 
Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

2 Frimer Leora MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

3 Guzman Eloise MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

4 Heshmati Keyvan MD Medicine/Neurology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

5 Hui 
Chui Man 
Carmen MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

6 Igtiben Christopher MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

Page 30 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 10 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

7 Jasinto Melissa MD 
Pediatrics/ 
Cardiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

8 Lee Eden MD Medicine/Psychiatry 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

9 Li Charles MD Anesthesiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

10 Mercadante Austin MD 
Pediatrics/ 
Cardiology  

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

11 Naji Zaid M.D. 
Medicine/ Internal 

Medicine  

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

12 Quezada Yarini MD  OB GYN 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

13 Ricalde Tomas MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

14 Roth Taylor MD Emergency Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

15 Schirding Stephanie MD Ambulatory Care 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

16 Velez David MD General Surgery 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

17 Vidan Erez MD Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

18 Weisman Nicholas MD Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

19 Weller Ty MD Anesthesiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges - Completion of FPPE 

 

 

G.       COMPLETION OF FPPE FOR NEW DEPARMENT/PRIVILEGES 

1 Ahsan Chowdhury MD Medicine/ Cardiology 

Completion of FPPE – Transcatheter Aortic Valve 

Replacement (TAVR) 

2 Bent Geraldine APRN 

Surgery/ Cardiovascular & 

Thoracic Completion of FPPE – Epicardial Pacing Wires 

Page 31 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 11 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

3 Flores Carmen MD Surgery/Trauma Burn Completion of FPPE - Trauma Burn 

4 Gururaj Arjun MD Medicine/ Cardiology 

Completion of FPPE – LAAO (Left Atrial Appendage 

Occlusion) 

5 Micev Alan MD 

Orthopedic Surgery & 

Hand Surgery 

Completion of FPPE - New Privileges (Ortho Surgery Section 

of Hand DOP): Telemedicine  // (Ortho Surgery DOP): 

Telemedicine 

6 Rane Santosh MD Medicine/Cardiology Completion of FPPE – Telemedicine 

7 Shaw Lawrence MD 

Obstetrics and 

Gynecology Completion of FPPE – Colposcopies and LEEP Excisions 

8 Stewart David MD Orthopedic Surgery 

Completion of FPPE – LIGAMENT/TENDON 

TRANSFER/REPAIR SURGERY 

9 Williams Jon MD Surgery/ General Surgery Completion of FPPE – da Vinci Robotic 

 

H.    REQUEST FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE       

1 Bergin Samuel MD  

Emergency Medicine/Adult 
Emergency Medicine  

Trauma/Emergency Medicine 
UMC Emergency 

Medicine / Military Request for LOA – Military Leave 

2 Caverly Erin DO 
Surgery/General Surgery  
Trauma/General Surgery UNLV Health / Military Request for LOA – Military Leave 

3 Choy Kaitlyn APRN Surgery/ CVT 
Vegas Vascular 

Specialists Request for LOA – Personal Leave  

4 Erickson Davis  MD 
Anesthesiology/  

Trauma/Anesthesia 
Office of Military 

Medicine Request for LOA – Military Leave 
 

I.    REMOVAL/RESIGNATIONS   

1 Arcega Ramir DO Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation – Contract with 
UMC ends 12/14/2024 

2 Baude Jacqueline MD Family Medicine 319th Medical Group 
Remove from Staff – Military 
Rotator 

3 Bentz Joel MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

4 Chu Weiming MD 
Medicine / 
Psychiatry UNLV Health 

Resignation – Change in 
Contracted Group 

5 Gentile Micah PAC 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency 
Medicine 

Office of Military 
Medicine 

Resignation - Rotator ENDING 
PRIVILEGES 12/31/24 

Page 32 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 12 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

6 Golden Kevin MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

7 
Gonzalez 
Longoria Abel MD Pathology 

Laboratory Medicine 
Consultants 

Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

8 Goodwin Joshua MD 
Medicine/Internal 

Medicine Centeno Schultz Clinic 
Resignation effective 
01/31/2025 

9 Greenspan Matthew MD 
Radiology / 

Telerad Medicus Resignation 

10 Hartenstine Javi DO Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

11 Hughes Jonathan MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

12 Ingle Rajendrakumar MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

13 Jackson Jason MD Anesthesiology US Anesthesia Partners Resignation form.12/6/24 

14 Jones Kendall MD Radiology 
Medicus Healthcare 

Solutions Resignation email 10/9 

15 Khan Omar MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

16 Marmaduke David MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

17 
Mhawech 
Fauceglia Paulette MD Pathology 

Laboratory Medicine 
Consultants 

Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

18 Milyani Wa'el MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

19 Samrao Damanzoopinder MD Pathology 
Laboratory Medicine 

Consultants 
Resignation - Contract ending 
with UMC 12/15/2024 

20 Shehane Richard MD 
Medicine/Cardiolo

gy Nevada Heart & Vascular Resignation - 10 Day notice 

21 Sturgill Emily MD Anesthesiology 
Mike O'Callaghan 

Military Medical Center Resignation – Relocating 

22 Volk Peter MD Anesthesiology 
Surgical Anesthesia 

Services, LL 
Resignation - No longer works at 
UMC 

23 Ward Herman MD Anesthesiology 
Global Anesthesia 

Consultants 
Resignation – Non Renewed NV 
Pharmacy License 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                         Page 13 

GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                         January 29, 2025 

   

 

                                                                                                                                 

 

J.   CHANGE IN STATUS  

1 Davies Emily DO 
Pediatrics/Pediatric Critical 

Care 
Change in Staff Status - Affiliate Membership and Privileges to 
Active with Membership and Privileges 

2 Keeley Katherine 
DDS, 
MD 

Surgery/Oral/Maxillofacial 
Surgery 

Change in Staff Status - Active with Membership and Privileges to 
Affiliate with Membership and Privileges 

3 Ukken Johnson MD Family Medicine 
Change in Staff Status - Affiliate Membership and Privileges to 
Active with Membership and Privileges 

 

 

Page 34 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 1 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 
Date:   January 29, 2025 
To:   Governing Board  
From:  Credentials Committee  
Subject:  January 16, 2025 Credentialing Activities 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS  
 

II. CREDENTIALS 

A. INITIAL FPPE FOR MEMBERSHIP AND PRIVILEGES 
 

1 Al-Nattah Sanaa MD 
01/28/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 

2 Baydoun Salah MD 
01/28/2025 - 
01/31/2027 Emergency 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 1 

3 Bickford Brant DO 
01/28/2025 - 
01/31/2026 Military Rotator 

Mike O'Callaghan 
Military Hospital 1 

4 Bindrup James DO 
01/28/2025 - 
07/31/2027 Emergency Medicine 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 1 

5 Black Christopher  MD 
01/28/2025 - 
10/31/2027 Internal Medicine Pioneer 1 

6 Burns Charles MD 
01/28/2025 - 
10/31/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 

7 Cheng Whay-Yih DO 
01/28/2025 - 
01/31/2026 Military Rotator 

Mike O'Callaghan 
Military Hospital 1 

8 Dhillon Rajesh MD 
01/28/2025 - 
06/30/2027 Radiology UMC Radiology 1 

9 Dowdy Kristen DO 
01/18/2025 - 
01/31/2026 Military Rotator 

Mike O'Callaghan 
Military Hospital 1 

10 Kim Stacy MD 
01/28/2025 - 
04/30/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 

11 McBean  Melvin PAC 
01/28/2025 - 
07/31/2027 Orthopaedic Surgery 

Mike O'Callaghan 
Military Hospital 1 

12 Nahas Elif MD 
01/28/2025 - 
08/31/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 

13 Qiu Wansong MD 
01/28/2025 - 
05/31/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 

14 Ramesh Divya APRN 
01/28/2025 - 
12/31/2027 

General 
Surgery/Trauma 

Surgery UNLV 1 

15 Rodriguez Laura PAC 
01/28/2025 - 
05/31/2027 Othropaedic Surgery 

UMC Orthopedic and 
Spine Institute 1 

16 Scamman Willard MD 
01/28/2025 - 
04/30/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 

17 Strauss Jonathan MD 
01/28/2025 - 
08/31/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 

Page 35 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 2 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

18 Wang Jeff MD 
01/28/2025 - 
04/30/2027 Pathology 

Associated 
Pathologists, 

Chartered 1 
 

B. REAPPOINTMENTS TO STAFF 

1 Baltrune Evelina APRN 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Kidney 
Specialists of 

Southern 
Nevada 

2 Bell Don MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 Radiology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC Radiology 

3 Blaker Melissa DO 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 

Surgery/Cardiovasc
ular/Thoracic 

Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Nevada Heart 
and Vascular 

Center 

4 Bratton Anthony MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery, Trauma 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Orthopedic 
& Spine Institute 

5 Cabrera Sophia APRN 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery/Orthopaedi

c Surgery 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Orthopedic 
& Spine Institute 

6 Candela Joseph MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Surgery/Urology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Las Vegas 
Urology 

7 Caverly Erin DO 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Surgery/General 
Surgery, Trauma 

Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges UNLV Health 

8 Chang Alexander MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Centennial 
Quick Care 

9 Cooper Tristan MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency 
Medicine 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

10 Dettling James MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery/Orthopaedi

c Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

James R. 
Dettling, MD 

Page 36 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 3 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

11 Dorian Jason DO 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 Family Medicine 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges UNLV Medicine 

12 Gomez Nadia MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Obstetrics and 
Gynecology 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UNLV Obstetrics 
and Gynecology 

13 Habashy Hosny MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Anesthesiology 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC Anesthesia 

14 Hsu Andrew MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 

Medicine/Physical 
Medicine/Rehabilita

tion 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Neuromonitorin
g Associates 

15 Kane Michael MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 Ambulatory Care 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Enterprise 
Quick Care 

16 Khawaja Hasan MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Anesthesiology 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Red Rock 
Anesthesia 

Consultants, LLC 

17 Kottapalli Sai DO 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Surgery/Cardiovasc
ular/Thoracic 

Surgery 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Vegas Vascular 
Specialists 

18 Luu Vu MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Anesthesiology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Battle Born 
Anesthesia 

19 Obert David DO 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine, 

Emergency 
Pediatrics, Trauma 

Emergency 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

20 Penfil Richard MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 Radiology 

Affiliate Initial 
FPPE 

Membership 
and Privileges UMC Radiology 

21 Plummer Kristine APRN 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Ambulatory Care 

APP Active 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Peccole 
Ranch Primary 

Care 

Page 37 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 4 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

22 Roces Noreen APRN 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Medicine/Internal 
Medicine 

APP 
Independent 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Platinum 
Hospitalists 

23 Rollins Robert MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Pediatrics 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Children's Heart 
Center Nevada 

24 Saleem Kamron MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Kidney 
Specialists of 

Southern 
Nevada 

25 Saqueton Consolacion MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Pediatrics/Pediatric 
Critical Care 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Las Vegas 
Pediatric Critical 

Care 

26 Shamloo Behrooz MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Medicine/Hematolo
gy/Oncology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Integrative 
Cancer Care of 

Nevada 

27 Smith Robert MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Anesthesiology, 
Trauma Anesthesia 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC Anesthesia 

28 Snyder Bruce MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Surgery/Ophthalmol
ogy 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

to Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Bruce E. Snyder, 
MD 

29 Strebel Kord MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Obstetrics and 
Gynecology 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

to Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

Women's Health 
Associates of 
Southern NV 

30 Subin Bill MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Anesthesiology 

Affiliate 
Membership 
and Privileges 

US Anesthesia 
Partners 

31 Sugay Rosanne MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Wellness 
Center 

32 Sylvain Gerald MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery, Trauma 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Orthopedic 
& Spine Institute 

Page 38 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 5 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

33 Trautwein Johnn MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine/Pediatric 

Emergency 
Medicine 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC Emergency 
Medicine 

34 Truong Trang APRN 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 

Orthopaedic 
Surgery/Orthopaedi

c Surgery 
APP Initial FPPE 

Privileges 
UMC Orthopedic 
& Spine Institute 

35 Vornicu Maria MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Medicine/Nephrolo
gy 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges NKDHC PLLC 

36 Vu Huan MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Ambulatory Care 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges 

UMC-Spring 
Valley Quick 

Care 

37 Yu Jefferson MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Medicine/Internal 
Medicine 

Active 
Membership 
and Privileges UMC Hospitalists 

 

 C.      MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES AT REAPPOINTMENT 

1 Baltrune Evelina APRN 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Medicine/Nephrology Withdraw Privilege: Telemedicine 

2 Blaker Melissa DO 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2026 

Surgery/Cardiovascular/
Thoracic Surgery 

Withdraw Privilege: Ambulatory, 
Vascular Procedures, Modified Minimally 
Invasive Maze 

3 Bratton Anthony MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Orthopaedic Surgery, 
Trauma Orthopaedic 

Surgery New Privilege:= Telemedicine 

4 Candela Joseph MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Surgery/Urology 

Withdraw Privilege: Ambulatory.            
New Privileges: *Laparoscopic 
Procedures, *Penoscrotal/Urethral 
surgery, *Laparoscopic urological surgery 
and *Interstim therapy for urinary 
control. 

5 Caverly Erin DO 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Surgery/General 
Surgery, Trauma Surgery 

Withdraw Privileges: Da Vinci robot, and 
Advanced Laparoscopic surgery. 

6 Cooper Tristan MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine New Privilege: Trauma DOP 

7 Gomez Nadia MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 

Obstetrics and 
Gynecology 

New Privileges: *Sacrocolpopexy                                    
Withdraw Privilege: Incisional Hernia 
Repair with Mesh. 

Page 39 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 6 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

8 Khawaja Hasan MD 
03/01/2025 - 
02/28/2027 Anesthesiology 

Withdraw Privilege: Open Heart Surgery 
Anesthesia and Transesophageal 
Echocardiography. 

9 Kottapalli Sai DO 
03/01/2025  -
02/28/2027 

General 
Surgery/Cardiovascular/

Thoracic Surgery 
New Privilege: New Department – 
General Surgery 

10 Obert David DO 
03/01/2025-
02/28/2027 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency Medicine & 
Trauma Emergency 

Medicine 
Withdraw Privilege: Pediatric Emergency 
Medicine Department 

11 Penfil Richard MD 
03/01/2025-
02/28/2027 Radiology 

Withdraw Privileges: Routine Plain Film 
and Fluoroscopy Interpretation, 
Ultrasound Interpretation and 
Ultrasound Guided Procedures, 
Computed Tomography and CT Guided 
Procedures, Magnetic Resonance 
Imaging, Nuclear Medicine Interpretation 
and Procedures 

12 Saleem Kamron MD 
03/01/2025-
02/28/2027 Medicine/Nephrology 

New Privilege: Total Parenteral Nutrition 
(TPN) 

D.       MODIFICATION OF PRIVILEGES 

1 Blaker Melissa DO 
Surgery/Cardiovascular/T
horacic Surgery 

Modification of Privileges: Withdraw Privileges = Ambulatory 
and Vascular Procedures, Modified minimally invasive Maze 

2 Chen George DO 

Ambulatory Care/Quick 
Care & Medicine / 
Internal Medicine 

Modification of Privileges:  New Department = Medicine / 
Internal Medicine  

3 Green Tammy APRN 

Ambulatory Care/Quick 
Care & Emergency 
Medicine 

Modification of Privileges: New Department = Emergency 
Medicine / Adult 

4  Jackson  David MD OB GYN 

Modification of Privileges: Withdraw Privileges = Category III 
Gynecologic / Abdominal / Vaginal (Hysterectomy with or 
without removal of adnexa, and Bladder suspension) / 
Colposcopies and LEEP Excisions / Laparoscopy with or 
without biopsy; Salpingostomy or Salpingectomy; Ectopic 
pregnancy; Ovarian cyst aspiration; removal / Laparscopic 
Diagnostic / Resection of Uterine Septum or Myoma / Fetal 
Thoracentesis / Intrauterine Transfusion / PUBS Percutaneous 
Umbilical Blood Sampling  

5 McNickle Allison MD 

Surgery/General Surgery  
Trauma/Surgery Critical 

Care  
Trauma/General Surgery 

Modification of Privileges: New Privilege = (General Surgery 
DOP): Amputations  //                                                                                    
New Privilege = (Trauma Critical Care DOP): Management of 
Intracranial Pressure Monitoring // Diagnosis and treatment 
of ICU acquired infection  

6 Mody Pooja DO Surgery/General Surgery 

Modification of Privileges: New Privileges = Endoscopy: 
Esophagoscopy, Gastroscopy, Colonoscopy // Bariatric Surgery 
// Advanced Laparoscopic Surgery 

7 Palmer Elissa MD Family Medicine 
Modification of Privileges: Withdraw Privilege = Obstetrical 
Family Medicine for failure to complete FPPE 

Page 40 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 7 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

8 Prandecki Ashely MD 

Medicine/  
Ambulatory Care/Quick 

Care 
Modification of Privileges: Withdraw Privilege = Ambulatory 
Care 

9 Reese Lee MD Surgery/General Surgery Modification of Privileges: New Privilege = Amputations 

10 Shah Rita MD Pediatrics 
Modification of Privileges: New Privilege = Pediatric Hospital 
Medicine 

11 Ukken Johnson MD Family Medicine 

Modification of Privileges: Withdraw Privilege = Ambulatory 
Medicine (Outpatient Services Only): For all physicians 
providing ongoing outpatient services to patients at any 
UMCSN Outpatient clinic within the scope of the Department 
of Family Medicine Delineation of Privileges.  

E.      EXTENSION OF INITIAL FPPE  

1 Ball Seth MD 

EM / Adult & 
Pediatric 

Emergency 
Medicine 

Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation through July 2025 
due to not able to provide cases. 

2 Burnette Kreg MD 

EM / Pediatric 
Emergency 
Medicine 

Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation through July 2025 
due to not able to provide cases. 

3 Grissom Daniel MD 

Pediatric 
Emergency 
Medicine 

Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation through July 2025 
due to not able to provide cases. 

4 Horning Sandra MD 

EM / Pediatric 
Emergency 
Medicine 

Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation through July 2025 
due to not able to provide cases. 

5 Kodandapani Keshavan APRN Ambulatory Care 
Extend FPPE for Uncomplicated Excision of ingrown toenail 
through July 2025 due to not able to provide cases. 

6 Kumar Shivesh MD Family Medicine 
Extend Initial FPPE through July 2025 due to not able to 
provide cases 

7 Lewis  Jeffrey MD 
Surgery/General 

Surgery 

Extend FPPE for REBOA & da Vinci through July 2025 due to 
he was on deployment form October 2023 to September 
2024. 

8 Nijim Shadi MD 
Medicine/ 

Nephrology 
Extend FPPE for TPN through July 2025 due to not able to 
provide cases 

9 Norozian Farnaz MD 

EM / Pediatric 
Emergency 
Medicine 

Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation through July 2025 
due to not able to provide cases. 

10 Pineda Myacinth APRN 
Medicine / 
Nephrology 

Extend FPPE for Ability to workup, diagnose of treatment or 
consultative and provision of treatment or consultative 
services to patient's illnesses and disorders of the kidneys 
through July 2025 due to not able to provide cases. 

11 Pruangkarn Susanna APRN 
Medicine/ 
Pulmonary 

Extend FPPE for Placement of Arterial, Central, Venous, and 
Pulmonary lines through July 2025 due to not able to 
provide cases 

12 Trautwein Johnn MD 

EM / Pediatric 
Emergency 
Medicine 

Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation through July 2025 
due to not able to provide cases. 

13 Walker Don MD 

EM / Pediatric 
Emergency 
Medicine 

Extend FPPE for Nitrous Oxide Sedation through July 2025 
due to not able to provide cases. 

Page 41 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 8 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

14 Wang Yusharn APRN Family Medicine 
Extend Initial FPPE through July 2025 due to not able to 
provide cases 

F.      CHANGE IN STAFF STATUS / COMPLETION OF INITIAL FPPE 

1 Agrawal Roli MD Radiology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

2 Aquino Fema MD Medicine/Internal 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

3 Ash Jordan DO 
EM / Adult & 

Trauma 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

4 Attenasio Andrea DO 
Orthopedic 

Surgery / Trauma 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

5 Chen George DO Ambulatory Care 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

6 Connery Grissim DO Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

7 Dossaji Zahra DO 

Internal Medicine 
/ Ambulatory 

Care/Quick Care 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

8 Folad Wally MD 
Medicine/ 

Internal 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

9 Kegan Christopher DO Ambulatory Care 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

10 MacDavid Joshua MD General Surgery 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

11 Manhart Racheal MD 
EM / Adult & 

Trauma 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

12 Marinaro Lizabeth MD Pathology 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

13 McClintock Eric MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

14 Miller Liliana APRN Medicine/Internal 
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial FPPE 
Privileges to APP Independent Membership Privileges 

15 Narala Sai MD Medicine/Internal 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

16 Nguyen Holly DO Ambulatory Care 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

17 Nizamani Rabia MD Surgery/Trauma 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

Page 42 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 9 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

18 Petsche Julie CRNA Anesthesiology 
Change in Staff Status - Release from APP Initial FPPE 
Privileges to APP Dependent Privileges 

19 Prandecki Ashley MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

20 Roose Joshua DO Ambulatory Care 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

21 Shih Juliann MD Internal Medicine 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

22 Worth Charles DO 
EM / Adult & 

Trauma 

Change in Staff Status - Release from Affiliate Initial FPPE 
Membership and Privileges to Affiliate Membership and 
Privileges-Completion of FPPE 

 
G.       COMPLETION OF FPPE FOR NEW DEPARMENT/PRIVILEGES 

1 Chimelski Erica MD Medicine/Pulmonary  Completion of FPPE - ECMO 

2 Magoyag Sikisam MD 
Medicine/Internal & 
Ambulatory Care Completion of FPPE - Ambulatory Care Department/Privileges 

3 Pearce Rexford MD 
Anesthesiology & 
Trauma/Anesthesia Completion of FPPE – Trauma Privileges 

H.       REQUEST FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE       

1 Okuyemi Oluwafunmilola MD Surgery/Otolaryngology UNLV 
Request for LOA – Change in group, 
time constraints 

 

I. REMOVAL/RESIGNATIONS  

1 Acherman Ruben MD Pediatrics 
Children's Heart 
Center Nevada 

Resignation - No reason 
provided  

2 Beilstein Alana APRN Pediatrics UMC Neonatology Resignation 

3 Ciccolo Michael MD 

Surgery / 
Cardiovascular/Thora

cic Surgery 
Children's Heart 
Center Nevada 

Resignation - No reason 
provided  

4 Coggeshall  David  MD Anesthesiology Medicus Healthcare 10 Day notice - no response 

5 Granroth Kara APRN Emergency Medicine USAF Military Rotator 
Remove from Staff – Military 
Rotator  

6 Hicks Randall APRN Medicine/Pulmonary Military 
Resignation - Military training 
completion 

7 Koroscil Michael MD Emergency Medicine Military 
Voluntary Resignation - 
getting out of the military 

8 Lee Anthony MD Anesthesiology PBS Anesthesia 
RESIGNATION form signed 
9/25/24 

9 Lehrner Lawrence MD Medicine/Nephrology 
Kidney Specialists of 

Southern Nevada 

EFFECTIVE 2/28/2025 - SEE 
RESIGNATION SAVED UNDER 
CASES 

Page 43 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA                       Page 10 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA                                      January 29, 2025   

 

10 Patel Sanket MD Medicine/Internal Platinum Hospitalists 
Group not reappointing him 
at UMC 

11 Repko Brandon MD Anesthesiology UMC Radiology Resignation 

12 Rhoads Jennifer DO Anesthesiology Medicus Healthcare 10 Day notice - no response 

13 Wiederholt Bryan CRNA Anesthesiology UMC Anesthesia Resigning February 2, 2025 

J.  CHANGE IN STATUS  

1 Cooper Tristan MD 

Emergency 
Medicine/Adult 

Emergency 
Medicine 

Active with Membership and Privileges to Affiliate with 
Membership and Privileges  

2 Khawaja Hasan MD Anesthesiology 
Active with Membership and Privileges to Affiliate with 
Membership and Privileges  

K. PINK – OFF CYCLE 

1 Lewis Jeffrey MD Surgery/General Surgery Mike O'Callaghan Military Medical Center 

2 Ryu Jeffrey MD Medicine/Nephrology NKDHC, PLLC 

 

L.  ADJOURNMENT   

 

 

Page 44 of 220 



 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

5 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Ratification of the Amendment to the Hospital Services Agreement 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner:        Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
That the Governing Board ratify the Amendment to the Hospital Services Agreement with 
Aetna Health, Inc. for managed care services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Fund Number:  5430.011                                                            Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Number:  3000850000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description:  Managed Care Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(f) – Insurance  
Term:  Through 12/31/2027 
Amount: Revenue based on volume  
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
Since May 2002, UMC has had an agreement with Aetna Health, Inc. (“Aetna”) for managed care services.  
Amendment 001, effective January 1, 2017, updated the rate schedules (2017) and extended the Term through 
December 31, 2017.  Amendment 002, effective January 1, 2018, updated the rate schedules (2018) and 
extended the Term through December 31, 2018.  Amendment 003, effective January 1, 2019, updated the rate 
schedules (2019 to 2021) and extended the Term through December 31, 2021. Amendment 004 requested 
approval for UMC to join Aetna Exchange Plan’s Qualified Health Plan (“QHP”).  Amendment 005 extended 
Term of the agreement and rendered Transplant Services through December 31, 2023. Amendment 006, 
effective November 1, 2022 updated Compensation Schedule and the Multi-Specialty Service & Rate 
Schedule. Amendment 007 effective January 1, 2024, updated Rate Schedules. A letter of extension dated July 
31, 2024 extended the Term of the Transplant Services associated with this Hospital Services Agreement until 
December 31, 2024.  
  
This request is to ratify the Amendment in order to extend the expiration date of the Transplant Services from 
December 31, 2024 to December 31, 2027 and update the Compensation Schedule. Ratification was necessary 
as there were approximately fourteen (14) Aetna members on the UMC Transplant waitlist and another thirty 
(30) members being evaluated for waitlist placement.  
 
UMC’s Director of Managed Care reviewed and recommends ratification of this Amendment.  This 
Amendment was approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
A Clark County business license is not required as UMC is the provider of hospital services to this insurance 
fund. 

Page 45 of 220 



Page Number 
2 

 
This amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their January 22, 
2025 meeting and recommended for ratification by the Governing Board. 
 
 

Page 46 of 220 



Page 47 of 220 



CEO

Mason Van Houweling

12/20/24  12/20/2024

Page 48 of 220 



TRANSPLANT SERVICES SCHEDULE 

For: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Effective: January 1, 2025 

 

 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

  

Page 49 of 220 



TRANSPLANT SERVICES AND RATE SCHEDULE 

TRANSPLANT GLOBAL CASE RATE – SOLID ORGAN 

Effective Date: January 1, 2025 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

 

Page 50 of 220 



 

REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 
they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 

officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 

entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 
Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 

purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 
business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 

location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 
or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 

1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  

 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Page 51 of 220 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 0*  *The personnel who support Aetna Health Inc.’s operations in the State of Nevada are not employees of Aetna 

Health Inc., but rather are employees of affiliate companies. 

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Aetna Health Inc. (a Pennsylvania corporation) 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) N/A 

Street Address: 151 Farmington Avenue, RT21 Website: www.aetna.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Hartford, CT  06156 POC Name: Seres Sosnowski-Abueg 

Email: Sosnowskisd@aetna.com 

Telephone No: 800-872-3862 Fax No: 860-262-7767 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

1140 N. Town Center Drive, Suite 190 Website: www.aetna.com 

 City, State and Zip Code: Las Vegas, NV  89144 Local Fax No: 702-515-3150 

Local Telephone No: 
702-515-3100 Local POC Name: Seres Sosnowski-Abueg 

Email: Sosnowskisd@aetna.com 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or financial 
interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with ownership or financial 
interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, close 
corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

Aetna Health Holdings, LLC  N/A—parent company of Aetna Health Inc.  100% of Aetna Health Inc.  

Aetna Inc.  N/A—parent company of Aetna Health Holdings  100% of Aetna Health Holdings  

CVS Pharmacy, Inc.  N/A—parent company of Aetna Inc.  100% of Aetna Inc.  

CVS Health Corporation**  N/A—ultimate publicly traded parent company  100% of CVS Health Corporation  

**Please see CVS Health Corporation’s 2020 SEC Proxy Statement, dated 4/3/20 and available at https://s2.q4cdn.com/447711729/files/doc_financials/2019/annual/FINAL-CVS-
proxy-bookmarked.pdf and https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/64803/000120677420001053/cvs3650331-def14a.htm, for details about the publicly traded ultimate parent 
company’s  

 

corporate directors and officers.      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or 
appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not perform any 
work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-sister, 
grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure form. 

 

 

 

John Wagner 

 

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

AVP, Chief Network Officer  11/10/2022  

Title  Date  

Page 52 of 220 

http://www.aetna.com/
mailto:Sosnowskisd@aetna.com
http://www.aetna.com/
https://s2.q4cdn.com/447711729/files/doc_financials/2019/annual/FINAL-CVS-proxy-bookmarked.pdf
https://s2.q4cdn.com/447711729/files/doc_financials/2019/annual/FINAL-CVS-proxy-bookmarked.pdf
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/64803/000120677420001053/cvs3650331-def14a.htm


DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 53 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

6 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Amendment to Hospital Services Agreement with Health Direct Partners 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Amendment to the Hospital Services Agreement with Health Direct Partners for Managed 
Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000850000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Managed Care Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115(1)(f) – Insurance 
Term:  5/01/2023 - 4/30/2026 
Amount:  Revenue based on volume 
Out Clause:  90 days w/o cause 
      

BACKGROUND: 
 

On August 30, 2023, the Governing Board approved a Hospital Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with 
Health Direct Partners (“HDP”), which provides HDP members with healthcare access to UMC’s hospital and 
its urgent care facilities.  The term of the Agreement is from May 1, 2023 through April 30, 2026.  
 
This request is to amend the Agreement to add a new Exhibit C-1 which incorporates compensation for 
covered services to Medicaid Members. 
 
UMC’s Director of Managed Care has reviewed and recommends approval of this Amendment.  This 
Amendment has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
A Clark County business license is not required as UMC is the provider of hospital services to this insurance 
fund. 
 
This amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their January 22, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 

Page 54 of 220 



AMENDMENT TO THE HOSPITAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Amendment ("Amendment") to the Hospital Services Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into as of
the 1st day of January, 2025 by and between Health Direct Partners, a Nevada limited liability company
("HDP" or "Health Direct Partners"), and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a licensed
Clark County-owned and operated acute care hospital ("Hospital"). Health Direct Partners and Hospital
.are together referred to as the "Parties."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Hospital Services Agreement on September 1, 2023,
whereby the Hospital provides certain covered services to members of Health Direct Partners;

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to include additional provisions related to
the compensation structure for services provided to HDP members who are covered by Medicaid;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein and in the
Agreement, the Parties hereby agree to the following:

I.  Exhibit C-1, COMPENSATION FOR COVERED SERVICES TO MEDICAID 
MEMBERS shall be added in its entirety

Except as modified by this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the original Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect. In the event of any conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, the terms of 
this Amendment shall prevail.

Page 55 of 220 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates written
below.

Business Associate:
Health Direct Partners

By: ________________________
Name: _______________________
Title: ________________________
Date: ________________________

Covered Entity:
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

By: _________________________
Name: _______________________
Title: ________________________
Date: ________________________

Exhibit C-1
   Medicaid Payment Schedule

The University Medical Center ("Hospital") agrees to accept payment for services rendered to Health Direct 
Partners ("HDP") members who are covered by Medicaid at a rate equivalent to of the Medicaid 
allowable fee schedule. This payment will be made in accordance with the reimbursement guidelines 
provided by Medicaid, and all claims submitted by the Hospital will adhere to the billing and payment 
procedures established under the Medicaid program.

Jack London
CEO and Founder
12/10/2024

Mason Van Houweling
Chief Executive Officer

Page 56 of 220 



Page 57 of 220 



Page 58 of 220 



Page 59 of 220 



 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

7 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Ratification of the Provider Services Agreement with Hometown Health 

Plan, Inc., and Hometown Health Providers Insurance Company, Inc. 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner:        Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board ratify the Provider Services Agreement with Hometown 
Health Plan, Inc. and Hometown Health Providers Insurance Company, Inc. for Managed 
Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Fund Number:  5430.011                                                            Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Number:  3000850000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description:  Managed Care Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(f) – Insurance  
Term:  12/1/2024 – 9/1/2027  
Amount: Revenue based on volume 
Out Clause:  120 business days w/o cause  
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
On August 28, 2024, the Governing Board approved a Letter or Agreement (“LOA”) with Hometown Health 
Plan, Inc., and Hometown Health Providers Insurance Company, Inc. (“Hometown”) effective as of July 1, 
2024. The LOA established a reimbursement rate as payment for UMC Emergency Medicine Professional 
Services and Hospitalist Professional Services and was effective for ninety (90) days.  
 
This request is to enter into a more definitive Provider Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with Hometown to 
increase reimbursement rates for Primary Care and Urgent Care Services and to add rates of reimbursement 
for UMC Emergency Medicine Professional Services, Hospitalist Professional Services, and all other Hospital 
Based Physician services.  The Agreement will be effective from December 1, 2024 through September 1, 
2027, renewable for successive one-year increments upon mutual written agreement by the parties.  The 
Agreement needed to be entered into immediately so that physicians could be credentialed as soon as possible. 
 
UMC’s Director of Managed Care has reviewed and recommends ratification of this Agreement.  The 
Agreement was approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
A Clark County business license is not required as UMC is the provider of hospital services to this insurance 
fund. 
 

Page 60 of 220 



Page Number 
2 

This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their January 22, 2025 
meeting and recommended for ratification by the Governing Board. 

Page 61 of 220 



Page 62 of 220 



Page 63 of 220 



Page 64 of 220 



Page 65 of 220 



Page 66 of 220 



Page 67 of 220 



Page 68 of 220 



Page 69 of 220 



Page 70 of 220 



Page 71 of 220 



Page 72 of 220 



Page 73 of 220 



Page 74 of 220 



Page 75 of 220 



Page 76 of 220 



Page 77 of 220 



EXHIBIT A 

PRACTICE LOCATIONS 

 

 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

  

Page 78 of 220 



EXHIBIT B 

CREDENTIALING  

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

 

  

Page 79 of 220 



EXHIBIT C-1 

ALL COMMERCIAL HMO PLANS 

REIMBURSEMENT TERMS 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

 

  

Page 80 of 220 



EXHIBIT C-2 

Commercial Fully Insured PPO, Self-Funded,  

Third Party Administrator, Lease PLANS 

REIMBURSMENT TERMS 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

  

Page 81 of 220 



EXHIBIT C-3 

SENIOR CARE PLUS HMO/PLANS 

REIMBURSEMENT TERMS 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

  

Page 82 of 220 



ATTACHMENT MA-D 

MEDICARE ADVANTAGE 

PARTICIPATION 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature.] 

 

  

Page 83 of 220 



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D95B6D82-4FB5-4E8F-96B5-6A1B5843902A

Page 84 of 220 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Hometown Health Providers Insurance Company, Inc. Hometown Health Plan, Inc. 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) OneHealth 

Street Address: 10315 Professional Cir.  Website: Hometownhealth.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Reno, NV 89512 POC Name: Danae Lear 

Email: Dlear@hometownhealth.com 

Telephone No: 775-982-3008 Fax No: 775-982-3751 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 
 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

      

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D95B6D82-4FB5-4E8F-96B5-6A1B5843902A

8/17/2021 | 18:32 PDT

David Hansen

CEO Hometown Health

Page 85 of 220 



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D95B6D82-4FB5-4E8F-96B5-6A1B5843902A

Page 86 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

8 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Dialysis Products Purchase Agreement with Vantive US Healthcare LLC  
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Dialysis 
Products Purchase Agreement with Vantive US Healthcare, LLC, for the purchase of dialysis 
products; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000705000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Purchase Agreement for dialysis products 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115(4) – goods commonly used by a hospital 
Term: Five years 
Amount:  $1,800,000 total; $360,000 per year 
Out Clause:  60 days for breach; 90 days for Budget Act/fiscal fund out 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is for UMC to enter into the Dialysis Products Purchase Agreement (“Agreement”) with Vantive 
US Healthcare, LLC, (“Vantive”) where Vantive will provide dialysis products, primarily Primasol and 
Phoxillum, for use with patients with kidney illnesses. This Agreement would allow clinical staff at UMC, 
which ranked first out of 256 programs for its one-year kidney survival rate according to the Scientific 
Registry of Transplant Recipients, to use preferred treatments for renal patients.   
 
UMC will purchase products under the Agreement for a term of five years. The Agreement may be terminated 
by UMC, upon prior written notice to vendor, provided a breach has first occurred or such termination is 
necessitated by Budget Act/fiscal fund out considerations. 
 
UMC’s Supply Chain Services Manager has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  
 
The bid documents and notice of award have been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General 
Counsel. 
 
This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their January 22, 2025 
meeting and recommended for award by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 87 of 220 



Page 88 of 220 



Page 89 of 220 



Page 90 of 220 



Page 91 of 220 



Page 92 of 220 



Page 93 of 220 



Page 94 of 220 



Page 95 of 220 



Page 96 of 220 



Page 97 of 220 



Page 98 of 220 



Page 99 of 220 



Page 100 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

9 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Purchaser Specific Agreement with CyraCom, LLC  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Purchaser-Specific Agreement and Addendum with CyraCom, LLC for Interpretation 
and Translation Services; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to exercise any renewal 
options; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund #:  5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000863600     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Term:  12/1/24 to 12/1/27 with two 1-year renewal options  
Amount:  Approx. $335,000 annually 
Out Clause:  30 days w/o cause           
Description:  Interpretation and Translation Services   
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115.1(b) – Professional Services 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

Since 2011, UMC has had an agreement with CyraCom for translation and interpreter services.    This request 
is to enter into a new Service Agreement with CyraCom, LLC to provide Over-the-Phone Interpretation (OPI), 
Document Translation, Interpreter Training and Evaluations, On-Site Interpretation, and Video Remote 
Interpretation (VRI) services (collectively “Services”).  Hospital accreditation standards, as well as Section 
1557 of the Affordable Care Act (ACA) and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act mandates that all recipients of 
federal funding from the Health and Human Services Department provide linguistic access to individuals who 
have limited English proficiency to access programs and services offered by healthcare facilities.   
 
The agreement term is for three (3) years unless terminated with a 30-day written notice.  Upon the expiration 
of the initial term, UMC may extend this Agreement by one-year periods with written notice at least sixty (60) 
days prior to its expiration.  Usage charges for Services will be billed monthly at the rates set forth in the 
Agreement and are depending upon volume, however, there are no volume commitments. 
 
CyraCom currently holds a Clark County vendor registration. 

 
In accordance with NRS 332.115.1(b), the competitive bidding process is not required as the services to be 
performed are professional in nature. 

Page 101 of 220 



Page Number 
2 

 
The following UMC staff member has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement:  Interpretive 
Services Manager.  This Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their January 22, 2025 
meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 

Page 102 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 55 of 72

THIS PURCHASER-SPECIFIC AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made this ____ day of 20___, by 
and between                      , and the following entity herein referred to as “Purchaser” and is 
entered into in connection with that certain Purchasing Agreement, Agreement HPG-2905, dated 
December 1, 2024, between HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P. (“HealthTrust”) and CyraCom 
International, Inc. (hereinafter “Vendor”) (“Purchasing Agreement”). The provisions of the 
Purchasing Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be subject to 
the terms and conditions of the Purchasing Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the 
terms of the Purchasing Agreement and this Agreement, the terms of the Purchasing Agreement 
shall control. All capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 
ascribed to such term in the Purchasing Agreement.

Purchase Order No. _____________________________     CYRACOM CONTRACT # ________________

Facility/Group Name:
(if Group, list of Affiliates of Group 
shall be attached to this 
Agreement) 
Address:
City, ST, ZIP:
Type: [ ] Acute Care    [ ] Surgery Center      [ ] Imaging Center    [ ] Other
GPOID & GLN (if known):
Contact Person & Title:
Contact Phone: 
Contact Email: 

Bill To Information (If Different 
Than Facility) 
Facility Name:
Address:
City, ST, ZIP:
Contact Person & Title:
Contact Phone: 
Contact Email: 

Sales Tax Exempt:     ____ Yes          ____No          *Sales Tax Exempt #_______________

*If Tax exempt, it is necessary to fax a copy of Purchaser’s Sales Tax Exemption Certificate to the CyraCom 
Finance Department at (520) 745-9022

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 103 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 56 of 72

1. Services

1.1 Over the Phone Interpretation (OPI) and Video Remote Interpretation (“VRI”). Pricing is 
for All Available Spoken Languages 

1.2 Vendor Phone Ownership. The parties acknowledge and agree that all leased telephones 
are, and remain, the sole property of Vendor. Vendor’s branded phones are to be used only for Vendor’s 
Services.

1.3 Proprietary Equipment. The telephones are Equipment provided on a monthly rental 
arrangement under this Agreement and may be new or refurbished and must be returned to Vendor 
within thirty (30) days, following the date of termination of this Agreement, at the Purchaser’s expense. 

1.4 [Intentionally omitted.] 

1.5 Translation and Localization Terms
(a) Vendor provides efficient and cost-effective translation solutions by leveraging 
the expertise of our offshore subcontractors who are native speakers and intimately 
familiar with their culture. This helps ensure high-quality translations while keeping costs 
manageable. 

(b) If content contains sensitive information like PHI and PII, or is subject to 
regulations like HIPAA or CMS that prohibit offshore outsourcing, a 30% surcharge will be 
necessary to meet the required compliance measures.

(c) Translation Rates above relate to standard content (general informational, 
consumer-targeted or mildly technical content). Content of a more complex nature 
(complex medical, legal, advertising copy or highly-technical) may be subject to a higher 
Translation Rate.

(d) Translation rates listed above are for translation requests from English to target 
languages and are subject to change. A surcharge of 30% will apply to translation requests 
into English that require the use of on-shore resources.

(e) Vendor will always try to accommodate the fastest turn-around time for its 
customers. However, on occasion, a rush fee of 25% of the project value may be 
requested.

 (f) The Translation Memory Match Categories suggested above are for reference. 
Other cost-savings alternatives may be available depending on the content, file types and 
status of any legacy Translation Memory.

(g) The prices above are provided as a starting point for customers with occasional 
need of translation services. Customers needing work at steady intervals and volume 
levels may qualify for additional discount on all unit rates.

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 104 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 57 of 72

(h) Further savings may be obtained depending on total volumes, content type, 
languages selected and frequency of projects.

Additional Services Available: Please review Contract HPG-2905 for Pricing or Details

2. Term of the Agreement. This Agreement will become effective upon the date signed by both 
parties and will continue in effect for the initial term of three years. Upon the expiration of the 
initial three-year period, Purchaser may extend this Agreement by one-year periods with written 
notice to Vendor at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the current contract, otherwise 
the Agreement will expire at the end of its current term. 

3. Fees. During the Term of this Agreement, usage charges for Services will be billed monthly at the 
rates set forth below, and depending upon volume. There are no volume commitments. Each 
month, Purchaser will be charged the following, according to how many minutes are provided per 
month of live interpretation (OPI, VRI, ISI, ASL, all defined below). Fees are set forth in Exhibit A 
of the Purchasing Agreement.

4. Services outside the United States. Purchaser hereby consents to Vendor’s use of Vendor Personnel 
outside of the United States for all Services other than Onsite Consecutive Interpretation, as long as 
their locations are disclosed in writing (by email or other written communication), in advance of the 
start of any Service, and Vendor represents and warrants compliance with all other obligations set 
forth hereunder, as well as the Purchasing Agreement, and Business Associate Agreement, none of 
which are excused with the sole exception of requiring such Vendor Personnel to have appropriate I-
9 documentation. Purchaser’s data shall be stored in secure US-based cloud hosting environments 
and may be temporarily transmitted outside of the United States solely in connection with fulfilling a 
Service request. Vendor may use individuals outside of the United States, as indicated in this section 
. Any breach of this section shall give Purchaser the right to terminate this Agreement immediately.

5. SLA (Service Level Agreement) metrics. Vendor will adhere according to the following:
5.1. Timeliness: Although any Services can be reserved in advance: 

5.1.1.IPI (On-Site): Vendor will have an interpreter (or team, as applicable) available for On-Site 
within 72 hours of being requested targeting a 70% fill rate and perform Services for the 
duration of the request.

5.1.2. VRI: Vendor will have an interpreter (or team, as applicable) available to start a VRI 
session within 30 seconds of being requested and perform Services for the duration of the 
request, with the exception of Client actions or issues (such as Client network or Wi-Fi 
failure) that prevents Vendor from promptly restoring Services.

Type of Service or Product Timeliness Metric

OPI: Standard response time for an interpreter to start an OPI session. 30 seconds or less

VRI: Standard response time for an interpreter to start an VRI session. 30 seconds or less

IPI: Minimum notice required to schedule an InPerson interpretation session. Minimum of 72 hours

ASL InPerson: Minimum notice required to schedule an ASL interpretation session. Minimum of 72 hours

Document Translation: Average lead time to complete a Document Translation project.  

2,000 words or less 2 - 3 business days

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 105 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 58 of 72

Type of Service or Product Timeliness Metric
2,000 - 4,000 words 3 - 4 business days
4,000 - 6,000 words 4 - 5 business days
6,000 - 8,000 words 5 - 6 business days
8,000 - 10,000 words 6 - 7 business days
10,000 words or more 7+ business days

5.2.Quality Interpretation Parameters: 
5.2.1. Limited Downtime for non-onsite interpretation (OPI and VRI and ASL via 

video): Vendor will limit Downtime to 1% or less on its application and/or platform, 
measured on a quarterly basis for all live OPI or VRI Services. “Downtime” refers to when 
one or more of the following circumstances exist and is measured as the time during which 
it remains uncured: a crash or malfunction of Vendor’s platform or application that disrupts 
or degrades the quality of the live transmission of video and/or audio. “Downtime” 
excludes Vendor’s scheduled maintenance or upgrade downtime, and also excludes 
Purchaser-side connectivity issues (such as a failure of Purchaser’s Wi-Fi network) that 
delays or prevents restoration of Services.  

5.2.2. [Intentionally Omitted]. 
5.2.3. Certifications: Interpreters are experienced and competent with demonstrable 

qualifications, and will comply with industry standards identified below. The foregoing 
includes interpreters having current unexpired certifications to the extent applicable, such 
as for ASL (American Sign Language), certification with the RID (Registry of Interpreters) 
for the Deaf, Inc.  Upon Purchaser’s request, Vendor shall provide a written certification 
as required by the Joint Commission that the Interpreters have sufficient experience and 
certifications to perform Services hereunder.

5.2.3.1. Relevant Standards. For language interpretation, Vendors will ensure that 
interpreters review and engage in best efforts to comply with standards set by the 
US Department of Health and Human Services (at the Language Access Plan links at 
https://www.hhs.gov/civil-rights/for-individuals/special-topics/limited-english-
proficiency/index.html), and by the National Council on Interpreting in Health Care 
guidance, which include the following.
- Code of Ethics: 

https://www.ncihc.org/assets/z2021Images/NCIHC%20National%20Code%20o
f%20Ethics.pdf, and  

- standard practices: 
https://www.ncihc.org/assets/z2021Images/NCIHC%20National%20Standards
%20of%20Practice.pdf. 

5.3.Reporting:
5.3.1. Vendor will track and monitor above SLAs and other relevant business metrics (as 

agreed upon by the parties) and will provide such to Purchaser via calendar quarterly 
meetings. Some metrics may be collected from the dashboard that Vendor maintains on 
its application for its customers.

5.4.Vendor Customer Service:
5.4.1. Vendor’s customer service representatives shall be available between 8:00 A.M. and 

8:00 P.M. Eastern Time, Monday through Friday, except for holidays for quality issues or 
general feedback at the following phone number: 844-727-6739 

5.5.Action Plan if SLA not met:
5.5.1. Vendor will report performance on at least a quarterly cadence to review metrics, 

provide root cause analysis, and determine corrective actions, if required.
5.5.2. If above SLA thresholds are not met, Vendor will provide a 0.25% penalty in the form 

of a credit memo on to the Purchaser in which the SLA is not met on the invoice for the 
month following the Quarter in which the SLA had been missed. Penalties will be assessed 
on a rolling 90-day basis and maximum penalty in any one period is one percent (1%).

For the avoidance of doubt, none of the foregoing replaces or limits the rights and 
obligations set forth in the Purchasing Agreement.

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 106 of 220 

https://www.hhs.gov/civil-rights/for-individuals/special-topics/limited-english-proficiency/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/civil-rights/for-individuals/special-topics/limited-english-proficiency/index.html
https://www.ncihc.org/assets/z2021Images/NCIHC%20National%20Code%20of%20Ethics.pdf
https://www.ncihc.org/assets/z2021Images/NCIHC%20National%20Code%20of%20Ethics.pdf
https://www.ncihc.org/assets/z2021Images/NCIHC%20National%20Standards%20of%20Practice.pdf
https://www.ncihc.org/assets/z2021Images/NCIHC%20National%20Standards%20of%20Practice.pdf


HPG-2905 - Page 59 of 72

6. RECORDS. Vendor agrees to provide any and all supporting documentation concerning any disputed 
amount of an invoice to Purchaser within thirty (30) days after Purchaser provides written notice of 
the dispute to Vendor.

7. SUBCONTRACTORS. Other than subcontractors that may be used by Vendor for translation and 
localization, video remote or over the phone interpreter services, Vendor shall not otherwise 
subcontract, delegate, or assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of Purchaser.

8. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION. No amendment, supplement, modification, or waiver of this 
Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and executed by all Parties, except with 
respect to transition period extension as set forth in Section 12.5 (Transition) of the Purchasing 
Agreement.

9.  EXECUTION. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart 
shall be deemed an original, but all counterparts together constitute one and the same 
instrument. The signatures below acknowledge that  both signers are authorized by their company to 
execute agreements made pursuant to the HealthTrust Purchasing Group Contract HPG-2905. 
Purchaser’s countersigned and completed form should be returned to Purchaser’s Account 
Manager or to:

CyraCom International, Inc. 
Attention: Contract 
Administrator 2650 E. Elvira 
Road, Suite 132
Tucson, Arizona 85756
Fax: (520) 745-9022
Email:ContractsTeam3@cyracom.com

Purchaser CyraCom International, Inc. 

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Acknowledged:
HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.,
By HPG Enterprises, LLC, its general partner:

By:  _______________________________Name:______________________________

Title:  ______________________________Date:  ______________________________

PSA will be sent to HealthTrust (HPG.PurchasedServices@HealthTrustpg.com), via DocuSign, within thirty 
(30) days of Purchaser and Vendor signing the agreement.

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 107 of 220 

mailto:ContractsTeam3@cyracom.com


HPG-2905 - Page 42 of 72

Exhibit A
Services and Products with Prices

Services:

• Rebates: N/A

• Prices:

DESCRIPTION
   

   
 

     

   
     

    

 

TELEHEALTH CHARGE

 

ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT CHARGE
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 108 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 43 of 72

 

EPIC Surcharge fees do not apply when using CyraCom FHIR integration or when using EPIC through the 
CyraCom Connect portal. Fees are based per Customer Identification Number (CID).

ON-SITE INTERPRETATION CHARGE

 
 

 

Cancellation:

 

 
  

 
 

 

Document Translation Services:

Language
Per Word Rate - 

Standard Content - 
New Word

Per Word Rate - 
100% Translation 
Memory Match

Per Word Rate - 
Translation Memory 

Repeated Text

Per Word Rate - Fuzzy 
Translation Memory 

Match (85%-99%)

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 109 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 44 of 72

Language
Per Word Rate - 

Standard Content - 
New Word

Per Word Rate - 
100% Translation 
Memory Match

Per Word Rate - 
Translation Memory 

Repeated Text

Per Word Rate - Fuzzy 
Translation Memory 

Match (85%-99%)

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 110 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 45 of 72

Language
Per Word Rate - 

Standard Content - 
New Word

Per Word Rate - 
100% Translation 
Memory Match

Per Word Rate - 
Translation Memory 

Repeated Text

Per Word Rate - Fuzzy 
Translation Memory 

Match (85%-99%)

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 111 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 46 of 72

Language
Per Word Rate - 

Standard Content - 
New Word

Per Word Rate - 
100% Translation 
Memory Match

Per Word Rate - 
Translation Memory 

Repeated Text

Per Word Rate - Fuzzy 
Translation Memory 

Match (85%-99%)

Other Services Rate Per Hour Or At % Of 
Total Project Budget

Products:
• Rebates: N/A
• Prices: 

PRICING TERMS

OPTIIONAL: TELEPHONIC INTERPRETATION EQUIPMENT CHARGE

 
 

OPTIONAL: VIDEO REMOTE INTERPRETATION EQUIPMENT CHARGE

 

  

 
 

  

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 112 of 220 



HPG-2905 - Page 47 of 72

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 323BE679-092E-47CC-B2ED-E4FF2ECC40CC

Page 113 of 220 



  

 

ADDENDUM TO PURCHASER-SPECIFIC AGREEMENT 

 

THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) is made and entered into as of the date of last signature 

set forth below (“Effective Date”), by and between UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF 

SOUTHERN NEVADA, a publicly owned and operated Purchaser created by virtue of Chapter 

450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (“Purchaser”), and CYRACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

(“Vendor”).  Purchaser and Vendor are collectively referred to as the “Parties.”   

 

WHEREAS, the Parties are concurrently herewith entering into a Purchaser-Specific 

Agreement (“Purchaser-Specific Agreement”) for Vendor to provide and perform certain Over the 

Phone Interpretation and Video Remote Interpretation services, among other things, in accordance 

with the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchaser-Specific Agreement;  

 

WHEREAS, the Purchaser-Specific Agreement is subject to a Purchasing Agreement, 

Agreement HPG-2905, dated December 1, 2024, between HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P. and 

Vendor (jointly with the Purchaser-Specific Agreement, the “Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend and/or supplement the Agreement in certain 

respects as provided in this Addendum.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to supplement the Agreement with the following 

terms and conditions: 

 

1. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and this Addendum, the 

terms of this Addendum shall control. 

 

2. Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes 

(NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under the Agreement between the Parties shall 

not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by Purchaser for the then current 

fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act. The Agreement shall terminate 

and Purchaser’s obligations under it shall be extinguished at the end of any of 

Purchaser’s fiscal years in which Purchaser’s governing body fails to appropriate 

monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could 

then become due under the Agreement. Purchaser agrees that this Section shall not be 

utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion as it relates to the Agreement. In 

the event this Section is invoked, the Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of 

the then current fiscal year. Termination under this Section shall not relieve Purchaser 

of its obligations incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which 

monies were appropriated.  

 

3. Public Records Act. Vendor acknowledges that Purchaser is public county-owned 

Purchaser which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public Records Act, Nevada 

Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time, and as such its 

contracts are public documents available to copying and inspection by the public.  If 

Purchaser receives a demand for the disclosure of any information related to the 

Agreement which Vendor has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, such as 

Vendor’s pricing, programs, services, business practices or procedures, Purchaser will 

immediately notify Vendor of such demand and Vendor shall promptly notify 

Page 114 of 220 



  

Purchaser of its objection to disclosing such information and request that Purchaser 

provide a redacted version of the public record sought or seek injunctive relief in a 

Nevada court.  In the absence of such notification or a subsequent protective order by 

a Nevada court with jurisdiction over Purchaser not to release the requested 

information, it will be released without any further obligation or liability to Purchaser. 

 

4. Insurance.  Vendor shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage required in 

Exhibit B incorporated herein by this reference. Vendor shall comply with the terms 

and conditions set forth in Exhibit B and shall include the cost of the insurance 

coverage in their prices. 

 

5. Business Associate Agreement.  Vendor agrees to complete and submit the attached 

Business Associate Agreement set forth in Exhibit C. 

 

6. Indemnity.  Vendor does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 

Vendor and the employees, officers and agents of Purchaser from any liabilities, 

damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without limitation, 

reasonable attorneys’ fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, 

recklessness or intentional misconduct of Vendor or the employees or agents of Vendor 

in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

7. Covenant.  Vendor covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire 

any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement. Vendor 

further covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the performance of said services 

no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

 

8. Governing Law.  Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 

9. Audits.  The performance of this Agreement by Vendor is subject to review by 

Purchaser to ensure Agreement compliance. Vendor agrees to provide Purchaser any 

and all information requested that relates to the performance of this Agreement.  All 

requests for information will be in writing to Vendor.  Time is of the essence during 

the audit process.  Failure to provide the information requested within the timeline 

provided in the written information request may be considered a material breach of 

Agreement and be cause for suspension and/or termination of the Agreement. The 

parties hereto further agree that except as otherwise required by law, any audit and 

inspection rights include only the rights to verify amounts invoiced by Vendor and to 

verify the nature of the services being invoiced, but does not include the right to review 

personal information of Vendor’s employees, or proprietary information of Vendor, 

including but not limited to Vendor’s underlying cost, markup or overhead rates. 

 

10. Termination Without Cause.  The Agreement may be terminated by Purchaser 

without cause upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice.  

 

 

 

 

Page 115 of 220 



  

11. Notices. All notices required under this Addendum and the Agreement must be 

submitted in writing and delivered by U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, or by 

hand delivery, and directed to the appropriate party as follows: 

 

To  Purchaser:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

    Attn: Legal Department 

1800 West Charleston Boulevard 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

 

To Vendor:  CyraCom International, Inc.  

    2650 E. Elvira Road, Suite 132 

    Tucson, Arizona 85756 

 

 

 

 

12. Except as expressly supplemented by this Addendum, the Agreement shall remain in 

full force and effect. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Purchaser and Vendor have caused this Addendum to be executed by 

their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER  CYRACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

OF SOUTHERN NEVADA      

 

 

By:  _______________________________  By:  _______________________________ 

        Mason Van Houweling    

        Chief Executive Officer                        

 

Date:  _____________________________  Date:  _____________________________ 

  

BIhegborow (Dec 6, 2024 10:33 MST)
BIhegborow

BIhegborow
SVP, Contact Center Operations

Dec 6, 2024

Page 116 of 220 

https://cyracom.na1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAv9_EKTAOtAK6owWtAC01hd9cwhwrRXbH


  

EXHIBIT B 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Format/Time: VENDOR shall provide PURCHASER with Certificates of Insurance, per the sample format 

below, for coverage as listed below, and endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement prior to 

execution of the Agreement. All policy certificates and endorsements shall be signed by a person authorized by 

that insurer and who is licensed by the State of Nevada in accordance with NRS 680A.300.  All required aggregate 

limits shall be disclosed and amounts entered on the Certificate of Insurance, and shall be maintained for the 

duration of the Agreement and any renewal periods. 

B. Best Key Rating: PURCHASER requires insurance carriers to maintain during the Agreement term, a Best Key 

Rating of A.VII or higher, which shall be fully disclosed and entered on the Certificate of Insurance. 

C. Purchaser Coverage: PURCHASER, its officers and employees must be expressly covered as additional 

insureds except on Workers' Compensation. VENDOR's insurance shall be primary as respects PURCHASER, 

its officers and employees. 

D. Endorsement/Cancellation: VENDOR's general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be 

endorsed to recognize specifically VENDOR’s contractual obligation of additional insured to PURCHASER and 

must note that PURCHASER will be given thirty (30) calendar days advance notice by certified mail “return 

receipt requested” of any policy changes, cancellations, or any erosion of insurance limits. Either a copy of the 

additional insured endorsement, or a copy of the policy language that gives PURCHASER automatic additional 

insured status must be attached to any certificate of insurance. 

E. Deductibles: All deductibles and self-insured retentions shall be fully disclosed in the Certificates of Insurance 

and may not exceed $25,000. 

F. Aggregate Limits: If aggregate limits are imposed on bodily injury and property damage, then the amount of 

such limits must not be less than $2,000,000. 

G. Commercial General Liability: VENDOR shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 combined single 

limit per occurrence for bodily injury (including death), personal injury and property damages.  Commercial 

general liability coverage shall be on a “per occurrence” basis only, not “claims made,” and be provided either on 

a Commercial General Liability or a Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability (including a Broad Form CGL 

endorsement) insurance form. Policies must contain a primary and non-contributory clause and must contain a 

waiver of subrogation endorsement. 

H. Automobile Liability:  VENDOR shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per 

occurrence for bodily injury and property damage to include, but not be limited to, coverage against all insurance 

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from services rendered by VENDOR and 

any auto used for the performance of services under this Agreement. 

I. Professional Liability: VENDOR shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 aggregate. If the professional 

liability insurance provided is on a Claims Made Form, then the insurance coverage required must continue for a 

period of two (2) years beyond the completion or termination of this Agreement.  Any retroactive date must 

coincide with or predate the beginning of this and may not be advanced without the consent of PURCHASER.  

J. Workers' Compensation: VENDOR shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work 

certificate and/or a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in 

the State of Nevada, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, provided, 

however, a VENDOR that is a Sole Proprietor shall be required to submit an affidavit indicating that VENDOR 

has elected not to be included in the terms, conditions and provisions of Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, and is 

otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions. 

K. Failure To Maintain Coverage:  If VENDOR fails to maintain any of the insurance coverage required herein, 

PURCHASER may withhold payment, order VENDOR to stop the work, declare VENDOR in breach, suspend 

or terminate the Agreement, assess liquidated damages as defined herein, or may purchase replacement insurance 

or pay premiums due on existing policies.  PURCHASER may collect any replacement insurance costs or 

premium payments made from VENDOR or deduct the amount paid from any sums due VENDOR under this 

Agreement. 

L. Additional Insurance: VENDOR is encouraged to purchase any such additional insurance as it deems necessary. 

M. Damages: VENDOR is required to remedy all injuries to persons and damage or loss to any property of 

PURCHASER, caused in whole or in part by VENDOR, its subcontractors or anyone employed, directed or 

supervised by VENDOR. 

Page 117 of 220 



  

N. Cost: VENDOR shall pay all associated costs for the specified insurance.  The cost shall be included in the 

price(s). 

O. Insurance Submittal Address:  All Insurance Certificates requested shall be sent to University Medical Center, 

Attention: Contracts Management. See the Notice Clause in the Agreement for the appropriate mailing address. 

P. Insurance Form Instructions: The following information must be filled in by VENDOR’s Insurance Vendor 

representative: 

1. Insurance Broker’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

2. VENDOR’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

3. Insurance Vendor’s Best Key Rating 

4. Commercial General Liability (Per Occurrence) 

(A) Policy Number 

(B) Policy Effective Date 

(C) Policy Expiration Date 

(D) Each Occurrence ($1,000,000) 

(E) Damage to Rented Premises ($50,000) 

(F) Medical Expenses ($5,000) 

(G) Personal & Advertising Injury ($1,000,000) 

(H) General Aggregate ($2,000,000) 

(I) Products - Completed Operations Aggregate ($2,000,000) 

5. Automobile Liability (Any Auto) 

(J) Policy Number 

(K) Policy Effective Date 

(L) Policy Expiration Date 

(M) Combined Single Limit ($1,000,000) 

6. Worker’s Compensation: The VENDOR shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work 

certificate and/or a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the 

State of Nevada, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D 

7. Professional Liability 

(N) Policy Number 

(O) Policy Effective Date 

(P) Policy Expiration Date 

(Q) Aggregate ($1,000,000) 

8. Description: AGREEMENT FOR TRANSLATION SERVICES 9788 (must be identified on the initial 

insurance form and each renewal form). 

9. Certificate Holder: 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

c/o Legal Department - Contracts 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

10. Appointed Agent Signature to include license number and issuing state. 

 

11. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary herein, the parties hereto agree that (1) all coverage 

provided by VENDOR hereunder shall be on a per policy basis; (2) VENDOR shall provide evidence of all such 

coverages upon request; (3) VENDOR agrees to provide PURCHASER with a written notice of cancellation in 

accordance with VENDOR’s insurance policies; (4) all references herein to any ISO, Acord or other insurance 

form shall be read as to include “or equivalent, at the discretion of VENDOR”; and (5) VENDOR reserves the 

right to meet Excess/Umbrella Liability coverage requirements by increasing its Commercial General Liability, 

Business Automobile Liability and Employer’s Liability Insurance limits. 

 

 

  

Page 118 of 220 



  

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 

1. INSURANCE BROKER’S NAME 

 ADDRESS 

CONTACT 
NAME: 

PHONE 

(A/C No.  Ext): BROKER’S PHONE NUMBER 

FAX 

(A/C No.) BROKER’S FAX NUMBER 

E-MAIL 

ADDRESS: BROKER’S EMAIL ADDRESS 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURED 

2. //TYPE//’S NAME 

 ADDRESS 
 PHONE & FAX NUMBERS 

INSURER A: 3.  

INSURER B:  

INSURER C:  

INSURER D:  

INSURER E:  

INSURER F:  

COVERAGES   CERTIFICATE NUMBER:    REVISION NUMBER: 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADD’L 

INSR 

SUBR 

WVD POLICY NUMBER 

POLICY EFF 

(MM/DD/YY) 

POLICY EXP 

(MM/DD/YY) LIMITS 

4.  
GENERAL LIABILITY 

X 

 (A) (B) (C) EACH OCCURRENCE $(D) 1,000,000 

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) 
$(E) 50,000 

  
CLAIMS-

MADE 
X OCCUR. MED EXP (Any one person) $(F) 5,000 

  PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $(G) 1,000,000 

  GENERAL AGGREGATE $(H) 2,000,000 

GEN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS – COMP/OP AGG $(I) 2,000,000 

 POLICY X SERVICES   LOC DEDUCTIBLE MAXIMUM $ 25,000 

5.  AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

X 

 (J) (K) (L) COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 

(Ea accident) 
$(M) 1,000,000 

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

 ALL OWNED AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

 SCHEDULED AUTOS PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident) $ 

 HIRED AUTOS  $ 

 NON-OWNED AUTOS DEDUCTIBLE MAXIMUM $ 25,000 

6.  WORKER'S COMPENSATION 

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) 

 describe under 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 

X 

     WC STATU- 

TORY 

LIMITS 

 
OTHER $ 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

E.L. DISEASE – E.A. EMPLOYEE $ 

E.L. DISEASE – POLICY LIMIT $ 

7.  PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY   (N) (O) (P) AGGREGATE $(Q) 1,000,000 

8.     (R) (S) (T) LIMIT (PER OCCURRENCE) $(U) 300,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required) 

AGREEMENT FOR  TRANSLATION SERVICES 9788 

9. CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
C/O LEGAL DEPARTMENT - CONTRACTS 

1800 W. CHARLESTON BLVD. 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89102 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELED BEFORE 

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

10.  AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Page 119 of 220 



  

@ 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2010/05)    The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

 
POLICY NUMBER:          COMMERCIAL GENERAL AND AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

 

CONTRACT NAME: SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR TRANSLATION SERVICES 
 

 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGED THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY 
 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – DESIGNATED PERSON OR 

ORGANIZATION 

 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY AND AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART. 

 

SCHEDULE 
 

Name of Person or Organization: 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

C/O LEGAL DEPARTMENT - CONTRACTS 

1800 W. CHARLESTON BLVD. 

LAS VEGAS, NV 89102 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations as 

applicable to this endorsement.) 

 

 
WHO IS AN INSURED (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the 
Schedule as an insured but only with respect to liability arising out of your operations or premises owned by or rented 
to you. 

 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS 
ARE INSUREDS WITH RESPECT TO LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF THE ACTIVITIES BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE 
NAMED INSURED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS SERVICES. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120 of 220 



  

Exhibit C 

 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 

 This Agreement is made effective as of the date last signed by the parties below, by and 

between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “Covered 

Entity”), a county hospital duly organized pursuant to Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, 

with its principal place of business at 1800 West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada, 

89102, and CyraCom International, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “Business Associate”, 

(individually, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).   

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191, known as “the Administrative Simplification 

provisions,” direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop standards to protect 

the security, confidentiality and integrity of health information; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of 

Health and Human Services issued regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA 

Rules”); and 

 WHEREAS, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111-5), 

pursuant to Title XIII of Division A and Title IV of Division B, called the “Health Information 

Technology for Economic and Clinical Health” (“HITECH”) Act, as well as the Genetic 

Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (“GINA,” Pub. L. 110-233), provide for modifications 

to the HIPAA Rules; and  

 WHEREAS, the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published 

modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications 

on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby 

Business Associate will provide certain services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such 

arrangement, Business Associate may be considered a “Business Associate” of Covered Entity as 

defined in the HIPAA Rules (the agreement evidencing such arrangement is referred to as the 

“Underlying Agreement”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, Business Associate will have access to Protected Health Information (as 

defined below) in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement. 

 

 THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Underlying 

Agreement, compliance with the HIPAA Rules, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the 

Parties agree to the provisions of this Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA 

Rules and to protect the interests of both Parties.   

 

I. DEFINITIONS 

“HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 

CFR Part 160 and Part 164. 

Page 121 of 220 



  

“Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information created, 

received, maintained, or transmitted in any medium, including, without limitation, all information, 

data, documentation, and materials, including without limitation, demographic, medical and 

financial information, that relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or 

condition of an individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or 

future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and that identifies the individual 

or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to 

identify the individual.  “Protected Health Information” includes without limitation “Electronic 

Protected Health Information” as defined below. 

 

“Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is 

transmitted by Electronic Media (as defined in the HIPAA Rules) or maintained in Electronic 

Media. 

 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as defined in the HIPAA 

Rules:  Administrative Safeguards, Breach, Business Associate, Business Associate Agreement, 

Covered Entity, Individually Identifiable Health Information, Minimum Necessary, Physical 

Safeguards, Security Incident, and Technical Safeguards.  

 

II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge and agree that in the event of an 

inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA 

Rules, the HIPAA Rules shall control.  Where provisions of this Agreement are different than 

those mandated in the HIPAA Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Rules, the 

provisions of this Agreement shall control.   

 

Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is disclosed 

or made available in any form (including paper, oral, audio recording or electronic media) by 

Covered Entity to Business Associate or is created or received by Business Associate on Covered 

Entity’s behalf shall be subject to this Agreement.  

 

Business Associate has read, acknowledges, and agrees that the Secretary, U.S. Department of 

Health and Human Services, published modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH 

and GINA, and other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and the Final Rule 

significantly impacted and expanded Business Associates’ requirements to adhere to the HIPAA 

Rules.   

 

III. USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

(a) Business Associate agrees that all uses and disclosures of Protected Health 

information  shall be subject to the limits set forth in 45 CFR 164.514 regarding Minimum 

Necessary requirements and limited data sets. 

 

(b) Business Associate agrees to use or disclose Protected Health Information solely: 

(i)  For meeting its business obligations as set forth in any agreements between 

the Parties evidencing their business relationship; or  

(ii)  as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, or by accrediting or 

credentialing organization to whom Covered Entity is required to disclose such 

Page 122 of 220 



  

information or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement or the Underlying  

Agreement (if consistent with this Agreement and the HIPAA Rules). 

 

(c) Where Business Associate is permitted to use Subcontractors that create, receive, 

maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information; Business Associate agrees to execute 

a “Business Associate Agreement” with Subcontractor as defined in the HIPAA Rules that 

includes the same covenants for using and disclosing, safeguarding, auditing, and 

otherwise administering Protected Health Information as outlined in Sections I through VII 

of this Agreement (45 CFR 164.314). 

 

(d) Business Associate will acquire written authorization in the form of an update or 

amendment to this Agreement and Underlying Agreement prior to: 

(i)  Directly or indirectly receiving any remuneration for the sale or exchange 

of any Protected Health Information; or 

(ii)  Utilizing Protected Health Information for any activity that might be 

deemed “Marketing” under the HIPAA rules. 

 

IV. SAFEGUARDING PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To implement appropriate safeguards and internal controls to prevent the 

use or disclosure of Protected Health Information other than as permitted in this 

Agreement or by the HIPAA Rules.   

(ii)  To implement “Administrative Safeguards,” “Physical Safeguards,” and 

“Technical Safeguards” as defined in the HIPAA Rules to protect and secure the 

confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health 

Information (45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312).  Business Associate shall 

document policies and procedures for safeguarding Electronic Protected Health 

Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.316. 

(iii)  To notify Covered Entity of any attempted or successful unauthorized 

access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference 

with system operations in an information system (“Security Incident”) upon 

discovery of the Security Incident. 

 

(b) When an impermissible acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Protected Health 

Information (“Breach”) occurs, Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy Officer immediately upon 

discovery of the Breach, and 

(ii)  Within 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach, provide Covered 

Entity with all required content of notification in accordance with 45 CFR 164.410 

and 45 CFR 164.404, and 

(iii)  To fully cooperate with Covered Entity’s analysis and final determination 

on whether to notify affected individuals, media, or Secretary of the U.S. 

Department of Health and Human Services, and 

(iv)  To pay all costs associated with the notification of affected individuals and 

costs associated with mitigating potential harmful effects to affected individuals. 

 

 

 

 

Page 123 of 220 



  

V. RIGHT TO AUDIT 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To provide Covered Entity with timely and appropriate access to records, 

electronic records, HIPAA assessment questionnaires provided by Covered Entity, 

personnel, or facilities sufficient for Covered Entity to gain reasonable assurance 

that Business Associate is in compliance with the HIPAA Rules and the provisions 

of this Agreement. 

(ii)  That in accordance with the HIPAA Rules, the Secretary of the U.S. 

Department of Health and Human Services has the right to review, audit, or 

investigate Business Associate’s records, electronic records, facilities, systems, and 

practices related to safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Protected Health 

Information to ensure Covered Entity’s or Business Associate’s compliance with 

the HIPAA Rules.   

 

VI. COVERED ENTITY REQUESTS AND ACCOUNTING FOR DISCLOSURES 

 

(a) At the Covered Entity’s Request, Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of 

Protected Health Information pursuant to Section 164.522 of the HIPAA Rules to 

which Covered Entity has agreed and of which Business Associate is notified by 

Covered Entity.   

(ii)  To make available Protected Health Information to the extent and in the 

manner required by Section 164.524 of the HIPAA Rules.  If Business Associate 

maintains Protected Health Information electronically, it agrees to make such 

Protected Health Information electronically available to the Covered Entity.   

(iii)  To make Protected Health Information available for amendment and 

incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Rules.   

(iv)  To account for disclosures of Protected Health Information and make an 

accounting of such disclosures available to Covered Entity as required by Section 

164.528 of the HIPAA Rules.  Business Associate shall provide any accounting 

required within 15 business days of request from Covered Entity.   

 

VII. TERMINATION 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Covered Entity shall have the right 

to terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately if Covered Entity 

determines that Business Associate has violated any material term of this Agreement.  If Covered 

Entity reasonably believes that Business Associate will violate a material term of this Agreement 

and, where practicable, Covered Entity gives written notice to Business Associate of such belief 

within a reasonable time after forming such belief, and Business Associate fails to provide 

adequate written assurances to Covered Entity that it will not breach the cited term of this 

Agreement within a reasonable period of time given the specific circumstances, but in any event, 

before the threatened breach is to occur, then Covered Entity shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately.    

 

At termination of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement (or any similar documentation of the 

business relationship of the Parties), or upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, if 

feasible, Business Associate will return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from 

Page 124 of 220 



  

or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity that Business Associate 

still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information, or if such return or destruction 

is not feasible, Business Associate will extend the protections of this Agreement to the information 

and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the 

information not feasible. 

 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 

Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend 

to create any rights in any third parties. The obligations of Business Associate under this Section 

shall survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the Underlying 

Agreement and/or the business relationship of the Parties, and shall continue to bind Business 

Associate, its agents, employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein. 

 

This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties.  No Party 

may assign its respective rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written 

consent of the other Party. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor 

will they be deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent 

parties contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this 

Agreement and any other agreements between the Parties evidencing their business relationship.   

 

This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada.  No change, waiver or 

discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a 

waiver of performance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any 

obligation, on any other occasion. 

 

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full 

force and effect.  In addition, in the event a Party believes in good faith that any provision of this 

Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, such Party shall notify the other Party in 

writing.  For a period of up to thirty days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and 

amend the terms of this Agreement, if necessary to bring it into compliance.  If, after such thirty-

day period, the Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, then either Party has the right 

to terminate upon written notice to the other Party. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written 

below. 

 

COVERED ENTITY:     BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 

 

By:___________________________                             By:__________________________ 

      Mason Van Houweling 

Title: CEO                                 Title:_________________________ 

 

Date:__________________________          Date:_________________________ 

 

BIhegborow (Dec 6, 2024 10:33 MST)
BIhegborow

SVP, Contact Center Operations

Dec 6, 2024

Page 125 of 220 

https://cyracom.na1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAv9_EKTAOtAK6owWtAC01hd9cwhwrRXbH


REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Page 126 of 220 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 9 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  CyraCom International, Inc.  

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 2650 E. Elvira Road, Suite 132 
Website: www.cyracominternational.com  

City, State and Zip Code: 
Tucson, Arizona 85756 POC Name: Eliana Davila 

Email: edavila@cyracom.com 

Telephone No: (520) 561-1224 Fax No:  520-745-9022 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

Holualoa Arizona, Inc.  Shareholder  22.40%  

David Friend  Board Member  10.97%  

Alexander Sears  Board Member  7.26%  

Jeremy Woan  Chairman & CEO  6.53%  

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

BIhegborow (Dec 18, 2024 12:35 MST)
BIhegborow

SVP, Contact Center Operations Dec 18, 2024

BIhegborow

Page 127 of 220 

http://www.cyracominternational.com/
http://www.cyracominternational.com/
https://cyracom.na1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAADrbyjgSqUHEYlpZ_f1Ue0fY_4rWr3tO


DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 128 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

10 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Award of Bid No. 2024-16, UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Blvd Remodel 

Project PWP# CL-2025-183, to Monument Construction  
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
That the Governing Board award the Bid No. 2024-16, UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Blvd Remodel 
Project PWP# CL-2025-183, to Monument Construction the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder, contingent upon submission of the required bonds and insurance; authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute change orders within his delegation of authority; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000999901     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Award of Bid 2024-16 UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Blvd Remodel 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  Formal bid pursuant to NRS 338.1385. 
Term: 60 days from the date provided in a Notice to Proceed from UMC to Vendor, subject to any 
alteration in days allowed for in subsequently executed change orders, if applicable. 
Amount:  $852,200.00 
Out Clause:  UMC has the right to immediately terminate for convenience upon notice. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On December 9, 2024, Bid No. 2024-16 was published in the Las Vegas Review-Journal and posted on 
the Nevada Government eMarketplace (NGEM) Portal, soliciting bid proposals for improvements to the 
UMC-operated building, which is intended to be a crisis stabilization unit, located at 5409 E Lake Mead, 
Las Vegas, NV 89156. The building is an approximately 17,182 square foot space. The scope includes 
the demolition of adjoining patient rooms to create large open spaces for group treatment. These spaces 
will have new finishes that will match the existing facility flooring and colors, along with new interior 
windows to be placed in four existing offices. The plumbing and mechanical work includes the 
elimination of toilet rooms, the addition of a new laundry room, and the modification of ductwork to 
service the large group treatment spaces. The electrical work includes the rearrangement of outlets and 
new LED lighting. The total square footage of the renovated area is approximately 4,333 square feet. 
 
 
 

Page 129 of 220 



Page Number 
2 

 

UMC received bids as follows:
 
Bids Received 
Monument Construction 
DNI Construction, Inc. 

 
Total Base Bid Amount 
     $   852,200.00 
     $   945,842.00 

Starke Enterprise, LLC          $  1,002,974.00 
 
All of the above bids were received on or before January 2, 2025 and were unsealed on January 2, 2025. 
The apparent low bid of $852,200.00 was received from Monument Construction, a Nevada corporation, 
who correctly submitted all required documentation within the relevant deadlines. The recommendation 
of award to Monument Construction is in accordance with NRS 338.1385(5), which requires a public 
body or its authorized representative to award a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
The term of the agreement is 60 days from the date provided in a Notice to Proceed from UMC to 
Vendor, subject to any alteration in days allowed for in subsequently executed change orders, if 
applicable, plus a 12-month workmanship warranty. UMC may terminate the Agreement for convenience 
prior to, or during, the performance of the work. 
 
UMC’s Director of Facilities Maintenance has reviewed the bid documents and recommends award by 
the Governing Board. 
 
The bid documents and notice of award have been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General 
Counsel. 
 
Monument Construction currently holds a Clark County Business License. 
 
This agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their January 22, 2025 
meeting and recommended for award by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 130 of 220 



 

 
NMU01062A 

January 29, 2025 
 
Monument Construction 
ATTN: Jon Wayne Nielsen, President 
7787 Eastgate Road, #110 
Henderson, NV 89011 
 

RE: NOTICE OF AWARD 
UMC BID NUMBER 2024-16, UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Blvd Remodel Project (PWP 

 NO. CL-2025-183) 
 
Dear Mr. Nielsen, 
 
Thank you for submitting all of the required documentation for the above-referenced Bid. All documentation 
appears to be in order, and this project is hereby awarded to Monument Construction in the amount of 
$852,200.00.  This Notice of Award letter authorizes you to immediately execute the required contracts with 
your equipment and material supplier(s) and required subcontractor(s). No substitution of listed 
subcontractor(s) is permitted unless first submitted to University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
(“UMC”) in writing and in accordance with the contract documents. A copy of the contract document is 
enclosed for your records. In accordance with the contract documents, if you have not already done so, 
please provide the following within ten (10) business days of the date of this award: Certificate of Insurance 
for Builders Risk/Course of Construction; Labor and Material Payment Bond; Performance Bond and 
Guaranty Bond. 
 
This is not the Notice to Proceed. UMC’s Plant Operations Department will administer this contract and will 
contact you in the near future to schedule the project kickoff meeting. They will also coordinate with our 
Public Safety Office/Officers and Contracts Management teams to ensure you have all of the resources 
and support needed to complete this project. Further, they will ensure project activities do not unduly disrupt 
services to our patients, their loved ones, staff and the public. 
 
Thank you for your continued interest in doing business with UMC. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Mason Van Houweling 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
Enclosure(s): Contract Documents (Bid Document and Contractor’s Bid Form) 
 
Cc:  Monty Bowen, Plant Operations 
  William Rawlinson, Plant Operations 
  Tamera Hone, Plant Operations 
    
   
 

Page 131 of 220 



Page 132 of 220 



Page 133 of 220 



Page 134 of 220 



70,428.00

34,143.00

17,375.00

21,140.00

113,907.00

30,622.00

58,764.00

60,456.00

29,560.00

123,727.00

62,756.00

73,878.00

30,265.00

852,200.00

Page 135 of 220 



Page 136 of 220 



Page 137 of 220 



Page 138 of 220 



Page 139 of 220 



Page 140 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

11 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Order Form with CarePort Health, LLC  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Order Form with CarePort Health, LLC for CarePort Transition implementation and 
subscription services; execute the extension options and future amendments within his 
yearly delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000829000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  CarePort Transition Subscription Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115.1(h) – Software 
Term:  Cloud Services – three years (3) with two-1 year options from Go-Live Date 
Amount:   

 
Cloud Services: 

Year 1                                     $192,060.00 
Year 2                                     $199,742.40 (with 4% increase) 
Year 3                                     $207,732.10 (with 4% increase) 
Year 4 – Extension Option 1 $216,041.38 (with 4% increase) 
Year 5 – Extension Option 2 $224,683.04 (with 4% increase) 

 
One-time implementation fee     $51,250.00 

             ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
                                 Total  $1,091,508.92 
 

Out Clause:  60 days w/ cause, and Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out clauses 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

Since August 2016, UMC has had an agreement with CarePort Health, LLC, an affiliate of WellSky 
Corporation (fka Curaspan Health Group, Inc.) (“CarePort”), to subscribe to the nH Discharge platform.  Term 
is from August 1, 2016 to November 30, 2026.  The nH Discharge offers a patient placement functionality 
used by the Case Management (CM) Department to manage patient care transitions in the areas of patient care 
coordination, discharge planning and referrals.  

Page 141 of 220 



Page Number 
2 

 
 
This request is to enter into a new Order Form to replace the nH Discharge platform and build, migrate and 
interface Epic with CarePort’s Transition program (“Program”).  By upgrading to the Program, this will 
streamline the management of post-acute referrals and discharge planning thereby improving CM’s efficiency 
on patient care transition, referrals and to monitor a patient’s length of stay at the hospital.  Also, the Program 
offers Cloud Services that include, but are not limited to, benchmarking, analytics and data aggregation 
reports.  The project implementation is estimated to take four (4) months to complete involving remote and/or 
onsite planning, configuration, validation, training, audits, support, etc. before go-live.  UMC will compensate 
CarePort a potential aggregate of NTE $1,091,508.92 for a period of three (3) years with two, 1-year extension 
options. 
 
Staff also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute the extension options and future amendments 
within his yearly delegation of authority if deemed beneficial to UMC. 
 
UMC’s Business Development Officer has reviewed and recommends approval of this Order Form.  This 
Order Form has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Order Form was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their January 22, 
2025 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

Page 142 of 220 



 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 1  

CAREPORT HEALTH, LLC 

ORDER FORM 

 

This Order Form (“Order”) is dated as of last signature below (“Effective Date”) between University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada with offices at 1800 W Charleston Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89102-2386 (“Client”) and 

CarePort Health, LLC an Affiliate of WellSky Corporation, with offices at 11300 Switzer Road, Overland Park, KS 

66210 (“WellSky”) for the products and services set forth herein. Order is subject to and hereby incorporates the terms 

and conditions of the Master License and Services Agreement entered into between the parties, dated March 2, 2023 

(“Agreement”), except to the extent explicitly identified in this Order. 

PRICING SET FORTH IN THIS ORDER FORM EXPIRES IF NOT EXECUTED BY CLIENT ON OR 

BEFORE MARCH 15, 2025. 
 

This Order consists of the following Attachments: 

● Attachment 1 – Scope of Use, Term, Pricing, and Payment Terms 

● Attachment 2 – Additional Terms 

● Attachment 3 – Scope of Services/Statement of Work 

 

Any questions or changes to this Order, please contact David Yates at david.yates@wellsky.com. 

 

Ordering Procedure:  

Scan or fax this signed Order to WellSky’s Corporate Contracts Department as follows: 

  

LegalContracts@wellsky.com  

Fax: (913) 871-9571 or 9138719571@fax2mail.com  

 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF 

SOUTHERN NEVADA: 

CAREPORT HEALTH, LLC: 

 Signature:  /s1/  Signature: /s2/ 

 Name: Mason Van Houweling /n1/  Name: Marc Camm 

 Title: Chief Executive Officer/t1/  Title: SVP Connected Networks 

 Date: /d1/  Date: /d2/ 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

1/15/2025

Page 143 of 220 

mailto:LegalContracts@wellsky.com
mailto:9138719571@fax2mail.com


ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 1 

SCOPE OF USE, TERM, PRICING, AND PAYMENT TERMS 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 2  

1. Cloud Services Pricing.  The Cloud Services are subject to the following pricing and maximum scope of use limits: 

Client’s license for the Cloud Services covers Organic Growth during the initial term, provided that Client timely pays WellSky the 

associated fee increases specified herein.  “Organic Growth” means increases in the volume at the Client Licensed Sites above that 

are due solely to internal growth of Client’s ordinary business activities and transactions at the Client Licensed Sites. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client shall not use the Cloud Services in connection with any of the following (each of which 

constitutes “Non-Organic Growth”): (i) Any construction of any new facility (beyond the Client Licensed Sites); (ii) the physical 

expansion of any Client Licensed Site; and/or (iii) the addition of any new facility by acquisition, merger, or otherwise. With respect 

to Client Licensed Sites acquired through Non-Organic Growth, Client shall not use the Cloud Services with respect to such newly 

acquired Client Licensed Sites unless and until the parties have so agreed to a new Order Form for such additional scope of use. 

 

2. Sites.  The Client Licensed Sites for this Order are as listed below: 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1800 W Charleston Blvd 

Las Vegas, NV 89102-2386 

 

3. Cloud Services Term.  The Cloud Services under this Order shall be for an initial 36 month term, beginning on the earlier of First 

Productive Use of the Cloud Services or December 31, 2025 (“Initial Term”).  Both parties will certify in writing the First Productive 

Use date.  At the end of the Initial Term, the parties have the option to extend this Order for two (2), 1-year periods (each an 

“Extension Term”) upon written agreement.  The Initial Term and all Extension Terms shall collectively be referred to herein as 

the “Term.” 

 

4. Professional Services Pricing.   

 

Description of Services Fees 

 CarePort Transition Implementation Fee - Net New (PS19138)  $51,250 

TOTAL $51,250 

 

5. Payment Terms. 

 

a. Cloud Services:  Client shall pay 100% of the applicable Cloud Services fees annually in advance, to be invoiced by WellSky 

on the earlier of First Productive Use (i.e., go-live) or December 31, 2025, and annually thereafter. 

 

b. Professional Services: Client shall pay 100% of the one-time fixed fee/fixed scope Professional Services fees on the Effective 

Date contingent upon receipt of an invoice.  

 

c. Increases: All recurring fees may be increased by WellSky once annually commencing one (1) year following the Cloud 

Services Term start date included in this Order at a rate equal to four percent (4%).  With Client’s written acceptance which 

shall not be unreasonably withheld, Cloud Services fees may further be increased upon prior written sixty (60) day notice to 

Client in the event WellSky’s third party supplier increases such fees. 

 

 

Cloud Services Facility (Client Licensed Site) Provider ID 

(PID) 

Quantity Total Annual 

Fees 

 CarePort Transition (SUB19089) University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada 

93513 1 $192,060 

TOTAL $192,060 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 144 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 1 

SCOPE OF USE, TERM, PRICING, AND PAYMENT TERMS 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 3  

               Please provide your accounts payable or billing contact information. 

Name:  Natalie Hartmann   /text1optional1/ 

Title:  Accounting Technician/text2optional1/ 

Address:  1800 W. Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102  /text3optional1/ 

E-mail:  UMC_AP@umcsn.com   text4optional1/text4optional1/ 

Phone:  702-383-2453   /text5optional1/ 

 

Please select one of the options below regarding your sales tax status: 

       

    X      Exempt  

             Non-Exempt 

              

 

If “Exempt” is checked above; Client is required to provide the appropriate certificate to WellSky upon Execution of this Order.  

Failure to provide could result in sales tax charges.  

/
e
x
cl
m
1
/ 
 

/
e
x
cl
m
1
/ 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 145 of 220 

mailto:Natalie.Hartmann@umcsn.com


ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 2 

ADDITIONAL TERMS 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 4  

Client acknowledges and agrees the Cloud Services acquired hereunder are care coordination solutions and each 

product cross-references Client’s data (“Client Data”) against data retained by the WellSky subscriber network.  The 

Cloud Services use Client Data within the WellSky subscriber network to provide various Services that may include 

but are not limited to benchmarking, analytics, and data aggregation (“Reports”). Client may access and use Reports 

for Client’s internal business purposes only.  Client may not publish Reports, provided that Client may share or use 

Reports with its contractors, agents, and facilities used by its patients in furtherance of Client’s business.  Client 

acknowledges and agrees that revoking the foregoing license grant shall terminate Client’s right to access or use any 

care coordination, benchmarking, and/or data aggregation reports and features available through the Cloud Services 

or any successor solution(s) requiring data sharing within the WellSky subscriber network. Client hereby grants to 

WellSky a non-exclusive right and license to access, use, and disclose Client Data for the provision of the 

Services.  WellSky will de-identify Client Data in accordance with 45 CFR 164.514(b) and may use Client Data to 

provide Data Aggregation services as permitted by 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B) and in accordance with the 

Documentation.  The terms of this Section shall indefinitely survive the termination or expiration of the Agreement 

and/or this Order. 

RULES OF PRECEDENCE:  In the event of a conflict, the following rules of precedence shall govern this Order 

Form: (1) The terms and conditions of the specific Agreement; (2) Terms and conditions of the Order Form. 

Client assumes full responsibility for the content of all information and material supplied by Client via the Cloud 

Services. WellSky reserves the right to reject, in its sole discretion, any information or other copy submitted by Client.  

No alteration in copy, however, will be published without Client’s consent. 

Cloud Services included hereto shall replace the following contracts for the Sites outlined on the table below as 

of the earlier of go-live or December 31, 2025 

 

Facility Name 
WellSky 

ID 
Contract ID 

Facility 

PID 

Solution(s)/ 

Cloud Services 

Owned 

Facility Address 

University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada 

218463 CS - HOS - 393 /  
00042455 

 57212 Discharge 1800 W Charleston Blvd 
 Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 146 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES / STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 5  

I  Overview 

This document defines the scope of this implementation and defines the parties’ respective obligations, assumptions, 

and boundaries for this WellSky implementation.  

After the kickoff of the project, Client and WellSky shall collaborate, agree to, and finalize, in writing, one or more 

project plans for the in-scope implementation. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties, the project plan 

and this Statement of Work describe WellSky’s complete scope of services. The work will be performed by a 

blended team comprised of personnel from both WellSky and Client (the “Project Team”). The composition of the 

Project Team is described below. 

II Solutions Included 

CarePort Transition 

III Client Information 

The in-scope services for this Statement of Work are based on the following information provided by Client. 

Name of Client Organization:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (NV) 

Names of Client’s Contracted Facilities:  UMC Hospital 

Instructions: Customize the Yes/No field, the numeric fields, and the text boxes below. To save a value, just click 

outside the field. Delete the table rows that do not apply to this contract. 

IV Assumptions 

WellSky and Client Obligations  

In addition to any other responsibilities or duties described in this Scope of Services, set forth below is a list of 

mutual obligations. 

1. WellSky’s performance of the Professional Services hereunder is conditioned upon Client’s participation, 

assistance, and facilitation of such services.  Neither party is responsible for any delay in performance nor 

resultant scope changes, price increases, or other changes related to the Professional Services resulting 

from a party’s failure to actively and/or timely engage with the other for such performance due to any event 

of force majeure or other similar factors beyond its reasonable control.  

2. WellSky shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assign staff within thirty (30) days of the date Client 

executes this Order.    

3. No later than ninety (90) days from the Effective Date of this Order, Client shall: (i) assign required 

resources, (ii) initiate kickoff of the project, (iii) complete required implementation tasks set forth in this 

Scope of Services, and (iv) complete any other Client tasks necessary for WellSky to initiate the 

Professional Services hereunder. 

4. In the event Client: (i) does not engage with WellSky to begin the project within thirty (30) days of the 

Effective Date, (ii) places the project on hold for greater than thirty (30) days, or (iii) does not complete any 

task(s) set forth in the Scope of Services for greater than thirty (30) days, WellSky reserves the right to 

place the project on hold. Upon reengagement and subject to Client’s written acceptance, WellSky may 

issue a Change Order for additional professional services fees to account for the scope change. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 147 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES / STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 6  

5. In the event Client requests to restart a project following cancelation as set forth herein, a new Order Form 

will be required encompassing the Professional Services required to complete the project associated with 

the current version of the WellSky solution. 

6. Subject matter experts are required from the user community to participate in workflow and data validation 

sessions. As part of the pre-implementation process, WellSky shall provide specific resource requirements 

for these areas. 

7. The scope for services in this project is based on the assumptions contained herein. Any change to any 

assumption shall require a written change request which may result in a change to the project timeline, 

effort, and budget.  

8. It is Client’s responsibility to make any necessary configuration changes to non-WellSky products that 

affect the WellSky implementation. Epic configurations and any additional Epic build or feature(s) not 

included in the Transition Turbocharger package are Client’s responsibility to update / create.  

9. Client and WellSky shall collaborate, agree to, and finalize, in writing, one or more project plans which 

reflect the scope, prior to the kickoff of the project and only after resources assignments are made.  

10. Unless otherwise noted, WellSky provides services under this Scope of Services during standard business 

hours of 8:00 am – 5:00 pm, local organization time (PST) on weekdays except for WellSky recognized 

holidays of New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, Independence Day, 

Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day. 

11. If applicable, WellSky assumes that Client will be able to accommodate HL7 standards and additional 

technical specs which have been mutually agreed upon during the sales process.  

12. Client is responsible for any pre-approved travel related expenses needed (if any) related to these services 

herein.  

13. Client confirms that the follow legacy CarePort Discharge features are not available within CarePort 

Transition. 

V Solution-Specific Assumptions 

This section identifies assumptions associated with specific WellSky products that are within the scope of this 

implementation. 

WellSky Transition   

1. WellSky and Client will partner to migrate Client’s legacy Acute location(s) from CarePort Discharge to 

Transition.  

2. Client confirms that UMC Children’s Hospital will not be utilizing Transition.   

3. Following the migration of the legacy Client Acute location(s) to Transition, Client will continue to have Read 

Only access to their legacy CarePort Discharge organizations for as long as Client is an active subscriber, or 

Client opts to receive a one-time no cost data extract of their Discharge data.  As each of Client’s locations 

migrate to Transition, the Admission, Discharge and Transfer (ADT) to Client’s legacy Discharge organization 

will be disabled at a mutually agreeable time. 

4. Epic requirements: 

a. Preferred Version: May 2022, operating in HyperDrive 

Minimum Version: November 2021 

b. All Clinical Application Programming Interfaces (APIs) require version R4 of the Fast Healthcare 

Interoperability Resources (FHIR) APIs 

c. Client operating Epic in Chrome, or Edge 

5. Client agrees to: 

a. Request the CarePort Transition 2.x Backend and Provider Platform app from the Epic Connection 

Hub and follow the steps outlined in the Transition 2.x Implementation Guide to establish connectivity 

and complete the Turbo Charger installation. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 148 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES / STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 7  

b. Compile user information for those who will be accessing Transition (e.g., Name, Email Address, 

Unit/Department, Epic Username).  

c. Configure launch point(s) from Epic with tokens needed to preserve patient context within Epic Test 

(TST) and Production environments.  

i. Client will provide the Epic Interconnect Endpoint URLs to WellSky which will allow 

Transition to launch from Client’s instance of Epic. 

ii. Failure to provide this information in a timely manner will impact the project timeline. 

d. Enable Epic FHIR APIs. 

i. Depending upon which version of Epic Client is utilizing, Client’s assigned Epic Technical 

Services Engineer (TS) may be required to generate designated “Integrated ID’s” and/or 

“Embedded ID’s” for both TST (Test) and Production environments to enable the APIs. 

ii. The list of required APIs is detailed in the Appendix of the Implementation Guide, which is 

available for download from the Epic Connection Hub.  

iii. All APIs are licensed by Epic. Client may contact their Epic Representative to confirm if they 

are currently licensed for the required APIs for Transition.  

e. Enter clinical data on test patients and associated admissions as the clinical data exists within Client’s 

Epic Production environment.  

f. Install Transition Print Attach driver within Client’s network and/or end user workstations. 

g. Enable a real time ADT feed to CarePort Transition from Client’s instance of Epic. If an existing ADT 

exists, Client will work with CarePort to validation of data component(s) and make any required 

modifications to meet the specifications.  

i. The ADT will include the Epic primary Contact Serial Number (CSN).  

ii. Inability to send the Primary CSN to WellSky will impact scope, timeline, or functionality of 

the implemented Solutions.  

iii. Client is responsible for building the integration and testing and sign-off on the integration 

before moving all integration components into the production environment. 

iv. Client is responsible for data collection and data analysis of current and future state.   

v. Client is responsible for developing and executing unit, functional, simulation and integration 

testing and test plans.   

6. WellSky agrees to: 

a. Assign the following resources: Project Manager, Implementation / Training Consultant, Technical 

Consultant, Post Acute Onboarding Specialist, and Integration Engineer. 

b. Lead a remote or onsite planning meeting to assess current state, future state and build initiation at a 

single Client location, of Client’s choice. 

c. Lead a remote or onsite validation session prior to go-live, at a single Client location, of Client’s 

choice. 

d. Provide training for Client’s Epic Trainers, up to a maximum of eight (8) hours.  

e. Audit of up to four (4) of the Epic Trainers training sessions, up to a maximum of twenty-four (24) 

hours.  

f. Provide remote Activation Support to end users at go-live for a maximum of three (3) days, including 

up to three (3) resources: Project Manager, Technical Consultant, and Implementation Consultant. 

g. Lead multiple recurring weekly meetings, which will be held remotely at times mutually agreed upon 

between WellSky and Client. Remote and/or onsite meetings will be held during normal business 

hours, local Client time on weekdays only. 

7. Client will identify and confirm: 

a. Resource(s) who will function as the WellSky Transition System Administrator and will be responsible 

for maintaining Transition configurations, updates, and testing post activation. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 149 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES / STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 8  

b. Clinical SME(s) with knowledge of end user workflow/needs across Client’s health system to partner 

with WellSky on validating clinical test data to ensure it meets the end users’ needs for referrals. 

Clinical SME(s) will be able to validate the information available within Epic vs. the information 

which displays within Transition received via the Epic FHIR APIs. 

c. That their team(s) is available during WellSky onsite and/or remote meetings. Onsite visits are 

provided during standard business hours of 8:00 am – 5:00 pm local organization time (PST), on 

weekdays, between Tuesday and Thursday. 

d. Additional Client resources are detailed in the Appendix below. 

8. WellSky shall guide Client through content configuration and validation sessions for: 

a. Referral Type creation and management. 

b. Post Acute Authorization. 

c. Transition Organization Configuration, Security, and User Account maintenance. 

d. Configuration and validation options for the APIs’ data displayed within Transition, including the 

standardization of options by Referral Type. 

e. Migration of Client’s Forms from their existing Discharge organization(s). Customization to existing 

forms or additional new forms will require a scope change and potential additional Services fees. 

9. Following the Discovery session(s), WellSky and Client will partner to design the Epic Flowsheets and values 

for each Referral Type. Once agreed up on, Client will configure the Epic Flowsheets and partner with WellSky 

to test end-to-end workflow prior to a Validation session with the SME’s. 

10. WellSky and Client will partner to test the configurations and end user workflow after Client migrates their 

Epic configuration and build to Production. 

11. WellSky will assist Client’s team with the necessary joint outreach to ensure Post-Acute Providers have up-to-

date profiles which will be utilized for Patient Choice. 

a. If applicable, WellSky will review with Client and migrate after their approval of Client’s existing 

Careport Guide configurations into Transition Patient Choice. 

b. Client will review a list from Care Management of post-acute providers that have received patients 

from Client’s acute facilities in the last twelve (12) months and prioritize the list with the most 

frequently utilized. 

c. WellSky shall configure the product such that post-acute providers chosen by Client are highlighted 

and grouped within Client’s existing search results (subject to Medicare Patient Choice regulations). 

d. WellSky shall provide virtual education and training to the post-acute providers in Client’s target area 

for up to four (4) sessions of one (1) hour each. 

e. WellSky shall provide on-boarding and on-going management of the following entities in the post-

acute provider database: all Skilled Nursing Facilities (SNFs), Home Health providers, Hospice, Acute 

Rehab, Long-Term Acute Care Hospitals (LTAC), DME, Dialysis, Home Infusion within a twenty-five 

(25) mile radius of Client’s facility that is profiled. 

f. Client will continue to be responsible for requiring post-acute care providers to keep their Provider 

profiles up to date. Search criteria results are dependent on profiles being completed and results will 

vary based on level of completion. 

  

{Rest of page left intentionally blank} 

 
 

 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 150 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES / STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 9  

Appendix 

Environments Supported by WellSky 

WellSky offers two environments for Transition: Training and Production. These are connected to Epic 

environments of Test (TST) and Production. WellSky does not support more than two environment connections to 

Transition. 

 Client Resource Tables 

The table below provides an overview of Client resources who may be engaged for the Transition Implementation. 

Roles  Responsibility  

Client Executive Sponsor   Ensure organizational commitment.  

 Facilitate implementation and policy-related decisions.  

 Approve the allocation of resources.  

 Provide operational accountability.  

 Post Implementation:  Operational accountability for 

standardization and identifying workflow changes based upon 

changing Client needs. 

Client Project Manager   Partners with the WellSky Project Manager to develop and 

maintain the WellSky Project Management.  

 Responsible for coordinating and confirming Client tasks are 

completed timely.  

 Coordinates meetings at Client site.  

 General Project Management duties.  

Client Clinical SME’s   Provide goals/objectives of implementation.  

 Share workflow and process of department.  

 Responsible for determining internal processes.  

 Commitment to reinforce the staff usage of applications.  

Client Transition System 

Administrator  
 Assist in determining department process and workflow, and aid 

in dissemination of this information to staff.  

 Conducts Super User groups as needed to maintain 

standardization and understanding of system use.  

 Maintain configurable lists.  

 Run reports utilizing the report functionality.  

 Post Implementation: Maintain End User profiles.  

 Post Implementation: High quality post-acute care network 

management.  

 Post Implementation: Receives, communicates, and incorporates 

application updates/upgrades to the application to staff.  

 Post Implementation:  Per Client policy, tests/maintains upgrades 

within TST environment specific to application configurations 

and connectivity. 

Client Interconnect Admin and Epic 

Client Systems Web and Service 

Systems TS  
  

 Enable APIs with appropriate security policy.  

 Responsible for providing Epic Endpoint URL for FHIR 

interface.  

 Confirm App can communicate with Client’s system from 

outside Client’s firewall.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 151 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES / STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 10  

Client Interface Administrator and 

Epic EDI  
 Configure the required interfaces as needed by this integration.  

Client Epic Certified Systems 

Administrator (ECSA) (Hyperspace 

or Citrix Deployment Admin)  

 Complete the Hyperspace/Hyperdrive and Desktop Setup.  

 Install and maintain Print Attach Driver.  

Client EpicCare Inpatient 

Application Analyst and TS  
 Responsible for downloading and installing the Epic 

Turbocharger package or delegating to the appropriate Client 

role.  

 Configure Epic to launch the application in the appropriate 

workflow and for the appropriate users.  

 Responsible for build tasks outlined in the Implementation Guide 

hosted on Epic Connection Hub.  

 Test standard and edge case workflows to ensure the application 

is working as expected.  

 Responsible for additional Build or testing in Epic as needed if 

requested by Clinical SME(s).  

Client Security Team   Provision a background user for the app to authenticate API calls 

into Client’s Epic system.  

Client Trainer(s)   Develop and lead end user training on application for designated 

end users.  

 Serve as a subject matter and workflow expert. 

 Post Implementation: Provide end user training for application 

updates / upgrades.  

Client Project Team / Super Users  Provide process and workflow knowledge of job functionality. 

 Participation in weekly / monthly conference calls. 

 Help identify and present creative changes within the application 

that can increase efficiency, workflow and process. 

 Provide first line troubleshooting of any problems or issues. 

 Become product expert(s). 

 Post Implementation: Ongoing education on process, workflow, 

updates, additions, and change. 

Client Report Writer / Business 

Analyst 
  

  

 Create and run reports utilizing the CarePort report functionality. 

 Provide first line troubleshooting of any problems or issues for 

reports. 

 Post Implementation: Provide education on reports and report 

generation within Client organization. 

 Post Implementation: Ongoing creation / modification of reports 

based upon Client’s internal reporting needs. 

Client Post Acute Outreach 

Coordinator  

 Provides guidance to WellSky on the designated footprint of 

post-acute care providers. 

 Participates in outreach activities to post-acute care providers, 

such as email, phone calls and leading discussions on the 

benefits of being a member of Client’s Designated Network of 

Post Acute Care providers. 

 Post Implementation: Responsible for maintaining an outreach / 

marketing strategy to keep post-acute providers engaged and 

members of Client’s designated Post Acute Care Network and to 

encourage members to keep their Patient Choice profiles up to 

date. 

Client Support Resource / Technical 

Lead 
 Oversees the technical implementation and takes responsibility 

for managing and coordinating technical work, and identifies 

appropriate resources within Client’s IT department. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 152 of 220 



ORDER FORM 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES / STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

CN-0000048088 / Q-48093 

 11  

  

Project Timeline 

The standard WellSky project plan template is the basis for the implementation. Time frames for the various tasks 

for Client will be reviewed and modified as needed in the Project Kick-Off event of Client’s implementation. The 

timeframe for implementation can vary depending on factors such as the number of facilities to be implemented or 

Client’s Epic Implementation timeline.  

Once both sides agree on the project plan, it will be used throughout the implementation as a tool for monitoring 

progress and timely implementation. 

Included below is the anticipated timeframe for CarePort Transition implementation. WellSky assumes any delay 

in the project on behalf of Client that would extend this implementation greater than three (3) weeks beyond the 

estimated four (4) month projection will result in a change order and may require an Order Form for additional 

professional services:  

Implementation Plan 

Events M1 M2 M3 M4 

Pre-Implementation       

Project Kick-Off       

Build       

Validation       

Activation Readiness       

Activation       

Post-Activation & Transition to Support         

* M = Month     

  

{Rest of page left intentionally blank} 

 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2C7BC374-F1F5-49E2-944C-0AB8123A6DA9

Page 153 of 220 



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 45291541-A03F-42D7-BCD3-194742D07927

Page 154 of 220 



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: N/A 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  WellSky Corporation 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 11300 Switzer Road Website: https://wellsky.com/ 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Overland Park, Kansas, 66210 POC Name:  Zachary Ninteman 

Email: Zachary.ninteman@wellsky.com 

Telephone No: (913) 307-1000 Fax No: (913) 307-1111 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

N/A  N/A  N/A  

N/A  N/A  N/A  

N/A  N/A  N/A  

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

   
 
Marc Camm 

 

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

SVP, Connected Networks    

Title  Date  

Docusign Envelope ID: 45291541-A03F-42D7-BCD3-194742D07927

1/16/2025

Page 155 of 220 

ksy
Typewritten Text
CarePort Health, LLC



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
N/A 

N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
Marc Camm__________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 45291541-A03F-42D7-BCD3-194742D07927

Page 156 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

12 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board recommend for approval by the Board of County 
Commissioners, also sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada, the settlement in the matter of District Court Case No. A-24-
899947-C, entitled Frazier v. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al.; and 
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute any necessary settlement documents.  
(For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund #:  5420.000     Fund Name:  Operating Fund  
Fund Center:  3000867500    Amount:  $40,000.00 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
A visitor to University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC”) commenced a premises liability action 
against UMC in Clark County District Court on August 16, 2024.   
 
In order to resolve the District Court action against UMC, UMC seeks approval to settle the action for the total 
amount of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000.00), inclusive of all attorney’s fees and costs, with no admission 
of wrongdoing, and to mitigate the unknown costs of protracted litigation.  The settlement is recommended by 
UMC Administration and UMC’s Office of General Counsel.   
 

Page 157 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS
THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS [hereinafter

“Agreement”] ismade by and between Cathy Frazier [hereinafter referred to as “PLAINTIFF”]

and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada [hereinafter referred to as “UMC” or

“DEFENDANT”.

DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, the following phrases and words are defined as follows:

“Action” or “the Action” shall mean and refer to the case entitled, Cathy Frazier v.

University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al., Case No. A-24-899947-C, filed in Clark

County District Court, including the pleadings and complaints filed therein, which involve

PLAINTIFF’s claims for compensation for alleged damages related to an incident that allegedly

occurred atUniversity Medical Center of Southern Nevada on or about January 24, 2023.

“PLAINTIFF” shall refer to Cathy Frazier.

“DEFENDANT” shall refer to University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada (hereinafter
referred to as “UMC”).

“PARTIES” shall refer collectively to PLAINTIFF and DEFENDANT.

“INCIDENT” shall refer to the incident that allegedly occurred at University Medical

Center of Southern Nevada on or about January 24, 2023.

“Related Persons and Entities” shall refer to any and all past, present and future Board

Members, owners, family members, spouses, insureds, employees, employers, partnerships,

partners, joint venturers, representatives, administrators, heirs, testators, trustees, beneficiaries,

executors, lenders, creditors, mortgagors, predecessors, successors, assigns, past, present and

future parent companies, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates, related corporations, surviving

corporations, disappearing corporations, stockholders, directors, officers and agents as applicable

to each of the PARTIES.

“Claim” or “Claims” shall refer to PLAINTIFF’s claims (legal, administrative orotherwise)

demands, action or actions, cause or causes ofaction in law or in equity, suits, debts, liens, contracts,

Page 1of9

Page 158 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v, University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

agreements, promises, obligations, liabilities, damages, losses, and costs (including attorney fees,

expert fees and any other costs or expenses) of any nature whatsoever, known or unknown, fixed

or contingent, including, but not limited to costs of suit, which PLAINTIFF, on her own behalf, or

their Related Persons and Entities has ever had, now has, ormayhereafter claim to have which are

based on or arise out of the INCIDENT.

RECITALS

A. PLAINTIFF was at University Medical Center of Southern Nevada on or about

January 24, 2023, for purposes of accompanying another individual.

B. PLAINTIFFalleges that while at the facility, she was struck bya piece of medical

equipment.

C. Plaintiff filed her initial Complaint on August 16, 2024, alleging negligence against

UMC. In response, UMC filed its Answer to the Complaint October 16, 2024.

Dz The PARTIES now agree to settle Plaintiffs Claims.

E. ThePARTIES expressly acknowledge the settlement as set forth in this Agreement

is a compromise of disputed claims. No payment of monies nor any other action taken pursuant

to this Agreement shall be considered or construed as an admission or establishment of liability on

the part of any of the PARTIES. DEFENDANT expressly denies any and all liability and enters

into this Agreement solely to buy its peace and to avoid incurring further litigation costs in defense

of this Action.

F, PLAINTIFF and DEFENDANT desire and intend by this Agreement to settle,

finally and completely, all of PLAINTIFF’s claims, demands, actions, causes of action and rights,

known and unknown, arising from and/or related to the INCIDENT hich is the subject of the

Action as defined herein, and to provide for, among other things, the settlement and release of all

ofPLAINTIFF’s Claims.

///
///
///

Page 2 of 9

Page 159 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

AGREEMENT

WHEREFORE, in consideration ofthe covenants, conditions andpromises set forth herein,

the adequacy and sufficiency of which consideration is expressly acknowledged, it is agreed by

and among PLAINTIFF andDEFENDANT as follows:

re Settlement Payment. DEFENDANT agrees to pay the total sum of Forty

Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($40,000.00) to PLAINTIFF (“the Settlement Funds”). The

PARTIES agree the obligation to make Settlement Payment is conditioned satisfaction of the terms

and conditions of this Agreement, including execution of this Agreement by PLAINTIFF, and

signing and returning of a Dismissal with Prejudice of the Action by PLAINTIFF against

DEFENDANT.

DEFENDANT shall remit the total settlement payment(s), as indicated above, with a draft

identifying the payee as CRAIG P. KENNY & ASSOCIATES, within 30 days ofDEFENDANT’s

receipt of an executed copy of this Agreement. All settlement monies will be held in trust in the

Client Trust Account of the law firm CRAIG P. KENNY & ASSOCIATES until a Dismissal with

Prejudice as to UMC has been entered.

PLAINTIFF further acknowledges herassumption of all duties and burdens for any past or

future liens or rights of reimbursement by any insurance company, Governmental entity, non-

governmental entity, attorney, or person enforceable against the proceeds of this settlement or

against the PARTIES released, or the persons, firms, or corporations making the payment herein.

If sucha lien or right is asserted against the proceeds herein or against the PARTIES released or

any person, firm or corporation making payment herein, then, in consideration of the payment

made to PLAINTIFF, PLAINTIFF covenants to pay and satisfy such asserted lien or

reimbursement right. PLAINTIFF promises to obtain a release and discharge such lien or

reimbursement right, and to defend, indemnify and hold harmless DEFENDANT and the persons,

firms orcorporations making the payment herein, from any costs, expenses, attorney fees, claims,

actions, judgments or settlements resulting from the assertion or enforcement of such lien or

reimbursement right by any person or entity having such lien or right.

Page 3 of 9

Page 160 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

PLAINTIFF expressly acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is contingent upon

and subject to the approval ofboth the UMC GoverningBoard and the UMC Board ofHospital

Trustees, and only becomes effective upon such approval. Furthermore, this Agreement is

subject to disclosure in accordance with NRS Chapter 241, NRS Chapter 41, or as otherwise

imposed by law.

2 Releases Of All Claims. PLAINTIFF, on her own behalf and on behalf of her

Related Persons and Entities, to the full extent of her legal standing, does so hereby fully and

finally settle, release, acquit and forever discharge PLAINTIFF’s claims, and covenants not to sue,

DEFENDANT, Clark County, Nevada, the Board ofCounty Commissioners, the UMC Hospital

Board of Trustees, the UMC Governing Board, and each of the aforementioned’s respective

Related Persons and Entities, as to any and all Claims, including without limitation any and all

claims, demands, actions, causes of action and rights, known and unknown, arising from and/or

related to the INCIDENT.

This Agreement maybe pled as a full and complete defense to any future action, insurance

claim or proceeding involving the Claims and the PARTIES, as well as a basis for abatement of,

or injunction against, such action or other proceeding.

3. Dismissal With Prejudice. Upon receipt of the Settlement Funds, PLAINTIFF’s

counsel shall file a Dismissal with Prejudice of PLAINTIFF’s operative Complaint and Claims

against DEFENDANT with all PARTIES to bear their own fees and costs, as referenced above,

and counsel for PLAINTIFF will promptly notify DEFENDANT once the Dismissal is filed.

4, Medicare and Medicaid Compliance. It is not the purpose of this Release to shift

responsibility ofmedical care in this matter to the Medicare or Medicaid systems. Instead, this

Release is intended to resolve a dispute between PLAINTIFF and DEFENDANT. In order to

ensure compliance with Medicare and Medicaid and applicable statutes and/or regulations,

PLAINTIFF represents and acknowledges there presently is no reimbursement obligation to

Medicare or Medicaid systems, but that if so required in the future, that Plaintiff will report this
claim to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and/or the Nevada Department

Page 4 of 9

Page 161 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

of Health and Human Services and/or the appointed agents of those agencies. PLAINTIFFand her
attorney acknowledge that, ifso required in the future, Medicare and Medicaid will be reimbursed
out of the Settlement Payment for any and all benefits for which any reimbursement or repayment

to Medicare and/or Medicaid has orwill become necessary related to this incident.

The PARTIES have attempted to resolve this matter in compliance with both state and

federal law and it is believed that the terms of the Release adequately consider Medicare’s and

Medicaid’s interests, if any, and the terms do not reflect any attempt to shift responsibility of

treatment to Medicare or Medicaid. In the event Medicare and/or Medicaid require reimbursement

or repayment related to future medical treatment, this would be the sole responsibility of

PLAINTIFF.

PLAINTIFF further acknowledges, warrants, and agrees to satisfy all liens, reimbursement

rights, subrogation interests or claims, including any automatic liens or obligations created by

federal and/or state law, ofmedical assistance, Medicare, Medicaid, child support, income tax, and

any doctor, hospital, insurance carrier, non-profit hospital and medical service organization, state

or governmental agency, attorney or any other person, firm or corporation, which have been made

or may be made in the future against the payments described in this Release; and PLAINTIFF

further agrees to hold DEFENDANT harmless, and to defend and indemnify DEFENDANT and

its Related Persons and Entities against any suits, claims, cross-claims, judgments, costs or

expenses of any kind, including attorney fees, arising from assertion of any such liens,

reimbursement right, subrogation interest or claim.

3 Advice of Counsel. ThePARTIES represent that each ofthem has reviewed each

term of this Agreement with legal counsel and that hereafter the PARTIES shall not deny the

validity of this Agreement on the grounds that they did not have advice ofcounsel.

6. Authority to Sign. The PARTIES represent that each person signing this

Agreement has the authority necessary to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party or entity

for whom or which he or she is acting, and that upon execution of the Agreement, it will be fully

binding and enforceable in accordance with its terms, and that no other consents or approval of

Page 5 of 9

Page 162 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

any kind are required or necessary for this Agreement to be binding.

7. Ownership of Claims. PLAINTIFF represents she is the owner of all of the Claims

released herein and that said released Claims have not been assigned and/or transferred or

hypothecated, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, by operation of law or otherwise, to any other

person or entity. PLAINTIFF agrees to hold DEFENDANT harmless, and to defend and indemnify

DEFENDANT against any suits, claims, cross-claims, judgments, costs or expenses of any kind,

including attorney fees and costs, arising from any assignment of the Claims released herein

brought byany person and/or entity claiming to have the right to such Claim through an assignment

of said Claim by PLAINTIFF, whether such assignment was known or unknown, voluntary or

involuntary, by operation oflaw or otherwise.

8. Covenant Not to Sue. PLAINTIFF covenants and agrees she has not and shall not

bring any other actions, claims, suits or proceedings against DEFENDANT or DEFENDANT’S

Related Persons and Entities regarding the Claims released herein.

9. No_ Admission of Liability. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that the settlement

contained in this Agreement is a compromise of disputed claims. In executing this Agreement or

making the payments provided for hereunder, no party to this Agreement is admitting the

sufficiency of any claims, allegations, assertions, contentions orpositions of any other party or the

sufficiency of defenses to any such claims, allegations, assertions, contentions or positions. The

PARTIES acknowledge that this is a settlement of disputed and unproved claims, and that

DEFENDANT denies any liability or wrongdoing whatsoever.

10, Litigation Costs. The PARTIES agree to each bear their own attorneys’ fees and

costs and not to seek recovery of attorney fees, costs or any other related fees and costs as a result

of or in connection with the Action. This provision applies to any and all liens including, but not

limited to, any and all attorney liens on thematter.

11. Binding Effect. The PARTIES agree that this Agreement shall inure to the benefit

of and be binding on the PARTIES to this Agreement and their Related Persons and Entities arising

out of orrelating to the Claims alleged in the Action and no other person or entity.

Page 6of9

Page 163 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

12. Governing Law. The PARTIES agree that this Agreement shall be interpreted in

accordance with and be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of Nevada.

13. Entire Agreement. The PARTIES agree that this Agreement constitutes the entire

understanding among the PARTIES with respect to the matters set forth herein. There are no

representations, warranties, agreements, arrangements orundertakings, oral or written, between or

among the PARTIES hereto relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, which are not fully

expressed herein. This Agreement is an integrated agreement.

14. Severability. ThePARTIES agree the provisions of this Agreement are severable,

and if any part of it is found to be unenforceable, the other provisions shall remain fully valid and

enforceable.

13, Counterparts. The PARTIES agree that this Agreement may be executed in

counterparts, and all such counterparts shall constitute an Agreement which shall be binding upon

all PARTIES hereto, notwithstanding that the signatures of all PARTIES hereto or the PARTIES’

designated representatives do not appear on the same page.

16. THIS RELEASE IS FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY EXECUTED BY THE

PARTIES. IN EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED

THAT THE PARTIES RELY WHOLLY UPON THEIR OWN JUDGMENT, AND THAT
OF THEIR ATTORNEYS, CONCERNING ANY BELIEF AND KNOWLEDGE OF THE

NATURE, EXTENT, AND DURATION OF SAID DAMAGES, OR THE NATURE OF THE

CLAIMS INVOLVED IN THIS ACTION. IN EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, THE

PARTIES HAVE NOT BEEN INFLUENCED TO ANY EXTENT WHATSOEVER BY

REPRESENTATIONS OR STATEMENTS REGARDING SAID DAMAGES, OR

REGARDING ANY OF THE CLAIMS IN THIS ACTION MADE BY RELEASOR,

RELEASEE, AND/OR BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS REPRESENTING THE

PARTIES, OR ANY OF THEM, OR BY ANY EXPERT, CONSULTANT, OR ATTORNEY

EMPLOYED BY THE PARTIES.

Page 7 of9
Page 164 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

18. Breach byPLAINTIFF. Should DEFENDANT reasonably retain counsel for the

purpose of enforcing or preventing a breach byPLAINTIFF of any provision of this Agreement,

including, but not limited to, instituting any action or proceeding to enforce any of its provisions,

for damages by reason of any alleged breach of any of its provisions; or for any other judicial

remedy, then, if said matter is settled by judicial determination (which term includes arbitration

judicially affirmed), DEFENDANT (whether at trial and/or on appeal) shall be entitled, in addition

to such other relief as may be granted, to be reimbursed byPLAINTIFF for all costs and expenses

incurred thereby, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees and expert costs for the

services rendered to DEFENDANT.

19. Waiver and Amendment. No breach of any provision of this Agreement can be

waived, unless in writing. Waiver of any one breach of any provision hereof shall not be deemed

to be a waiver of any other breach of the same orany other provision hereof. This Agreement may

be amended only by a written agreement executed by the PARTIES in interest at the time of the

modification.

20. Miscellaneous.

A. The PARTIES to this Agreement shall execute and deliver any document, which is

reasonably necessary to achieve the goals and purposes of this Agreement.

B. The PARTIES hereto, and each of them, further represent and declare that they

have carefully read this Agreement and know the contents thereof, and that they sign the same

freely and voluntarily.

SIGNATURES BEGIN ON NEXT PAGE

Page 8 of 9

Page 165 of 220 



Cathy Frazier v. University Medical Center ofSouthern Nevada, et al.
Clark County District Court, Case No.: A-24-899947-C

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,Plaintiff, CATHY FRAZIER, hereby executes the instant

Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims as follows:

DATED this73day ofGays, 2025.

C ZI

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before
me this 23'day of Januar y

Ono Tg he

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for said
County and State

,2025.

DATED this 2Aday of ranues{_, 2025.
CRAIG P. KINNEY & ASSOCIATES

r 4

(LEOK R. SYMANSKI, ESQ.
Nevada-Bar No. 8686
Attorneys for Plaintiff

NOTARY PUBLIC
_ANA TRUJILLO

A -COUNTY OF CLABK
EXP. SEP 18, 2028

No: 11-6328-1

END OF SIGNATURES

Page 9 of 9

Page 166 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

13 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board recommend for approval by the Board of County 
Commissioners, also sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada, the settlement in the matter of District Court Case No. A-20-
809620-C, entitled David Monk as Special Administrator of the Estate of Sharon Monk v. 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al; and authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer to execute any necessary settlement documents.  (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund #:  7640.000     Fund Name:  UMC Malpractice and Liability Fund  
Fund Center:  3000867500    Amount:  $100,000.00 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
A special administrator of a patient’s estate commenced a professional negligence action in Clark County 
District Court on January 31, 2020, against University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC”) and 
various other medical providers.   
 
In order to resolve the District Court action against UMC, UMC seeks approval to settle the action for the total 
amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00), inclusive of all attorney’s fees and costs, with no 
admission of wrongdoing, and to mitigate the unknown costs of protracted litigation.  The settlement is 
recommended by UMC Administration, UMC retained litigation counsel, and UMC’s Office of General 
Counsel.   
 

Page 167 of 220 



 

Page 1 of 7 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS 

 

This Settlement Agreement and Release (“Agreement”) is made and entered into between 

PLAINTIFF, DAVID MONK AS SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR OF THE ESTATE OF SHARON 

MONK (“PLAINTIFF”), and Defendant, UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN 

NEVADA (“UMC”) , for themselves and for the benefit of the UMC Governing Board, the UMC 

Board of Hospital Trustees, the County of Clark, Nevada, and each of the aforementioned’s 

present/former officers, directors, shareholders, Commissioners, Board members, employees, agents, 

attorneys, representatives, assigns, and any related entities (collectively “UMC”).  PLAINTIFF and 

UMC are sometimes referred to individually as “Party” and are sometimes collectively referred to 

herein as “Parties”. 

 

I. Recitals  

 

A. Whereas, there is currently pending in Clark County District Court, an action entitled 

David Monk as Special Administrator of the Estate of Sharon Monk v. University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada, et al., Case No. A-20-809620-C (hereinafter “Subject Action”).  

 

B. After extensive negotiations, the Parties have reached an arms-length settlement of all 

Claims asserted or raised in the Subject Action, or related to the Subject Incident, as between the 

Parties.  

 

C. Whereas, in making this Agreement, which involves disputed facts and issues, UMC 

does not admit the truth or sufficiency of any of the Claims or allegations asserted by PLAINTIFF 

and does not admit liability for any of PLAINTIFF’s alleged damages. The Parties intend by this 

Agreement to settle, finally and completely, all Claims, demands, actions, causes of action, known 

and unknown, asserted by PLAINTIFF in the Subject Action and with respect to the Subject Incident.  

 

D. Whereas the Parties wish to memorialize the terms and conditions of their settlement 

made for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, and they hereto agree as follows:  

 

II. Definitions 

 

As used in this Agreement, the following phrases and words shall have the following 

meanings: 

 

A. “Claim” or “Claims” shall refer to any and all claims whether in tort, contract or 

otherwise, at common law or by statute, including but not limited to demands, liabilities, damages, 

complaints, causes of action, intentional or negligent acts, intentional or negligent omissions, fraud, 

breach of contract, breach of warranty, breach of duty including any statutory duty, economic 

damages, non-economic damages, indemnity, contribution, property damage or loss, personal or 

bodily injury, wrongful death, loss of consortium, compensatory, emotional, consequential, 

pecuniary, general, special, economic, hedonic, punitive, or exemplary damages, loss of use, loss of 

income, fraudulent and intentional misrepresentation, attorneys’ fees, costs, prejudgment or post-

judgment interest, investigative costs, expert costs, and any other actionable omission, conduct or 

damage of every kind and nature whatsoever, whether known or unknown, alleged or which could 

have been alleged or asserted, of any kind whatsoever, and any other measure or theory of damages 

Page 168 of 220 



 

Page 2 of 7 

actually or allegedly recoverable under law or equity, whether or not actually alleged in the Subject 

Actions, or arising out of or in any way relating to the Subject Incident and Subject Actions, as 

defined herein.  

 

B. “Parties” shall refer to PLAINTIFF and UMC as defined in the first paragraph of this 

Agreement.  

 

C. “Related Persons and Entities” shall refer to the respective Parties’ agents, legal 

representatives, heirs, administrators, trustors, trustees, executors, beneficiaries, creditors, assigns, 

successors, insurers, attorneys, experts, and persons or classes of persons as applicable or related to 

the Parties and to the specific Related Persons and Entities of a Party.  

 

D. “Subject Action” shall refer to the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, 

Nevada in an action entitled David Monk as Special Administrator of the Estate of Sharon Monk v. 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al., Case No. A-20-809620-C. 

 

E. “Subject Incident” shall refer to the alleged incidents alleged in PLAINTIFF’s 

Complaint, in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada, and any resultant injuries 

and damages alleged to have been sustained by PLAINTIFF or Sharon Monk therefrom.  

 

III. Release 

 

A. Monetary Consideration   

 

1. For and in consideration of the total payment of ONE HUNDRED 

THOUSAND DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS ($100,000.00) payable to PLAINTIFF’s 

(hereinafter “PLAINTIFF” or “Releasor”) counsel, THE HAYES LAW FIRM’s Client Trust 

Account, by University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC” or “Payor”), the undersigned 

does hereby release, acquit, and forever discharge UMC, the UMC Governing Board, the UMC 

Board of Hospital Trustees, the County of Clark, Nevada, and each of the aforementioned’s 

present/former officers, directors, shareholders, Commissioners, Board members, employees, agents, 

attorneys, representatives, assigns, and any related entities (hereinafter “Releasees”) from any 

consequences resulting from alleged wrongdoing and any and all causes of action arising from 

allegations contained in PLAINTIFF’s Complaint, and as more particularly described in Case No. A-

23-875382-C, filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada. 

 

2. Upon full execution of this Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims 

by PLAINTIFF and within thirty (30) days of approval by the UMC Governing Board and the UMC 

Board of Hospital Trustees, and upon receipt from PLAINTIFF’s counsel of an appropriate IRS W-9 

form, settlement payment in the amount of ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS AND 

ZERO CENTS ($100,000.00) by UMC will be made payable to THE HAYES LAW FIRM’S 

Client Trust Account. 

 

3. In consideration for payment as herein described, each party thereto shall pay 

their own attorneys’ fees and costs. 

 

Page 169 of 220 



 

Page 3 of 7 

4. PLAINTIFF and his counsel acknowledge and agree that UMC has made no 

representations to PLAINTIFF or his counsel regarding the tax consequences of any amounts 

received by PLAINTIFF pursuant to this Agreement. PLAINTIFF agrees to pay taxes, if any, which 

are required by law to be paid with respect to this settlement payment and Agreement. PLAINTIFF  

further agrees to hold UMC harmless from any claims, demands, deficiencies, levies, assessments, 

executions, judgments or recoveries by any governmental entity against UMC for any amounts 

claimed due on account of this Agreement or pursuant to claims made under any laws for UMC’s 

failure to pay any taxes that he is legally obligated to pay, and any costs, expenses or damages that he 

is legally obligated to pay, and any costs, expenses or damages sustained by UMC by reason of any 

such claims, including any amounts paid by UMC as taxes, attorneys’ fees, deficiencies, levies, 

assessments, fines, penalties interest or otherwise 

 

5. In a simultaneous exchange for receipt of payment, PLAINTIFF or his counsel 

will sign the dismissal of the Case No. A-20-809620-C, with prejudice, with each party to bear its 

own fees and costs. PLAINTIFF further acknowledges that the Subject Action and each of the claims 

and causes of action asserted therein or that could have been asserted, are fully and finally settled and 

resolved. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that the dismissal of the Subject Action is a condition of this 

settlement and of the payments and conditions described herein.  

 

6. PLAINTIFF expressly acknowledges and agrees that he would not otherwise 

be entitled to the consideration set forth herein, were if not for his covenants, promises, and releases 

set forth hereunder and that the payment and conditions constitute good and valuable consideration 

for the release by PLAINTIFF. PLAINTIFF expressly acknowledges that UMC is providing good 

and valuable consideration to support this Agreement above and beyond any amounts or subjects that 

may have been disputed. 

 

7. PLAINTIFF expressly acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is 

contingent upon and subject to the approval of the UMC Governing Board and the UMC Board of 

Hospital Trustees, and only becomes effective upon such approval.  Should such approval not be 

obtained, then the Subject Action shall continue.  Furthermore, this Agreement is subject to 

disclosure in accordance with NRS Chapter 241, NRS Chapter 41, or as otherwise imposed by law. 

 

B. Voluntary Release of Claims 

 

PLAINTIFF understands and agrees that by signing this Agreement, he is knowingly and 

voluntarily agreeing to waive and release any and all claims he has had or may have against UMC. 

PLAINTIFF is advised of the following:  

 

1. Consultation with Counsel.  PLAINTIFF acknowledges that this Agreement 

constitutes written notice from UMC that he should consult with an attorney before signing this 

Agreement. PLAINTIFF acknowledges that he has had an opportunity to fully discuss all aspects of 

this Agreement with an attorney to the extent he desires to do so. PLAINTIFF agrees that he has 

carefully read and fully understands all of the provisions of this Agreement, and that he is voluntarily 

entering into this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

Page 170 of 220 



 

Page 4 of 7 

C. PLAINTIFF’s Release 

 

PLAINTIFF agrees to dismiss with prejudice the Subject Action, Case No. A-20-809620-C. 

Further, PLAINTIFF agrees and covenants not to sue or institute or cause to be instituted any action, 

claim, or lawsuit in any federal or state court against UMC arising through the date of PLAINTIFF’s 

signature on this Agreement.  

 

PLAINTIFF acknowledges that certain medical providers, insurance providers, Medicare, 

Medicaid, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”), or other persons or entities 

may have lien or subrogation rights resulting in payments to or on behalf of PLAINTIFF with regard 

to the incident described herein. PLAINTIFF expressly agrees that he is solely responsible for 

satisfying any and all liens and/or reimbursements and PLAINTIFF agrees to satisfy any and all liens 

and/or reimbursements from the proceeds of the settlement and hereby agrees to hold harmless and 

indemnify Releasees from any demands, actions, causes of action, liens, or claims of lien based upon 

any lien claim or subrogation rights claimed by any person or entity with respect to the incident 

described herein. By entering into this Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims, 

PLAINTIFF and Releasees do not intend to shift responsibility of future medical benefits to the 

Federal Government or CMS, and the parties intend all responsibility for future medical benefits to 

befall PLAINTIFF.  

 

If PLAINTIFF is required to set aside or repay any portion or all of the settlement amount to 

reasonably protect Medicare’s interest under the Medicare Secondary Payer Statute (MSP), 

PLAINTIFF shall be solely responsible for setting aside or repaying such monies from their own 

funds. PLAINTIFF also agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Releasees and its attorneys 

for the consequences of PLAINTIFF’s loss of Medicare benefits or for any recovery the CMS may 

pursue against Releasees and their attorneys. In addition, PLAINTIFF waives and releases any right 

to bring any action against Releasees and their attorneys under § 1395(y) of the MSP. 

 

By signing this Agreement, PLAINTIFF is bound by it. Anyone who succeeds to 

PLAINTIFF’s rights and responsibilities, including but not limited to PLAINTIFF’s spouse, heirs, 

executor of PLAINTIFF’s estate, assignee or any entity claiming by, through or under PLAINTIFF, 

is also bound by this Agreement. PLAINTIFF covenants and confirms that he is not married and that 

no one else has a right to the settlement proceeds other than his counsel.  

 

 If PLAINTIFF breaches any of PLAINTIFF’s obligations under this Agreement or as 

otherwise imposed by law, UMC shall be entitled to (a) cease any payment to be made under this 

Agreement; (b) obtain all other relief provided by law or equity, including recovery of monetary 

damages, and/or (c) apply for and receive an injunction to restrain any violation of this Agreement. 

In such event, PLAINTIFF agrees that PLAINTIFF will be required to pay UMC’s legal costs and 

expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, associated with such lawsuit and enforcing this 

Agreement.  

 

IV. No Admissions 

 

 By signing this Agreement, UMC is not admitting to any inappropriate, unlawful, or tortuous 

conduct and, in fact, UMC denies that any such conduct has occurred.  

 

 

Page 171 of 220 



 

Page 5 of 7 

V. Covenant Not to Sue 

 

The Parties hereto promise to never commence, prosecute or cause to be commenced or 

prosecuted any action or proceeding against the other Party based upon any claim, lawsuit, demand, 

cause of action, obligation or liability relating to the Subject Action and/or covered by this 

Agreement, except for claims to enforce a breach of the terms of this Agreement. If any action is 

commenced or prosecuted in violation of this Agreement, the Party commencing or prosecuting the 

action shall be liable for all damages sustained by the opposing Party as a result of the action, 

including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in defending the action 

and during appeal.  

 

VI. Governing Law 

 

 By executing this Agreement, UMC and PLAINTIFF agree that its performance is to occur in 

Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, and that the terms of this Agreement will be interpreted under the 

laws of the State of Nevada and any applicable laws of the United States.  

 

VII. Exclusive Jurisdiction    

 

 The parties agree that the appropriate state or federal courts in Las Vegas, Clark County, 

Nevada have exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute, regardless of any conflict or choice of law 

provision or statute. 

  

VIII. Entire Agreement 

 

Upon the effective date of this Agreement, all prior (oral or written) agreements, if any, 

between PLAINTIFF and UMC are terminated. The terms stated in this Agreement are all of the 

terms to which UMC and PLAINTIFF have agreed. By executing this Agreement, PLAINTIFF 

acknowledges that there are no other agreements (oral or written) between PLAINTIFF and UMC, or 

any other topic covered by this Agreement.  

 

IX. Waiver 

 

 The failure of any party to enforce or to require timely compliance with any term or provision 

of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver or relinquishment of rights or obligations 

arising hereunder, nor shall such failure preclude or stop the subsequent enforcement of such term or 

provision or the enforcement of any subsequent breach.  

 

X. Severability 

 

 Every part, term or provision of this Agreement is severable from the others. This Agreement 

has been made with the clear intention that the validity and enforceability of the remaining parts, 

terms and provisions shall not be affected by any possible future finding of a duly constituted 

authority that a particular part, term or provision is invalid, void or unenforceable. If a provision in 

this Agreement is later found to be unlawful by a proper authority, the parties agree to construe the 

Agreement as if the unlawful provision did not exist.  

 

 

Page 172 of 220 



 

Page 6 of 7 

XI. Construction 

 

 This Agreement shall be deemed drafted equally by the parties. Its language shall be 

construed as a whole and according to its fair meaning. Any presumption or principle in law or 

equity that the language is to be construed against any party shall not apply. The headings in this 

Agreement are for convenience, and are not intended to affect construction or interpretation. The 

plural includes the singular and the singular includes the plural; “and” and “or” are each used both 

conjunctively and disjunctively; “any” and “all” each mean “any and all”; “each” and “every” each 

mean “each and every”; and “including” and “includes” are each “without limitation.”  

 

XII. Legal Counsel 

 

 PLAINTIFF is advised to consult with an attorney prior to executing this Agreement.  

 

XIII. Counterparts 

 

 This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 

an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

XIV. Section Headings 

 

The section and paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes 

and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

 

XV. Compliance with Terms 

 

 The failure to insist upon compliance with any term, covenant or condition contained in this 

Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or 

relinquishment of any right or power contained in this Agreement at any one time or more times be 

deemed a waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any other time or times. 

 

XVI. Understanding 

 

 By executing this Agreement, PLAINTIFF  acknowledges that PLAINTIFF  has carefully 

read it; that PLAINTIFF  has had an opportunity to review it with an attorney of PLAINTIFF’s own 

choice, if PLAINTIFF chooses to do so; that the waiver and release set forth herein is part of an 

agreement that is written in a manner calculated to be understood by PLAINTIFF  and PLAINTIFF  

in fact fully and completely understands the terms and the binding effect of this Agreement; that the 

only promises and representations made to PLAINTIFF  that have led to PLAINTIFF  executing this 

Agreement are those stated in this Agreement; that PLAINTIFF  is executing this Agreement 

knowingly and voluntarily and under PLAINTIFF’s own free will, without any threat or coercion by 

any entity, including UMC; and that PLAINTIFF  is legally and mentally competent to enter into this 

Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

Page 173 of 220 



 

Page 7 of 7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, PLAINTIFF, DAVID MONK AS SPECIAL 

ADMINISTRATOR OF THE ESTATE OF SHARON MONK, hereby executes the instant 

Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims as follows: 

 
DATED this ___ day of ___________, 2025. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
DAVID MONK, AS SPECIAL 
ADMINISTRATOR OF THE ESTATE OF 
SHARON MONK 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before 
me this ___ day of ____________, 2025. 
 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for said 
County and State 

DATED this ___ day of ___________, 2025. 
 
THE HAYES LAW FIRM 
 
__________________________________ 
DALE A. HAYES, JR., ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9056 
4735 S. Durango Drive, Suite 105 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Attorneys for PLAINTIFF  

 

Page 174 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

14 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board recommend for approval by the Board of County 
Commissioners, also sitting as the Board of Hospital Trustees for University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada, the settlement in the matter of District Court Case No. A-23-
875382-C, entitled Gordon v. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, et al.; and 
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute any necessary settlement documents.  
(For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund #:  7640.000     Fund Name:  UMC Malpractice and Liability Fund  
Fund Center:  3000867500    Amount:  $75,000.00 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
A patient commenced a professional negligence action in Clark County District Court on August 4, 2023, 
against University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC”) and various other medical providers.   
 
In order to resolve the District Court action against UMC, UMC seeks approval to settle the action for the total 
amount of Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00), inclusive of all attorney’s fees and costs, with no 
admission of wrongdoing, and to mitigate the unknown costs of protracted litigation.  The settlement is 
recommended by UMC Administration, UMC retained litigation counsel, and UMC’s Office of General 
Counsel.   
 

Page 175 of 220 



 

Page 1 of 7 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS 

 

This Settlement Agreement and Release (“Agreement”) is made and entered into between 

Plaintiff, TALETA GORDON (“GORDON”), and Defendant, UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 

OF SOUTHERN NEVADA (“UMC”) , for themselves and for the benefit of the UMC Governing 

Board, the UMC Board of Hospital Trustees, and County of Clark, Nevada, and each of the 

aforementioned’s present/former officers, directors, shareholders, Commissioners, Board members, 

employees, agents, attorneys, representatives, assigns, and any related entities (collectively “UMC”). 

GORDON and UMC are sometimes referred to individually as “Party” and are sometimes 

collectively referred to herein as “Parties”. 

 

I. Recitals  

 

A. Whereas, there is currently pending in Clark County District Court, Nevada, in an 

action entitled Taleta Gordon v. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, State of Nevada Ex 

Rel. Board of Regents for the Nevada System of Higher Education, On Behalf of The University of 

Nevada, Las Vegas; Leanne Free, and Kendall Marshall, Case No. A-23-875382-C (hereinafter 

“Subject Action”).  

 

B. After extensive negotiations, the Parties have reached an arms-length settlement of all 

Claims asserted or raised in the Subject Action, or related to the Subject Incident, as between the 

Parties.  

 

C. Whereas, in making this Agreement, which involves disputed facts and issues, UMC 

does not admit the truth or sufficiency of any of the Claims or allegations asserted by GORDON and 

does not admit liability for any of GORDON’s alleged damages. The Parties intend by this 

Agreement to settle, finally and completely, all Claims, demands, actions, causes of action, known 

and unknown, asserted by GORDON in the Subject Actions and with respect to the Subject Incident.  

 

D. Whereas the Parties wish to memorialize the terms and conditions of their settlement 

made for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, and they hereto agree as follows:  

 

II. Definitions 

 

As used in this Agreement, the following phrases and words shall have the following 

meanings: 

 

A. “Claim” or “Claims” shall refer to any and all claims whether in tort, contract or 

otherwise, at common law or by statute, including but not limited to demands, liabilities, damages, 

complaints, causes of action, intentional or negligent acts, intentional or negligent omissions, fraud, 

breach of contract, breach of warranty, breach of duty including any statutory duty, economic 

damages, non-economic damages, indemnity, contribution, property damage or loss, personal or 

bodily injury, wrongful death, loss of consortium, compensatory, emotional, consequential, 

pecuniary, general, special, economic, hedonic, punitive, or exemplary damages, loss of use, loss of 

income, fraudulent and intentional misrepresentation, attorneys’ fees, costs, prejudgment or post-

judgment interest, investigative costs, expert costs, and any other actionable omission, conduct or 

damage of every kind and nature whatsoever, whether known or unknown, alleged or which could 

have been alleged or asserted, of any kind whatsoever, and any other measure or theory of damages 

Page 176 of 220 



Page 177 of 220 



Page 178 of 220 



Page 179 of 220 



Page 180 of 220 



Page 181 of 220 



Page 182 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

15 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Education – Legislative Session 
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive an update from Shana Tello, UMC Academic and 
External Affairs Administrator, regarding the 2025 Legislative Sessionl; and direct staff 
accordingly.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will provide an informational presentation regarding Nevada 2025 Legislative 
Session. 

Page 183 of 220 



1

2025 
Legislative 
Update
UMC Governing Board
Shana Tello, Academic & External Affairs 
Administrator

Page 184 of 220 



Governor’s State of the State Address 
(January 15)

February 3 First Day of the 2025 Legislative Session
February 13 Legislator’s BDR Requests are Due
March 20 Legislators’ Bill Introductions
April 4 Start Closing Budgets
April 14 First House Committee passage
April 25 First House Passage
May 1 Economic Report due
May 19 Committee Passage (Second House)
May 26 Second House Passage
May 31 Budget Bills Introduced and Exempt Bills from 

Committee
June 2 Sine Die (Session Ends)

Legislative 83nd Session Timeline – 2025

• Legislative session ends  
midnight June 2th

COUNTDOWN 

Page 185 of 220 



Governor’s State of the State Priorities

• Proposed budget: $12.7 Billion Dollar Executive Budget
• Improve Healthcare Access
• Increase Education Accountability
• Housing Crisis
• Criminal Justice
• Improve Elections

Page 186 of 220 



UMC Finance Team Analysis 
Involving Fiscal Notes

Legislative Representation: 
NHA LVMD, AAMC, AHA, AEH, R&R

County Legislative Tracking 
System

UMC Legislative Activity – 2025 

Top Bill Draft Requests: 
Healthcare & Insurance

UMC Subject Matter Experts: 
Finance, Pharmacy, Nursing, Facilities, 

Medical Staff, Case Management 

Page 187 of 220 



Legislative Priorities – 2025

FEDERAL BILLS

• Update NRS 450 – Crisis 
Stabilization & Modernize 
Training Terms

• Military: Malpractice 
Caps

• GME Funding
• Non-Compete
• Insurance: Prompt 

Payments, Prior 
Authorization

• Medicaid Expansion
• Workforce/Retention
• Children’s Mental & 

Behavioral Health
• Nurse Compact/ Ratios

• GME Reform
• Site Neutral Payments
• 340B Rebate Models
• Organ Transplant 

Payment Models
• Commercial Plan 

Accountability
• AI Transparency 
• Cybersecurity

STATE BILLS UMC BILLS

Page 188 of 220 



BDR 722
• Military Medicine – extends cap to military providers working at County 

hospitals

Malpractice Caps

BDR 559
• Crisis Stabilization 

o Allows additional community services 
o Reflects UMC’s partnership with County to benefit the community

• Modernizes training term: “Intern” to Residents and Fellows

Crisis Stabilization and Other Related Services

UMC LEGISLATIVE REVIEW

Page 189 of 220 



Questions?

7
Page 190 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

16 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: DNV Healthcrae Managemen Program at UMC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive an update from Patty Scott, UMC Quality Patient 
Safety and Regulatory Officer, regarding the new DNV Healthcare Management 
Certification and Accreditation Program; and direct staff accordingly.  (For possible 
action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a presentation regarding the new certification and 
accreditation program at UMC. 

Page 191 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

Regulatory Update
UMC Governing Board 

January 29, 2025

Center for Quality & Patient Safety

Page 192 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

• DNV (Det Norske Veritas – “The Norwegian Truth”)

• DNV is an integrated accreditation program utilizing the:
– National Integrated Accreditation for Healthcare Organizations (NIAHO) 

standards
– ISO:9001 Quality Management System Certification standards

• The international standard that specifies requirements for a quality 
management system (QMS) 

• DNV standards:
– Mirror the CMS Conditions of Participation (COP)
– Only change when the COP’s are updated

• Annual survey process with dedicated DNV team lead surveyor 

• Fosters continual regulatory readiness (avoids the three-year “ramp up”)

• DNV process aligns with UMC’s Quality, Safety, & Regulatory initiatives!

Why Change Accrediting Organizations?

Page 193 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

Healthcare Systems That Have Transitioned to DNV

Healthcare Systems That Have Transitioned to DNV

Page 194 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

First Survey (Year Zero) – Accreditation Survey

• First Survey is considered Year Zero

• The first survey is a full “Accreditation” survey

• All surveys are unannounced 

• Accreditation will be “awarded” after the survey and plan 
of correction is accepted

22 Survey Days

First Survey (Year Zero) – Accreditation Survey

Page 195 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

Second and Third Year Surveys• DNV returns annually

• All surveys are unannounced 

• Second and third year surveys are considered “periodic” 
checks
– Fewer surveyors and less days
– Follow-up on plan of correction sustainment from previous year’s 

survey
– Share immerging quality / safety regulatory trends in healthcare 
– Survey to the NIAHO standards
– Begin to introduce ISO 9001 concepts

• Fourth survey will be the “deep dive” (aka triennial survey) 

15 Survey Days

Second and Third Year Surveys

Page 196 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

• ISO 9001:2015 specifies requirements for a quality 
management system (QMS) when an organization:

– needs to demonstrate its ability to consistently provide 
products and services that meet customer and applicable 
statutory / regulatory expectations, and

– aims to enhance customer satisfaction through the 
effective application of the system, including processes for 
improvement of the system and the assurance of 
conformity to customer and applicable statutory / 
regulatory expectations.

Journey to ISO 9001 Certification 

Page 197 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

Journey to ISO 9001 Certification 

Timeline to ISO 9001 Certification 

ISO = International Organization of Standardization

Page 198 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA www.umcsn.com

DISCUSSION / QUESTIONS?

Patricia Scott, MSNA, BSN, RN, RHIA, CPHQ, CCDS, CPHRM, CLSSBB
Quality, Patient Safety, & Regulatory Officer

Patricia.Scott@umcsn.com
702-207-8257 (Office)

702-303-3921 (Cell)

Center for Quality & Patient Safety

Page 199 of 220 

mailto:Patricia.Scott@umcsn.com
tel:702-207-8257
tel:702-303-3921


 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

17 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: 2025 Governing Board Action Plan   
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board review and discuss potential topics to include on the Governing 
Board 2025 Action Plan calendar; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible 
action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will discuss the calendar related to the Governing Board action plans for 
CY2025 based on feedback from the Governing Board survey results. 

Page 200 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

18 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Report from Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee  
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance 
Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the January Governing Board Audit and Finance 
Committee meeting. 

Page 201 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

19 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
  

 
Issue: Monthly Financial Reports for November and December FY25 

Update 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board receive an update on the monthly financial report for 
November and December FY25; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None 
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive an update on the November and December FY2025 financial 
reports from Jennifer Wakem, Chief Financial Officer of University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada. 

Page 202 of 220 



GB Meeting

November 2024
Financials

Page 203 of 220 



KEY INDICATORS – NOV

2

Current Month Actual Budget Variance % Var Prior Year Variance % Var
APDs 17,105 18,247 (1,142) (6.26%) 17,894 (789) (4.41%)

Total Admissions 1,855 2,007 (152) (7.56%) 1,930 (75) (3.89%)

Observation Cases 808 844 (36) (4.27%) 844 (36) (4.27%)

AADC (Hospital) 548 583 (35) (6.07%) 566 (18) (3.23%)

ALOS (Admits) 5.90 5.88 0.02 0.30% 5.75 0.15 2.61%
ALOS (Obs) 1.20 1.39 (0.19) (13.67%) 1.39 (0.19) (13.67%)
Hospital CMI 1.84 1.80 0.05 2.22% 1.80 0.05 2.22%

Medicare CMI 1.99 2.04 (0.04) (2.46%) 2.04 (0.05) (2.46%)

IP Surgery Cases 740 830 (90) (10.84%) 771 (31) (4.02%)

OP Surgery Cases 637 603 34 5.64% 531 106 19.96%

Transplants 15 13 2 15.38% 13 2 15.38%

Total ER Visits 8,907 9,235 (328) (3.55%) 9,054 (147) (1.62%)

ED to Admission 12.91% - - - 13.32% (0.41%) -

ED to Observation 8.87% - - - 9.05% (0.18%) -

ED to Adm/Obs 21.78% - - - 22.37% (0.59%) -

Quick Cares 16,747 17,949 (1,202) (6.70%) 17,451 (704) (4.03%)

Primary Care 6,300 6,629 (329) (4.97%) 6,523 (223) (3.42%)

UMC Telehealth - QC 535 646 (111) (17.14%) 633 (98) (15.48%)

OP Ortho Clinic 2,134 2,120 14 0.66% 1,529 605 39.57%

Deliveries 110 128 (18) (13.73%) 125 (15) (12.00%)
Page 204 of 220 



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – YTD NOV

3

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $433,047,058 $415,845,284 $17,201,774 4.14%

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 18.34% 18.10% 0.24%

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $445,514,885 $420,901,806 ($24,613,078) (5.85%)

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops ($12,467,827) ($5,056,522) ($7,411,305) (146.57%)

Add back: Depr & Amort. $20,675,798 $20,559,772 ($116,026) (0.56%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. $8,207,971 $15,503,250 ($7,295,279) (47.06%)

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 1.90% 3.73% (1.83%)

Page 205 of 220 



GB Meeting

December 2024
Financials

Page 206 of 220 



KEY INDICATORS – DEC

5

Current Month Actual Budget Variance % Var Prior Year Variance % Var
APDs 19,071 19,288 (217) (1.12%) 19,201 (130) (0.68%)

Total Admissions 2,142 2,038 104 5.09% 1,959 183 9.34%

Observation Cases 742 903 (161) (17.83%) 903 (161) (17.83%)

AADC (Hospital) 586 596 (9) (1.56%) 584 2 0.32%

ALOS (Admits) 5.62 6.10 (0.48) (7.84%) 6.55 (0.93) (14.20%)
ALOS (Obs) 1.03 1.41 (0.38) (26.66%) 1.41 (0.38) (26.66%)
Hospital CMI 1.77 1.92 (0.14) (7.83%) 1.92 (0.15) (7.83%)

Medicare CMI 1.91 2.06 (0.15) (7.27%) 2.06 (0.16) (7.27%)

IP Surgery Cases 786 857 (71) (8.28%) 794 (8) (1.01%)

OP Surgery Cases 629 613 16 2.61% 541 88 16.27%

Transplants 17 15 2 13.33% 15 2 13.33%

Total ER Visits 10,010 9,274 736 7.94% 9,092 918 10.10%

ED to Admission 13.56% - - - 12.49% 1.06% -

ED to Observation 6.91% - - - 9.80% (2.89%) -

ED to Adm/Obs 20.47% - - - 22.29% (1.82%) -

Quick Cares 21,070 20,743 327 1.58% 20,153 917 4.55%

Primary Care 6,759 5,555 1,204 21.67% 5,427 1,332 24.54%

UMC Telehealth - QC 540 801 (261) (32.56%) 785 (245) (31.21%)

OP Ortho Clinic 2,458 2,183 275 12.58% 1,636 822 50.24%

Deliveries 106 153 (47) (30.72%) 150 (44) (29.33%)

Page 207 of 220 



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – DEC

6

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $88,030,544 $86,873,310 $1,157,234 1.33%

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 18.06% 18.29% (0.23%)

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $88,387,326 $87,929,657 ($457,669) (0.52%)

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops ($356,782) ($1,056,347) $699,565 66.22%

Add back: Depr & Amort. $4,010,051 $4,030,518 $20,468 0.51%

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. $3,653,268 $2,974,171 $679,097 22.83%

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 4.15% 3.42% 0.73%

Page 208 of 220 



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – YTD DEC

7

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $521,077,602 $502,718,594 $18,359,008 3.65%

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 18.29% 18.13% 0.16%

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $533,902,211 $508,831,463 ($25,070,748) (4.93%)

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops ($12,824,609) ($6,112,869) ($6,711,740) (109.80%)

Add back: Depr & Amort. $24,685,848 $24,590,290 ($95,558) (0.39%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. $11,861,239 $18,477,421 ($6,616,182) (35.81%)

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 2.28% 3.68% (1.40%)

Page 209 of 220 



SALARY & BENEFIT EXPENSE – DEC

8

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Salaries $37,259,114 $36,916,541 ($342,573) (0.93%)

  Benefits $16,346,146 $16,029,407 ($316,739) (1.98%)

  Overtime  $440,233 $1,252,162 $811,929 64.84%

  Contract Labor $1,888,614 $1,701,679 ($186,935) (10.99%)

  TOTAL  $55,934,107 $55,899,789 ($34,318) (0.06%)

Page 210 of 220 



EXPENSES – DEC

9

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

   Professional Fees $2,367,694 $2,335,576 ($32,117) (1.38%)

   Supplies $16,236,571 $15,824,551 ($412,020) (2.60%)

   Purchased Services $6,316,205 $6,910,901 $594,696 8.61%

   Depreciation $2,363,327 $2,478,791 $115,464 4.66%

   Amortization $1,646,724 $1,551,727 ($94,997) (6.12%)

   Repairs & Maintenance $1,392,197 $1,101,247 ($290,949) (26.42%)

   Utilities $286,486 $578,151 $291,665 50.45%

   Other Expenses $1,133,378 $1,091,029 ($42,349) (3.88%)

   Rental $710,638 $157,894 ($552,744) (350.07%)

   Total Other Expenses $32,453,219 $32,029,868 ($423,351) (1.32%)

Page 211 of 220 



10

02/06/2025 - Strategy Committee Initiative Approval

03/19/2025 - AFC Prelim

04/23/2025 - AFC Proposed Final

04/30/2025 - Present Final Budget to GB

05/01/2025 - Final Budget sent to County

FY 2026 BUD TIMELINE

Page 212 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine Dean’s Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive an update on the Kirk Kerkorian School of 
Medicine at UNLV; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive an update from Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian 
School of Medicine at UNLV. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

20 
Page 213 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: CEO Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive the Hospital CEO update; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive the CEO update. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

21 

Page 214 of 220 



CEO Update

January 2025

Page 215 of 220 



CEO Update

• Level I Trauma update

• Sponsoring Institution 

• Infusion Clinic 

• DNV Comprehensive Initial Accreditation anticipated  Feb/March

• DNV Comprehensive Survey scheduled for May 20th

• DNV Cardiac Center of Excellence Survey schedule for May 21st

• 1st floor renovation underway - 8 months to completion 

• 2040 renovations underway – 6 months to completion 

Page 216 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

22 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Committee assignments for the calendar year 2025 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board review and determine the committee assignments for the 
calendar year 2025; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

Standing Committees may be appointed by the Governing Board.  A Standing Committee is one 
whose functions are determined by a continuous need.  Members of Standing Committees of the 
Governing Board will be appointed at a regular meeting of the Governing Board to serve for a term 
of one year.  The Governing Board may additionally appoint both voting and non-voting public 
members to such Standing Committees, provided that members of the Governing Board shall 
constitute a majority of voting members of such Standing Committees and that a member of the 
Governing Board shall chair all such Standing Committees.  Public members shall be advisory to the 
Standing Committee and shall have no vote, unless otherwise authorized by the Governing Board. 

Members of Committees shall be appointed by the Governing Board.  The Chair of the Board shall 
appoint the Chair of each Committee. 

 

Page 217 of 220 



Draft - 12/2024 
 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
For 2025 

 
 

Robyn Caspersen – Chair 
Harry Hagerty 
Donald Mackay 
Mary Lynn Palenik 
Chris Haase 
(Vacant Seat) 
Jennifer Wakem (Admin Liaison) 

 
 

Harry Hagerty - Chair 
Donald Mackay, MD 
Robyn Caspersen 
Renee Franklin 
Mary Lynn Palenik 
Chris Haase 
Tony Marinello (Admin Liaison) 

 

 
(Pending) - Chair 
Renee Franklin 
Laura Lopez-Hobbs 
Bill Noonan 
Ricky Russell (Admin Liaison) 

 

 
Donald Mackay, MD- Chair 
Renee Franklin 
Laura Lopez-Hobbs  
Steve Weitman (non-voting) 
Bill Noonan 
Patricia Scott (Admin Liaison) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Finance 

Strategic Planning 

Human Resources and
Executive Compensation 

Clinical Quality and Professional
Affairs Committee 

Page 218 of 220 



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

23 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Emerging Issues 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board identifies emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the 
Board at future meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

None.  

Page 219 of 220 



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Closed Door Session 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board go into closed session, pursuant to NRS 241.015(4)(c)(2), to 
receive information from the General Counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
involving matters over which the Board had supervision, control, jurisdiction or 
advisory power, and to deliberate toward a decision on the matters; and direct staff 
accordingly. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
January 29, 2025 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

24 

Page 220 of 220 


	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	Governing Board - Agenda 2025.01.29 - Final.pdf

	SECTION 1.   OPENING CEREMONIES
	CALL TO ORDER
	1.   Public Comment
	2.   Approval of Minutes
	Governing Board -DRAFT -Minute December 11, 2024.pdf

	3.   Approval of Agenda

	SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS
	4. Credentialing
	Agenda Item - Credentialing.pdf
	December 2024 Credentialing.pdf
	January 2025 Credentialing.pdf

	5. Aetna
	Agenda Item - Aetna.pdf
	a. Hospital Transplant Agreement FEC- redacted.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	6. Health Direct Partners
	Agenda Item - Health Direct Partners.pdf
	a. Amendment to HSA .pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	7. Hometown Health
	Agenda Item - Hometown Health.pdf
	a. Provider Svc. Agmt.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership .pdf

	8. Vantive
	Agenda Item - Vantive.pdf
	a. Dialysis Products Purchase Agreement _Redacted.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	9. CyraCom
	Agenda Item - CyraCom.pdf
	a. Purchaser Specific Agreement.pdf
	b. Addendum.pdf
	c. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	10. Monument Construction
	Agenda Item - Monument Construction.pdf
	a. ITB 2024-16 - UMC 5409 E Lake Mead Remodel Project Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	11. CarePort Health
	Agenda Item - CarePort Health.pdf
	a. Order Form.pdf
	b. Disclosure Of Ownership.pdf

	12. Frazier Settlement Agreement
	Agenda Item - Frazier Settlement Agreement.pdf
	Settlement Agreement and Release.pdf

	13. Monk Settlement Agreement
	Agenda Item - Estate of Monk Settlement Agreementpdf.pdf
	Settlement Agreement and Release.pdf

	14. Gordon Settlement Agreement
	Agenda Item - Gordon Settlement Agreement.pdf
	Settlement Agreement and Release.pdf


	SECTION 3:  BUSINESS ITEMS
	15. Education - Legislative Session
	Agenda Item - Education - Legislative Update.pdf
	Legislative Update.pdf

	16. Education - DNV Healthcare Management
	Agenda Item - DNV Healthcare Management.pdf
	DNV Healthcare Manaement.pdf

	17. Governing Board Action Plan
	Agenda Item - Governing Board Action Plan.pdf

	18. Audit and Finance Committee Report
	Agenda Item - Audit and Finance.pdf

	19. November and December  FY25 Financial Reports
	Agenda Item - Financial Report.pdf
	GB FY25 Nov_Dec 2024.pdf

	20. Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV Update
	Agenda Item - KKSOM UNLV Update.pdf

	21. CEO Update
	Agenda Item - CEO Update.pdf
	CEO Update.pdf

	22. Committee Assignments
	Agenda Item - Committee Assignments.pdf
	DRAFT 2025 Committee Appointments.pdf


	SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES
	23. Emerging Issues
	Agenda Item - Emerging Issues.pdf


	SECTION 5: CLOSED SESSION
	24. Closed Session
	Agenda Item -  Closed Session.pdf





